
AGENDA 
OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 12, 2023 

A complete copy of the Agenda packet will be available on the Oakdale Irrigation District website 
www.oakdaleirrigation.com 

If would like to join the meeting virtually instead of in person, please see the below options: 

• To join the meeting via teleconference, click HERE or go to www.oakdaleirrigation.com and select
“View Meetings Online”. 

• To participate in the meeting via telephone, dial in at 1 (669) 900-9128, Access Code: 358-572-
1867 #, the message will ask for a participant ID, just press # again.  If you experience technical
difficulties, please contact our IT Systems Administrator Michael Ballinger at (209) 896-6887.

Public comments may be submitted in advance via email to smoody@oakdaleirrigation.com no later than 
4:30 p.m. on the day before the meeting. If you wish to make public comments during the live 
teleconference, you may alert the Board President at the time public comments are called for. Pursuant 
to Government Code section 54954.3(b)(1), public comment on an Agenda Item is limited to five (5) 
minutes. 

CALL TO ORDER: 9:00 a.m. District Office Boardroom 
1205 East F Street, Oakdale, California 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ROLL CALL: Brad DeBoer, Herman Doornenbal, Tom Orvis, Linda Santos, Ed Tobias 

ADDITIONS OR DELETION OF AGENDA ITEMS 

ACTION TO TAKE VARIOUS ITEMS OUT OF SEQUENCE 

PUBLIC COMMENT: The Board of Directors welcomes participation in its meetings. This time is provided 
for the public to address the Directors of the District on matters of concern that fall within the jurisdiction of 
the Board that are not on the agenda.  

Because matters being discussed are not on the agenda there should be no expectation of discussion or 
comment by the Board except to properly refer the matter for review or action as appropriate. Matters 
concerning District operations or responsibilities can be addressed prior to Board meetings by contacting 
District Management or Directors. In this manner, your concerns can be addressed expeditiously. 

The Oakdale Irrigation District Board pledges to be respectful, truthful, knowledgeable, productive and 
unified in conducting the people’s business. The Board believes in conducting its business using 
respectful and civil dialogue and would request that the public conduct itself in a similar fashion in their 
presentations. Disrespectful and threatening behavior will not be tolerated. 

It is not required, but speakers may provide their name and address. Public Comments will be limited to 
five minutes per speaker 

http://www.oakdaleirrigation.com/
https://www.oakdaleirrigation.com/view-meetings-online
http://www.oakdaleirrigation.com/
mailto:smoody@oakdaleirrigation.com


A. Closed Session:

1 Government Code §54956.9(d)(2) – Potential Exposure to Litigation – 1 case 

B. Consent Calendar:
Page No. 

2 Approve the Board of Directors Minutes of the Regular Meeting of August 1, 2023 4 

3 Approve Oakdale Irrigation District’s Statement of Obligations 10 

4 Approve OID Improvement Districts’ Statement of Obligations 16 

5 Approve Rejection of Claim Submitted by Bounsack Sengphachanh 19 

6 Approve Rejection of Claim Submitted by B&D Law Group, APLC on behalf of Keira 
Hernandez 

21 

7 Approve Rejection of Claim Submitted by Aiman-Smith & Marcy on behalf of Cari 
McCormick 

24 

8 Approve Board attendance at the 2023 ACWA Fall Conference and Expo 
November 28th through 30th, 2023 in Indian Wells, California 

76 

9 Approve the Treasurer’s Report and Financial Statements for The Seven Months Ending 
July 31, 2023 

78 

10 Approve Purchase of One (1) 2024 Three Axle Class Eight Dump Truck from Interstate 
Truck Center 

105 

11 Approve temporary entry permit with Bureau of Reclamation for gravel injection 112 

C. Action Calendar:
Page No. 

12 Review and take possible action to award bid to Njirich & Sons Inc., as the lowest 
responsive and responsible bidder for the North Main Canal Tunnels 3 & 4 Rehabilitation 
Project and authorize General Manager to execute associated change orders 

118 

13 Review and take possible action to approve Work Release No. 45 to Professional Services 
Agreement 2009-PSA-001 with Provost & Pritchard, Inc. to provide construction 
management and Quality Assurance Services for the Oakdale Irrigation District North Main 
Canal Tunnels 3 & 4 Rehabilitation Project 

126 

14 Review and take possible action regarding OID Potentially Joining the Valley AG Water 
Coalition 

130 

15 Review and take possible action to adopt a resolution authorizing the disposal of property 
no longer necessary for district purposes and authorizing staff to proceed with sale of APN 

150 



063-014-030 ID 41 Well Site #3

16 Review and take possible action to approve revisions to the OID Rules and Regulations 154 

17 Review and take possible action to continue to provide irrigation water after the end of the 
water year on September 30, 2023 to in-district lands only 

162 

18 Review and take possible action regarding OID potentially granting the Me-Wuk Tribe an 
extension of time to complete CEQA in our Water Transfer Agreement 

166 

19 Review and take possible action regarding OID potentially sponsoring the Magnolia 
Elementary School 4th Grade class to view the salmon run at Knights Ferry 

171 

D. Communications:

20 Directors’ Comments/Suggestions 

21 Committee Reports 

22 General Manager’s report on the status of OID activities 

23 Water Counsel report 

E. Closed Session:

24 Government Code §54956.9(d)(2) – Potential Exposure to Litigation – 2 cases 

25 Government Code §54956.9(d)(2) – Personnel Evaluation (two items) 

F. Adjournment:

• The next Regular Board Meeting of the Oakdale Irrigation District Board of Directors is
scheduled for Tuesday, October 3, 2023, at 9:00 a.m. in the board room at 1205 East F Street,
Oakdale, CA.

• The next Joint Board Meeting of the South San Joaquin and Oakdale Irrigation Districts serving
the Tri-Dam Project and Tri-Dam Power Authority and other joint business matters is scheduled
for Thursday, September 21, 2023, at 9:00 a.m. at the office of Oakdale Irrigation District, Oakdale,
CA.

Writings distributed to Board Members in connection with the open session items on this agenda are available for 
public inspection in the office of the Board Secretary. Any person who has a question concerning any of the agenda 
items may call the Executive Assistant at (209) 840-5507.   

ADA Compliance Statement:  In compliance with the Americans with Disability Act, if you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the Executive Assistant at (209) 840-5507.  Notification 48 hours prior to 
the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. 



Page 1 of 181Page 1 of 173



Page 2 of 181Page 2 of 173



Page 3 of 181Page 3 of 173



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 
        Date:   September 12, 2023 
        Item Number: 2 
        Staff:    Scot A. Moody 
 
 
SUBJECT: APPROVE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF AUGUST 1, 2023 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the Board of Directors Minutes of the Regular Meeting of 

AUGUST 1, 2023  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 Draft Minutes of the Board of Directors’ Meeting of August 1, 2023 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 
 
VOTE: 
Orvis (Yes/No)  Doornenbal (Yes/No)  Santos (Yes/No)  DeBoer (Yes/No)  Tobias (Yes/No) 
 
Action(s) to be taken: 

Page 4 of 181Page 4 of 173



 

MINUTES 
 

       Oakdale, California 
        August 1, 2023 

 
The Board of Directors of the Oakdale Irrigation District invited all to recite the Pledge of Allegiance and 
then met in Session at the hour of 9:00 a.m. Upon roll call, there were present: 
 

Directors:  Tom Orvis, President 
Brad DeBoer, Vice President 

   Linda Santos 
    Ed Tobias 
 

Staff Present:   Scot A. Moody, General Manager/Secretary 
    Sharon Cisneros, Chief Financial Officer 

Kim Bukhari, Human Resources Administrator 
Eric Thorburn, District Engineer/Water Operations Manager  

                         (via Zoom) 
Joe Kosakiewicz, Construction and Maintenance Manager 

    Michael Ballinger, IT Systems Administrator 
         
 Also Present:  Tim O’Laughlin, Water Counsel (via Zoom) 
    Fred Silva, General Counsel  
     
 

ACTION TO TAKE VARIOUS ITEMS OUT OF SEQUENCE 
 
There were no items taken out of sequence. 
 
At the hour of 9:00 a.m., the Board welcomed public comment. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
Public Comment closed at 9:02 a.m. and the Board Meeting continued. 
 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR 
ITEM NOS. 1-4 

 
 

1 Approve the Board of Directors Minutes of the Regular Meeting of July 11, 2023 
2 Approve Oakdale Irrigation District’s Statement of Obligations 
3 Approve OID Improvement Districts’ Statement of Obligations 
4 Adopt the Resolution with San Joaquin County for Placement of Delinquent Fixed Charges on the 

2023/2024 Tax Rolls 
 
A motion was made by Director Santos, and seconded by Director Tobias, to approve the above 
noted Consent Calendar items: 
 

Page 5 of 181Page 5 of 173



Director Orvis   Yes 
Director DeBoer  Yes 
Director Santos  Yes 

  Director Tobias  Yes 
 
The motion passed by a 4-0 vote. 
 
 

ACTION CALENDAR 
ITEM NOS. 5 and 6 

 
Item No. 5 

Review and Take Possible Action to Approve the Treasurer’s Report, the mid-year budget report and 
Financial Statements for the Six Months Ending June 30, 2023 

 
 

A motion was made by Director Santos, and seconded by Director DeBoer, to approve the Treasurer’s 
Report, the mid-year budget report and Financial Statements for the Six Months Ending June 30, 
2023: 
  

Director Orvis   Yes 
Director DeBoer  Yes 
Director Santos  Yes 

  Director Tobias  Yes 
 
The motion passed by a 4-0 vote. 
 
 

Item No. 6 
Review and Take Possible Action regarding sponsorship of the Children’s Guardian Home 

 
 

A motion was made by Director DeBoer, and seconded by Director Santos, to approve sponsoring 
the Annual Children’s Guardian Home: 
 

Director Orvis   Yes 
Director DeBoer  Yes 
Director Santos  Yes 

  Director Tobias  Yes 
 
The motion passed by a 4-0 vote. 
 

PRESENTATION 
ITEM NO. 7 

 
Presentation from Construction and Maintenance Manager Regarding  

Activities of the Department  
 

A Powerpoint presentation was given by Joe Kosakiewicz regarding activities of the Construction 
and Maintenance department. 
 

Page 6 of 181Page 6 of 173



Director Orvis requested that the Powerpoint be e-mailed to the Directors.  Director Orvis also 
suggested maybe use of drone footage in the future. 
 
Director DeBoer inquired as to Manager Kosakiewicz’s biggest challenge in the Construction and 
Maintenance department.   

 
 

COMMUNICATIONS 
ITEM NOS. 8 - 11 

 
Item No. 8 

Directors’ Comments/Suggestions 
 
 
Director Orvis: 
Director Orvis welcomed Julie Hassell to OID as the new Executive Assistant/Clerk to the Board.  
Director Orvis requested that the Board receive a copy of the Construction and Maintenance 
Manager’s presentation. Director Orvis further mentioned that the Day Use area of Tulloch is now 
open.  Additionally, Director Orvis mentioned to build on some things – opportunity for Boards to 
speak to each other. 
 
Director Tobias: 
Director Tobias felt sponsorship of Item No. 6 should be cut back to $1,250. Director Tobias 
expressed his appreciation for Manager Kosakawiecz’s presentation to the Board. Director Tobias 
further mentioned a long discussion was had at Tri-Dam regarding insurance issues and the Boards 
came to an agreement. 
 
Director DeBoer: 
Director DeBoer agreed to sponsor Item No. 6 subject to General Manager Scot Moody clarifying 
how OID would be presented at the event.  Director DeBoer expressed he feels we have a great 
staff here.  Director DeBoer thanked Chief Financial Officer Cisneros for her presentation to the 
board regarding Item No. 8.  Director DeBoer also suggested maybe having sub-contractors in 
place to help with short-staffing issues. 
 
Director DeBoer suggested placing the audio recording of Item No. 7 on the website and also  
suggested that there be a presentation at Tri-Dam regarding new laws. 
 
Director DeBoer further mentioned to always be mindful of our constituents. 
 
Director Santos: 
Director Santos stated that low-income families may not understand sponsorship and to keep in 
mind for all sponsoring in the future. 
 
Director Santos expressed that the weekly sheets presented by the Construction and Maintenance 
department have been extremely helpful and familiarizes her with both the crews and their 
responsibilities.  Director Santos also mentioned that she appreciated the visual pictures.  This 
gives a better understanding of what is involved in the projects.  Director Santos presented the 
question to Joe Kosakiewicz to clarify what the Pest area handles. 
 
Finally, Director Santos thanked both Joe and Sharon and expressed that she likes the Work Order 
setup and suggested that we all continue to work towards the same goal. 
 
 

Page 7 of 181Page 7 of 173



Item No. 9 
Committee Reports 

 
 
Director Tobias: 
Director Tobias discussed attendance at the Tri-Dam Advisory meeting wherein there was a legal 
discussion regarding representation. 
 
General Manager Moody: 
General Manager Moody conveyed some of the obstacles Summer has been working on recently.  
She is entertaining the idea of a consortium to direct specialized counsel/attorney.  It was mentioned 
to possibly entertain the idea of specialized counsel regarding electricity. 
 
 

Item No. 10 
General Manager’s report on the status of OID activities 

 
Scot Moody, General Manager, gave an update regarding water accounting framework (related to 
San Joaquin Basin).  This will quantify who owns what and who pumps what.  GM Moody also 
mentioned that the GSP was accepted by the State Board and that Stanislaus is due next year.  
Additionally, GM Moody brought up the strategy of potentially keeping dump trucks in-house for cost-
saving purposes. 
 
GM Moody recommended to Manager Kosakawiecz that he give presentation to his crew members 
as well. 
 
GM Moody informed the Board that he and a team have been working on updating personnel policies 
and if the Board wants to take the revisions to committee, etc., there can be a discussion. 
 
 

Item No. 11 
Water Counsel Report 

 
There was no report from Water Counsel. 
 
At 10:46 a.m., President Orvis read the items to be discussed in closed session and opened for 
public comment on these items. 
 
There was no public comment. 
 
At the hour of 10:47 a.m. public comment closed, the Board took a recess and reconvened to 
closed session at 10:55 a.m. 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
ITEM NO. 12 

 
12 Government Code §54956.9(d)(1) – Existing Litigation – 2 cases 

San Joaquin Tributaries Authority, et al v. California State Water Resources Control Board, County 
of Sacramento Superior Court, Case No. JCCP 5013 

 
Attorney Tim O’Laughlin joined via telephone and left at 11:26 a.m. 
 

Page 8 of 181Page 8 of 173



President Orvis mentioned the next Tri-Dam meeting will be held at SSJID in Manteca on  
August 17, 2023.  President Orvis also mentioned that due to the Labor Day holiday, the next 
Regular Board Meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, September 12, 2023 at 9:00 a.m. 
 
(Director Tobias left the board room at 11:30 a.m.) 
 
At the hour of 11:43 a.m. the board reconvened to open session 
 
Coming out of Closed Session, President Orvis stated there were no reportable actions: 
 
 

OTHER ACTION 
 

At the hour of 11:44 a.m. the meeting was adjourned. The next Board Meeting of the Oakdale Irrigation 
District Board of Directors is scheduled for Tuesday, September 12, 2023, at 9:00 a.m. Details can 
be obtained by calling (209) 847-0341. 
 
The next Joint Board Meeting of the South San Joaquin and Oakdale Irrigation Districts serving the Tri-
Dam Project and Tri-Dam Authority and other joint business matters is scheduled for Thursday, 
August 17, 2023, at 9:00 a.m. at the office of Tri-Dam, Manteca CA. 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Thomas D. Orvis, President 
Attest:       Board of Directors 
 
____________________________ 
Scot A. Moody 
General Manager/Secretary  

Page 9 of 181Page 9 of 173



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 

        Date:   September 12, 2023 
        Item Number:  3 
        APN:    N/A 

 
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVE OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT’S STATEMENT OF OBLIGATIONS 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Statement of Obligations 
 
 
TOP TEN OBLIGATIONS 
 
Vendor Purpose       Amount 
   IRS Payroll Taxes                                                     $ 130,360.23 
PG&E Electricity – July 89,072.03 
CalPERS Retirement Contribution 86,649.88 
Kaiser Healthcare Insurance – September 51,620.17 
Alligare LLC Magnacide H 46,836.96 
Sutter Health Plus Healthcare – September 43,305.96 
Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group WR# 035 and WR# 039 31,783.43 
Steve Harkrader Trucking Hauling Dirt Services 28,902.75 
South San Joaquin Irrigation District WR# 1902 27,443.60 
EDD Payroll Taxes 24,423.97 

 
 
     
    
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  $931,766.50 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 Statement of Obligations – Check Register 

 
 
Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 
 
VOTE: 
DeBoer (Yes/No)  Doornenbal (Yes/No)  Orvis (Yes/No)  Santos (Yes/No)  Tobias (Yes/No) 
 
Action(s) to be taken: 

Other Obligations: 371,367.52 
                       Total Obligations:                    $ 931,766.50 

Page 10 of 181Page 10 of 173



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

STATEMENT

OF 

OBLIGATIONS

 

9/12/2023

Page 11 of 181Page 11 of 173



Accounts Payable Oakdale Irrigation District

Check Register - July 26, 2023 - August 27, 2023 1205 East F Street
Oakdale, CA  95361

Description

7/26/2023 33514 Blase, Jimmy 34.98$                  Emergency Call Mileage Reimbursement

7/30/2023 730231 Samba Holdings, Inc. 195.02                  Fleet Watch - June

7/31/2023 731231 Internal Revenue Service 5,288.52               Payroll Taxes

7/31/2023 731232 Employment Development Department 1,236.24               Payroll Taxes

7/31/2023 731233 California Public Employees' Retirement System 449.20                  Retirement Contribution

7/31/2023 731234 VOYA Retirement 323.06                  Retirement Contribution

7/31/2023 731236 Clover Services 44.95                    Monthly Subscription - August

7/31/2023 731237 Modesto Irrigation District 1,271.48               Electricity - July

8/1/2023 801231 Internal Revenue Service 1,070.81               Payroll Taxes

8/1/2023 801232 Employment Development Department 37.44                    Payroll Taxes

8/4/2023 804231 Internal Revenue Service 60,035.58             Payroll Taxes

8/4/2023 804232 ICMA Retirement 4,261.47               Retirement Contribution

8/4/2023 804233 Employment Development Department 11,015.65             Payroll Taxes

8/4/2023 804235 VOYA Retirement 9,496.39               Retirement Contribution

8/4/2023 804237 CalPERS 42,590.78             Retirement Contribution

8/7/2023 807231 Internal Revenue Service 467.09                  Payroll Taxes

8/7/2023 807232 California Public Employees' Retirement System 276.95                  Retirement Contribution

8/7/2023 807233 Employment Development Department 94.05                    Payroll Taxes

8/7/2023 807234 VOYA Retirement 297.39                  Retirement Contribution

8/7/2023 807236 California Public Employees' Retirement System 700.00                  Retirement Contribution

8/7/2023 807239 Visa 4,252.33               2023 Annual CSDA Conference, AC Unit, Door, Drywall and Shelves

8/8/2023 33515 Ace Hardware 84.80                    Bolts, Handy Boxes, Wire and Compound Premix

8/8/2023 33516 ACWA-JPIA 9,870.44               Dental and Vision Insurance - September

8/8/2023 33517 Airgas USA, LLC 488.51                  Cyclinder Rental, Nitrogen, Acetylene and Oxygen

8/8/2023 33518 Alligare LLC 46,836.96             Magnacide H

8/8/2023 33519 All Rigging Company 452.52                  Slings

8/8/2023 33520 Amazon Capital Services 1,066.51               Converters, Sanitizer Pellets, Fan and Cable Hooks

8/8/2023 33521 Ameriflex 1,641.24               FSA-125

8/8/2023 33522 Applied Technology Group, Inc. 72.04                    Cable

8/8/2023 33523 Ardurra Group, Inc. 1,555.00               Monument Preservation

8/8/2023 33524 California Special Districts Association 625.00                  2023 Board Secretary/Clerk Conference - Julie Hassell

8/8/2023 33525 California State Disbursement Unit 533.53                  Levy

8/8/2023 33526 Casey Records Management 216.00                  Shredding Services - July

8/8/2023 33527 Central Irrigation Modesto, LLC 1,442.29               Adapters, Reducers, Cap and Couplers

8/8/2023 33528 Chicago Title Co. 76.00                    Refund For: 6460 Lon Dale Rd Oakdale

8/8/2023 33529 City of Oakdale Utilites 9,103.23               Water Usage

8/8/2023 33530 Coelho, Frank 45.00                    Productivity Enhancement Certificates

8/8/2023 33531 Colonial Life 2,712.26               Supplemental Insurance - July

8/8/2023 33532 Comcast 424.55                  Analog Lines, TV and Internet - July

8/8/2023 33533 Consumers Choice Pest Control 85.00                    Pest Control Services

8/8/2023 33534 Cooley, Tyler 1,250.00               2022 - 2023 Scholarship Award

8/8/2023 33535 Cutting Edge Supply 1,255.66               Blades and Bolts

8/8/2023 33536 Far West Laboratories, Inc. 493.00                  Bac-T and Coliform Testing - May

8/8/2023 33537 Frasco Profiles 255.75                  Background Check

8/8/2023 33538 Fresno Valves & Castings, Inc. 602.85                  Air Vents, Top, Gasket and Bolts

8/8/2023 33539 George Reed, Inc. 23,371.22             AB-CL II and 18" Minus

8/8/2023 33540 Gilton Solid Waste Management, Inc. 438.15                  Refuse Charges - July

8/8/2023 33541 Grainger 103.52                  Louver Plate Kit

8/8/2023 33542 Grover Landscape Services, Inc. 567.10                  Landscaping Services - July

8/8/2023 33543 Haidlen Ford 2,183.74               DEF, Ball Joint, Water Pump Kit and Condsenser

8/8/2023 33544 Holt of California, Inc. 2,237.85               Wiper Motor, Latch Assembly, Sensor and Seals

8/8/2023 33545 Hunt & Sons Inc. 16,242.67             Fuel

8/8/2023 33546 Interstate Truck Center 324.23                  Mud Flaps, Flex Pipe and Clamps

8/8/2023 33547 Kaiser Foundation Health Plan, Inc. 51,620.17             Healthcare Insurance - September

8/8/2023 33548 Liebert Cassidy Whitmore 5,805.00               Personnel Rules Update 2022

8/8/2023 33549 Lincoln National Life Insurance Company 644.49                  Life Insurance - August

8/8/2023 33550 The McClatchy Company, LLC 1,410.00               Social Media Recruitment For DSO, C&M and Accountant Position

8/8/2023 33551 Mission Uniform Service 863.37                  Uniform Services

8/8/2023 33552 Moore Quality Galvanizing L.P. 454.16                  Pipe Rails and Covers

8/8/2023 33553 Morrill Industries, Inc. 1,260.13               Couplers

8/8/2023 33554 NBS 2,368.75               Irrigation CAP Study - July

8/8/2023 33555 Next Level Parts, Inc. 129.33                  Fittings and Kitty Litter

8/8/2023 33556 North Coast Laboratories Ltd. 820.00                  Aquatic Pesticide Water Samples

8/8/2023 33557 Oakdale Garden Club 50.00                    2023 Autumn Garden Tour Donation

Check No

Check 

Date Vendor Name Amount

1
Page 12 of 181Page 12 of 173



Accounts Payable Oakdale Irrigation District

Check Register - July 26, 2023 - August 27, 2023 1205 East F Street
Oakdale, CA  95361

DescriptionCheck No

Check 

Date Vendor Name Amount

8/8/2023 33558 Oakdale Leader 727.20                  Notice Of Bids For North Main Segment 1 Project

8/8/2023 33559 ODP Business Solutions LLC 621.35                  Office Supplies

8/8/2023 33560 Cash 158.33                  San Joaquin Farm Bureau Meeting and Lunch Meetings

8/8/2023 33561 Ontel Security Services, Inc. 275.00                  Security Monitoring - July

8/8/2023 33562 Pakmail 455.51                  Shipping and Notary Services

8/8/2023 33563 Pape Kenworth 449.17                  Filters, Clamp and Bushings

8/8/2023 33564 Pape Machinery - Power Plan 57.43                    Fuses and Relays

8/8/2023 33565 P&D Ventures Inc. 2,383.21               Janitorial Services - August

8/8/2023 33566 Portola Systems, Inc. 8,284.00               HPE Nimble Storage Warranty Renewal

8/8/2023 33567 Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group, Inc. 31,783.43             WR# 035 and WR# 039

8/8/2023 33568 Safe-T-Lite of Modesto, Inc. 405.72                  Lathes and Guineas

8/8/2023 33569 San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District 290.00                  2023/2024 Annual Generator Permit-Facility ID N4762

8/8/2023 33570 Santos, Linda 134.50                  2023 Water Users Conference Meal Reimbursement

8/8/2023 33571 Sheldon, Emily 1,429.78               Hotel and Mileage Reimbursement for the ERSI User Confernece

8/8/2023 33572 Snap-on Industrial 61.28                    Lead Set

8/8/2023 33573 Stanislaus County Tax Collector 314.82                  Assessment: 6000 Albers Rd.

8/8/2023 33574 Steve Harkrader Trucking 28,902.75             Hauling Dirt Services

8/8/2023 33575 Streamline 497.00                  Member Web Services - August

8/8/2023 33576 Sutter Health Plus 43,305.96             Healthcare Insurance - September

8/8/2023 33577 Teter, LLP 23,342.50             WR# 003

8/8/2023 33578 Tim O'Laughlin A Professional Law Corporation 3,600.00               Legal Matters

8/8/2023 33579 TP Express 2,475.00               Regular and Single Restrooms - August

8/8/2023 33580 Tri-West Tractor Incorporated 2,706.74               Elements, Bucket Pins and Sensor Assembly

8/8/2023 33581 Marting, Jonathan & Debbie 46.07                    Refund Check

8/8/2023 33582 UBEO Business Services 544.24                  Copier Usage

8/8/2023 33583 Underground Service Alert of Northern California 4,244.34               2023 Membership Renewal and Cal State Fee For Regulatory Costs

8/8/2023 33584 United Rentals Northwest, Inc. 519.90                  Vacuum Trailer Rental

8/8/2023 33585 Valley Tire Sales, Inc. 4,928.80               Tires

8/8/2023 33586 Valley View Plumbing 250.00                  Sewer System Clean Out

8/8/2023 33587 Verizon 1,498.95               Vehicle Tracking Services - July

8/14/2023 814231 AmeriFlex 305.50                  FSA Admin Fees - August

8/15/2023 815231 Internal Revenue Service 5,037.01               Payroll Taxes

8/15/2023 815232 VOYA Retirement 230.78                  Retirement Contribution

8/15/2023 815233 Employment Development Department 1,340.53               Payroll Taxes

8/18/2023 818231 Internal Revenue Service 58,461.22             Payroll Taxes

8/18/2023 818232 Employment Development Department 10,700.06             Payroll Taxes

8/18/2023 818233 VOYA Retirement 9,142.09               Retirement Contribution

8/18/2023 818234 ICMA Retirement 4,261.47               Retirement Contribution

8/21/2023 33588 Aarons Heating & Air Inc. 165.00                  Day Room A/C Repair

8/21/2023 33589 Ace Hardware 141.33                  Paint, Sprayer and Insect Killer

8/21/2023 33590 All Rigging Company 225.27                  Sling and Anchor Shackles

8/21/2023 33591 Amazon Capital Services 383.92                  Shelf, Power Strip and Screwdriver Set

8/21/2023 33592 Ameriflex 1,481.24               FSA-125

8/21/2023 33593 Ardurra Group, Inc. 225.00                  WR# 02

8/21/2023 33594 Sierra Mountain Construction, Inc. 474.72                  AR Refund

8/21/2023 33595 Bobcat Central, Inc. 468.83                  Tee, Stop Tube and Gas Springs

8/21/2023 33596 Bumgardner Biological Consulting, Inc. 875.00                  WR# 01

8/21/2023 33597 California State Disbursement Unit 533.53                  Levy

8/21/2023 33598 Central Valley Ag Grinding, Inc. 242.00                  Green Waste - July

8/21/2023 33599 Central Irrigation Modesto, LLC 5,606.72               Pipe, Elbows, Reducers and Tees

8/21/2023 33600 Children's Guardian Fund 1,250.00               2023 Children's Guardian Home Sponsorship

8/21/2023 33601 Coffee Break Service, Inc. 190.00                  Coffee Services

8/21/2023 33602 Comcast Business 398.45                  Office Phone Charges - July

8/21/2023 33603 CoreLogic Solutions, LLC 300.50                  Real Quest - July

8/21/2023 33604 Core & Main LP 7,750.28               Gates

8/21/2023 33605 Damrell, Nelson, Schrimp, Pallios, Pacher & Silva 9,396.00               Legal Matters

8/21/2023 33606 Far West Laboratories, Inc. 648.00                  Bac-T, Nitrate and VOC Testing

8/21/2023 33607 Fastenal Company 2,556.99               Flap Disks, Bins, Zip Ties, Drill Bits, Marine Seal and Batteries

8/21/2023 33608 First American Title Company 65.00                    Refund: 24900 Dodds Rd, Oakdale

8/21/2023 33609 Fresno Valves & Castings, Inc. 1,120.16               Canal Gate

8/21/2023 33610 George Reed, Inc. 379.10                  18" Minus

8/21/2023 33611 George W. Lowry, Inc. 4,551.97               Oil

8/21/2023 33612 Gilton Resource Recovery Transfer Facility, Inc. 22,337.16             Green, Solid and Concrete Waste - July

8/21/2023 33613 Gilton Solid Waste Management, Inc. 524.95                  Refuse Charges - July

2
Page 13 of 181Page 13 of 173



Accounts Payable Oakdale Irrigation District

Check Register - July 26, 2023 - August 27, 2023 1205 East F Street
Oakdale, CA  95361

DescriptionCheck No

Check 

Date Vendor Name Amount

8/21/2023 33614 Gold Star Painting 11,260.00             WR# 01

8/21/2023 33615 Haidlen Ford 2,268.46               Ball Joints, Filters, Elements, Sensors and Brake Pads

8/21/2023 33616 Holt of California, Inc. 244.26                  Pump and Door Pin Assembly

8/21/2023 33617 Ketchum Jr., Castle 30.52                    On-Call Mileage Reimbursement

8/21/2023 33618 Liebert Cassidy Whitmore 3,153.19               General Services and Personnel Rules Update 2022

8/21/2023 33619 Mission Uniform Service 806.89                  Uniform Services

8/21/2023 33620 Morrill Industries, Inc. 5,794.01               Couplers

8/21/2023 33621 Motor Parts Distributors, Inc. 468.39                  Oil

8/21/2023 33622 NBS 2,000.00               Irrigation COS Study - July

8/21/2023 33623 Next Level Parts, Inc. 402.91                  Battery, Switch, Belts, Hoses and Filter

8/21/2023 33624 North Coast Laboratories Ltd. 620.00                  Aquatic Pesticide Water Samples

8/21/2023 33625 Oakdale Leader 30.00                    2023 Community Awareness - Back To School

8/21/2023 33626 ODP Business Solutions LLC 688.00                  Toner and Office Supplies

8/21/2023 33627 OID Improvement Districts 22,832.80             July 2023 Reimbursement

8/21/2023 33628 Operating Engineers Union Local No. 3 3,264.00               Union Dues

8/21/2023 33629 P G & E 89,072.03             Electricity - July

8/21/2023 33630 Pacific Bay Equipment 113.28                  Gun and Lance Combo

8/21/2023 33631 Pakmail 378.42                  Notary and Shipping Services

8/21/2023 33632 Pape Kenworth 809.45                  Wiper Arm, Headlight and Glass Mirror Assembly

8/21/2023 33633 Pape Machinery - Power Plan 546.07                  Solenoid

8/21/2023 33634 P & L Concrete Products, Inc. 138.78                  Concrete

8/21/2023 33635 South San Joaquin Irrigation District 27,443.60             WR# 1902

8/21/2023 33636 Springbrook Holding Company, LLC 152.00                  Civic Pay - July

8/21/2023 33637 Stanislaus County Farm Bureau 250.00                  2023 Spray Safe Sponsorship

8/21/2023 33638 Sutter Gould Medical Foundation 282.00                  Pre-Employment Medical Exams

8/21/2023 33639 Target Specialty Products 15,786.79             Round Up and Capstone

8/21/2023 33640 Tri-West Tractor Incorporated 3,868.83               Bucket Pins, Cutting Teeth and Elements

8/21/2023 33641 United Rentals Northwest, Inc. 3,727.99               Chipper  and Vacuum Trailer Rental

8/21/2023 33642 UPL NA Inc. 23,999.91             Cascade

8/21/2023 33643 Valley Tire Sales, Inc. 5,428.61               Tires

8/21/2023 33644 Verizon Wireless 3,146.96               Cell phone and Ipad Charges - July

8/21/2023 33645 Whip Around, Inc. 7,053.46               Vehicle Maintenance Renewal

8/21/2023 33646 White Cap Construction Supply 747.78                  Extension Ladder and Swellstop Rolls

8/21/2023 33647 Wienhoff Drug Testing, Inc. 340.00                  Random Drug Testing

8/23/2023 823231 California Public Employees' Retirement System 42,632.95             Retirement Contribution

931,766.50$        

3
Page 14 of 181Page 14 of 173



THE FOREGOING CLAIMS, NUMBERED 33514 THROUGH 33647, 730231, 731231 

THROUGH 731237, 801231 THROUGH 801232, 804231 THROUGH 804235, 804237, 

807231 THROUGH 807234, 807236, 807239, 814231, 815231 THROUGH 815233, 

818231 THROUGH 818234, 823231. INCLUSIVE ARE APPLIED TO THE GENERAL 

FUND OF OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT AND ARE OBLIGATIONS AUTHORIZED 

THERETO.

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF OBLIGATIONS

9/05/2023

Voided Check: 

Page 15 of 181Page 15 of 173



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 

        Date:   September 12, 2023 
        Item Number:  4 
        APN:    N/A 

 
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVE OID IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS’ STATEMENT OF OBLIGATIONS 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve OID Improvement Districts’ Statement of Obligations 
 
 
 
Vendor Purpose       Amount 
   Oakdale Irrigation District July O & M Expenses $        33,800.06 

    
   
   
   
   
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  $33,800.06 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 Statement of Obligations – Accounts Payable 

 
 
Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 
 
VOTE: 
DeBoer (Yes/No)  Doornenbal (Yes/No)  Orvis (Yes/No)  Santos (Yes/No)  Tobias (Yes/No) 
 
Action(s) to be taken: 

  
Total Obligations:  $       33,800.06 

  

Page 16 of 181Page 16 of 173



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 0163

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT ACCOUNT

DATE: 8/22/2023 TO:  Oakdale Irrigation District
MAINTENANCE PAYABLE 

July July

I.D. # O & M Expense I.D. # O & M Expense 

1 31 Note:  

2 36 Included Misc.

8 38 Recon. Items

13 41 8,720.83

19 25.71 45 4,237.81

20 46 10,992.25

21 48 76.71

22 1,598.13 51 8,116.06

26 52

29 32.56

SUB-TOTAL $1,656.40 SUB-TOTAL $32,143.66 SUB-TOTAL $0.00

             VOUCHER CHARGES

Maintenance & Operations $33,800.06

Prepaid Expense $0.00

TOTAL AMOUNT $33,800.06

Page 17 of 181Page 17 of 173



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS

STATEMENT OF OBLIGATIONS

CHECK

NO. PAYABLE TO:  AMOUNT DATE

0154 VOID

0155 OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 14,783.32$        02/01/2023

0156 OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 7,935.11            03/01/2023

0157 OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 11,164.85          03/29/2023

0158 VOID

0159 OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 10,830.95          04/26/2023

0160 OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 12,444.29          05/24/2023

0161 OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 30,350.19          06/29/2023

0162 OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 23,779.27          07/19/2023

0163 OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 33,800.06          08/22/2023

GENERAL FUNDS OF THE OAKDALE IRRIGATION'S IMPROVEMENT 

DISTRICTS AND ARE AUTHORIZED THERETO.

FOR JANUARY 1, 2023 - AUGUST 22, 2023

  THE FOREGOING CLAIM NUMBERED 0163 WERE APPLIED TO 

Page 18 of 181Page 18 of 173



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
Date:  September 12, 2023 
Item Number: 5 
APN:   N/A  

SUBJECT: APPROVE REJECTION OF CLAIM SUBMITTED BY BOUNSACK SENGPHACHANH 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Reject the claim and forward to ACWA JPIA for further action 

BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 

This claim is associated with damage to private pond that occurred on July 31, 2023. The claim form 
submitted by claimant is attached for your reference.   

Staff recommends rejecting the claim and forwarding it to ACWA JPIA for resolution.  

A rejection by the Board is not a statement that it disagrees with the claim nor is it an admission of 
fault.   

FISCAL IMPACT:  Unknown 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 Claim Form

Board Motion: 

Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 

VOTE:   
DeBoer (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No)  Orvis (Yes/No)  Santos (Yes/No)  Tobias (Yes/No)  

Action(s) to be taken: 

Page 19 of 181Page 19 of 173



Page 20 of 181Page 20 of 173



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
Date: September 12, 2023 
Item Number: 6 
APN: N/A 

SUBJECT: APPROVE REJECTION OF CLAIM SUBMITTED BY B&D LAW GROUP, APLC ON 
BEHALF OF KEIRA HERNANDEZ 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Reject the claim and forward to ACWA JPIA for further action 
 
 

BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 
 

This claim was filed on behalf of Keira Hernandez and is associated with bus accident that occurred 
on February 24, 2023. The claim submitted by claimant is attached for your reference. 

 
Staff recommends rejecting the claim and forwarding it to ACWA JPIA for resolution. 

 
A rejection by the Board is not a statement that it disagrees with the claim nor is it an admission of 
fault. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: Unknown 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 Claim Form 

 
 

Board Motion: 
 

Motion by:  Second by:    
 

VOTE: 
DeBoer (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Orvis (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) Tobias (Yes/No) 

Action(s) to be taken: 
Page 21 of 181Page 21 of 173



Received 8.24.23

Page 22 of 181Page 22 of 173



Page 23 of 181Page 23 of 173



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
Date: September 12, 2023 
Item Number: 7 
APN: N/A 

SUBJECT: APPROVE REJECTION OF CLAIM SUBMITTED BY AIMAN-SMITH & MARCY ON 
BEHALF OF CARI MCCORMICK 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Reject the claim and forward to ACWA JPIA for further action 
 
 

BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 
 

This claim was filed on behalf of Cari McCormick and is associated a discrimination complaint filed 
against the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) that occurred on or about 
June 1, 2023. The claim submitted by claimant is attached for your reference. 

 
Staff recommends rejecting the claim and forwarding it to ACWA JPIA for resolution. 

 
A rejection by the Board is not a statement that it disagrees with the claim nor is it an admission of 
fault. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: Unknown 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 Complaint 

 
 

Board Motion: 
 

Motion by:  Second by:    
 

VOTE: 
DeBoer (Yes/No) Doornenbal (Yes/No) Orvis (Yes/No) Santos (Yes/No) Tobias (Yes/No) 

Action(s) to be taken: 
Page 24 of 181Page 24 of 173



Page 25 of 181Page 25 of 173



Page 26 of 181Page 26 of 173



Page 27 of 181Page 27 of 173



Page 28 of 181Page 28 of 173



Page 29 of 181Page 29 of 173



Page 30 of 181Page 30 of 173



Page 31 of 181Page 31 of 173



Page 32 of 181Page 32 of 173



Page 33 of 181Page 33 of 173



Page 34 of 181Page 34 of 173



Page 35 of 181Page 35 of 173



Page 36 of 181Page 36 of 173



Page 37 of 181Page 37 of 173



Page 38 of 181Page 38 of 173



Page 39 of 181Page 39 of 173



Page 40 of 181Page 40 of 173



Page 41 of 181Page 41 of 173



Page 42 of 181Page 42 of 173



Page 43 of 181Page 43 of 173



Page 44 of 181Page 44 of 173



Page 45 of 181Page 45 of 173



Page 46 of 181Page 46 of 173



Page 47 of 181Page 47 of 173



Page 48 of 181Page 48 of 173



Page 49 of 181Page 49 of 173



Page 50 of 181Page 50 of 173



Page 51 of 181Page 51 of 173



Page 52 of 181Page 52 of 173



Page 53 of 181Page 53 of 173



Page 54 of 181Page 54 of 173



Page 55 of 181Page 55 of 173



Page 56 of 181Page 56 of 173



Page 57 of 181Page 57 of 173



Page 58 of 181Page 58 of 173



Page 59 of 181Page 59 of 173



Page 60 of 181Page 60 of 173



Page 61 of 181Page 61 of 173



Page 62 of 181Page 62 of 173



Page 63 of 181Page 63 of 173



Page 64 of 181Page 64 of 173



Page 65 of 181Page 65 of 173



Page 66 of 181Page 66 of 173



Page 67 of 181Page 67 of 173



Page 68 of 181Page 68 of 173



Page 69 of 181Page 69 of 173



Page 70 of 181Page 70 of 173



Page 71 of 181Page 71 of 173



Page 72 of 181Page 72 of 173



Page 73 of 181Page 73 of 173



Page 74 of 181Page 74 of 173



Page 75 of 181Page 75 of 173



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 

        Date:  September 12, 2023   
        Item Number:   8 
        APN:    N/A 

 
 
SUBJECT: APPROVE BOARD ATTENDANCE AT THE ACWA FALL CONFERENCE AND 

EXPO, NOVEMBER 28-30, 2023 IN INDIAN WELLS, CA 
 
  
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve Directors’ attendance at the ACWA Fall Conference and Expo, 
November 28-30, 2023 in Indian Wells, CA  
 
 
BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 
 
The ACWA Fall Conference is scheduled for November 28-30, 2023 in Indian Wells, CA.  This is 
being brought to the Board for approval of the Directors’ attendance at the conference. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Full Conference and Meals – Early Registration is $815 (by 11/17/23) 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 Preliminary Agenda 

 
 
Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 
 
VOTE:   
Orvis (Yes/No)  Doornenbal (Yes/No)  Santos (Yes/No)  DeBoer (Yes/No)  Tobias (Yes/No) 
 
Action(s) to be taken: 
 

Page 76 of 181Page 76 of 173



PRELIMINARY AGENDA

TUES WED THUR
7:30 AM – 8:30 AM
CONTINENTAL BREAKFAST  
IN THE EXHIBIT HALL

8:30 AM – 10:00 AM
WELCOME KEYNOTE/MAIN STAGE 
• ACWA State of the Association
• Keynote Presentation
• ACWA JPIA Update
• Emissary Award

10:30 AM – 11:45 AM 
PROGRAM SESSIONS 

12:00 PM – 1:30 PM 
CONNECT IN THE EXHIBIT HALL
NETWORKING BBQ LUNCH

1:30 PM – 2:00 PM
SOLUTION SPOTLIGHTS
• Member Case Study, Associate Service, Demo

1:30 PM – 2:15 PM
WATER TALK / MAIN STAGE 

2:30 PM – 3:30 PM
PROGRAM SESSIONS 

3:45 PM – 5:00 PM
REGION 1-10 MEMBERSHIP MEETINGS

5:00 PM – 6:00 PM
ACWA RECEPTION IN THE EXHIBIT HALL

7:00 AM – 8:00 AM
WELLNESS ACTIVITY

7:30 AM – 11:00 AM
CONNECT IN THE EXHIBIT HALL 

7:30 AM – 9:00 AM
CONTINENTAL BREAKFAST  
IN THE EXHIBIT HALL

8:30 AM – 10:00 AM
MEDIA TRAINING 

8:30 AM – 10:45 AM
ETHICS TRAINING

9:00 AM – 10:00 AM
PROGRAM SESSIONS 

10:15 AM – 11:15 AM
PROGRAM SESSIONS 

11:45 AM – 1:15 PM
KEYNOTE & AWARDS/MAIN STAGE 
• Keynote Presentation
• Outreach Awards
• Sponsorship Awards
• Huell Howser Awards 
• Steve Hall Scholarship
• Passing of the Gavel

1:30 PM – 3:00 PM
CLOSING LUNCH 

8:00 AM – 9:15 AM 
AGRICULTURE COMMITTEE

8:30 AM – 12:00 PM 
ACWA JPIA SEMINARS

9:30 AM – 10:45 AM
GROUNDWATER COMMITTEE

11:00 – 12:15 PM 
WATER MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
ENERGY COMMITTEE

12:15 PM – 1:30 PM 
COMMITTEE LUNCH

12:30 PM – 1:30 PM 
OUTREACH TASK FORCE

1:00 PM – 3:00 PM 
ACWA JPIA SEXUAL HARRASSMENT 
TRAINING

1:45 PM – 3:00 PM
FINANCE COMMITTEE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT COMMITTEE
WATER QUALITY COMMITTEE

3:15 PM – 5:00 PM
COMMUNICATIONS COMMITTEE
FEDERAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
LEGAL AFFAIRS COMMITTEE
MEMBERSHIP COMMITTEE

5:00 PM – 6:30 PM
WELCOME RECEPTION 
IN THE EXHIBIT HALL

11/30/2311/29/2311/28/23

INDIAN WELLS  |  NOV. 28 – 30

  Qualify for continuing education credit          Designated Recorded Programs TBD

Questions: Email events@acwa.com
Online Registration Deadline: Nov. 17, 2023

All conference programs are subject to 
change without notice.

Last Updated: 08/03/2023

Page 77 of 181Page 77 of 173



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 

        Date:     September 12, 2023 
        Item Number:   9 
        APN:    N/A 

 
 
SUBJECT: APPROVE THE TREASURER’S REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE  

SEVEN MONTHS ENDING JULY 31, 2023 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve the Treasurer’s Report and Financial Statements for the Seven 
Months Ending July 31, 2023 
 
 
BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 
 
The Treasurer’s report provides the total Treasury and Improvement District Funds as of July 31, 2023.  
The month ended with $54.7 million in designated reserves, $1.6 million in restricted cash and $15.5 
million in operating cash.   
 
As of the financial statement date of July 31, 2023, the District realized 69.4% of the budgeted 
revenues, and actual expenditures (including capital projects and purchases) utilized 31.0% of the 
budgeted expenditures.  Additional information is provided within the attached reports.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  

 Treasurer’s Report 
 Monthly Financial Report (unaudited) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 
 
VOTE 
Orvis (Yes/No)  Doornenbal (Yes/No)  Santos (Yes/No)  DeBoer (Yes/No) Tobias (Yes/No)   
 
Action(s) to be taken: 

Page 78 of 181Page 78 of 173



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

TREASURER'S REPORT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING
JULY 31, 2023

Page 79 of 181Page 79 of 173



TREASURER'S REPORT TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF FUNDS
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JULY 31, 2023

 
PERIOD ENDING 7/31/2023 RATE 6/30/2023 NET CHANGE

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT FUNDS

LAIF $176,770.36 3.305% $175,393.28 $1,377.08 

 

OAK VALLEY COMMUNITY BANK CHECKING 1,186,575.28 1,290,471.98 (103,896.70)

OVCB BUSINESS PLUS SAVINGS 4,119,770.49 0.500% 7,050,744.63 (2,930,974.14)

US BANK 64,701,006.75 3.973% 64,863,006.62 (161,999.87)

TOTAL TREASURY FUNDS 70,184,122.88 73,379,616.51 (3,195,493.63)

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT FUNDS

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT'S FUNDS 1,609,692.86 1,564,021.54 45,671.32 

TOTAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT FUNDS 1,609,692.86 1,564,021.54 45,671.32 

  

TOTAL TREASURY AND IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT FUNDS $71,793,815.74 $74,943,638.05 ($3,149,822.31)

Page 80 of 181Page 80 of 173



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT                                                                         

DISTRICT CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 7/31/2023 7/31/2022 NET CHANGE

Beginning Balance:  7/1/2023 $73,379,616.51

Receipts / Earnings / Transfers 84,106.92

Expenditures / Transfers (3,279,600.55)

TOTAL DISTRICT TREASURY FUNDS ON HAND: 7/31/12023 $70,184,122.88 $67,408,803.55 $2,775,319.33

GENERAL FUND

Beginning Balance:  7/1/2023  $18,691,053.49
RECEIPTS / EARNINGS
Net Investment Income (151,571.89)
Collection Receipts 235,678.81

Total Receipts: 84,106.92
EXPENDITURES
Accounts Payable 2,894,239.63
Payroll 385,360.92

Total Expenditures: (3,279,600.55)

BALANCE ON HAND: $15,495,559.86 $15,554,712.23 ($59,152.37)

DESIGNATED FUNDS:

JOINT CANYON TUNNEL PROJECT RESERVE

Beginning Balance:  7/1/2023 14,474,566.76

Transfer from General Fund 0.00

Transfer Funds to General Fund 0.00

BALANCE ON HAND: $14,474,566.76 $12,529,880.53 $1,944,686.23

CAPITAL REPLACEMENT / IMPROVEMENT RESERVE

Beginning Balance:  7/1/2023 $10,559,975.25

Transfer from General Fund 0.00

Transfer to General Fund 0.00

BALANCE ON HAND: $10,559,975.25 $5,911,438.88 $4,648,536.37

DEBT SERVICE RESERVE - maximum $21,145,000

Beginning Balance:  7/1/2023 13,000,000.00

Transfer from General Fund 0.00

Transfer Funds to General Fund 0.00

BALANCE ON HAND: $13,000,000.00 $16,000,000.00 ($3,000,000.00)

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JULY 31, 2023

7/31/12023

7/31/12023

Page 81 of 181Page 81 of 173



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT                                                                         

DISTRICT CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 7/31/2023 7/31/2022 NET CHANGE

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JULY 31, 2023

OPERATING FACILITY PROJECT RESERVE

Beginning Balance:  7/1/2023 10,453,355.86

Transfer from General Fund 0.00

Transfer Funds to General Fund 0.00

BALANCE ON HAND: $10,453,355.86 $4,783,896.01 $5,669,459.85

MUNICIPAL CONSERVATIONPROJECT RESERVE

Beginning Balance:  7/1/2023 7,381.46

Transfer from General Fund 0.00

Transfer Funds to General Fund 0.00

BALANCE ON HAND: $7,381.46 $198,873.49 ($191,492.03)

RATE STABILIZATION AND OPERATIONS DESIGNATED RESERVE 

Beginning Balance:  7/1/2023 $2,507,937.96

Transfer from General Fund 0.00

Transfer Funds to General Fund 0.00

BALANCE ON HAND: 7/31/12023 $2,507,937.96 $7,007,937.96 ($4,500,000.00)

RURAL WATER SYSTEM CAPITAL REPLACEMENT / IMPROVEMENT RESERVE

Beginning Balance:  7/1/2023 $1,160,211.76

Transfer from General Fund 0.00

Transfer to General Fund 0.00

BALANCE ON HAND: $1,160,211.76 $1,085,724.05 $74,487.71

VEHICLE AND EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT RESERVE 

Beginning Balance:  7/1/2023 $490,836.93

Transfer from General Fund 0.00

Transfer Funds to General Fund 0.00

BALANCE ON HAND: $490,836.93 $187,137.19 $303,699.74

BUILDING AND FACILITIES IMPROVEMENT PROJECT RESERVE

Beginning Balance:  7/1/2023 $1,025,000.00

Transfer from General Fund 0.00

Transfer to General Fund 0.00

BALANCE ON HAND: $1,025,000.00 $3,075,000.00 ($2,050,000.00)

EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION ABSENCES RESERVE

Beginning Balance:  7/1/2023 $1,009,297.04

Transfer from General Fund 0.00

Transfer to General Fund 0.00

BALANCE ON HAND: $1,009,297.04 $1,074,203.21 ($64,906.17)

7/31/12023

7/31/12023

7/31/12023

7/31/12023
Page 82 of 181Page 82 of 173



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT                                                                         

DISTRICT CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 7/31/2023 7/31/2022 NET CHANGE

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING JULY 31, 2023

RESTRICTED FUNDS

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT'S FUNDS

Beginning Balance:  7/1/2023 $1,564,021.54

Receipts 69,450.59

Expenditures (23,779.27)

BALANCE ON HAND: $1,609,692.86 $1,526,164.67 $83,528.19

FILED:  August 23, 2023 STATE OF CALIFORNIA / COUNTY OF STANISLAUS

7/31/12023

Page 83 of 181Page 83 of 173



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DIST 
July 1, 2023 to July 31, 2023

Page 1 of 14

MARKET VALUE SUMMARY

Taxable Interest 60,197.77

Change in Investment Value 119,625.55

3544

00- -M -UC-UU -213-01
0200440-00-04561-01

Current Period
07/01/23 to 07/31/23

Beginning Market Value $64,521,183.43

Ending Market Value $64,701,006.75

Page 84 of 181Page 84 of 173



10101010101010101010
10111110010100010011
10100100000110000010
10010011010000011101
10011000011001000110
10001100100000001001
10000001000101100000
10010111110001100101
11001000001000001100
11001010001110111101
10000000101000111000
10101001011010000011
10000010011110100100
10100110101010011011
10001101011010101000
10001110110100001001
10101110010111101100
11001011110001110101
10101010011110101010
11111111111111111111

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DIST 
July 1, 2023 to July 31, 2023

Page 2 of 14

ASSET SUMMARY

Cash & Equivalents 19,935,675.38 30.80 1,064,296.66

Taxable Bonds 44,765,331.37 69.20 1,506,013.55

3544

00- -M -UC-UU -213-01
0200440-00-04561-01

Assets
Current Period

Market Value
% of
Total

Estimated
Annual Income

Total Market Value $64,701,006.75 100.00 $2,570,310.21

Page 85 of 181Page 85 of 173



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DIST 
July 1, 2023 to July 31, 2023

Page 3 of 14

INCOME SUMMARY

Taxable Interest 60,197.77

3544

00- -M -UC-UU -213-01
0200440-00-04561-01

Income Received
Current Period

Total Current Period Income $60,197.77

Page 86 of 181Page 86 of 173



10101010101010101010
10111110010011010011
10100100000110000010
10010011010000011101
10011000011001001010
10001100010000000101
10000001000100000100
10010111110011101101
11001000001001111110
11001010000011010101
10000000100000011000
10101000110101101011
10000010101101111000
10100001100011100011
10001001100101101100
10011110011100100001
10111001100110110000
11011110110101000101
10101011011110100010
11111111111111111111

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DIST 
July 1, 2023 to July 31, 2023

Page 4 of 14

CASH SUMMARY

Taxable Interest 60,197.77

Purchases -19,135,511.67

Sales 3,162,776.00

Net Money Market Activity 15,912,537.90

3544

00- -M -UC-UU -213-01
0200440-00-04561-01

Cash

Beginning Cash 07/01/2023 $0.00

Ending Cash 07/31/2023 $0.00

Page 87 of 181Page 87 of 173



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DIST 
July 1, 2023 to July 31, 2023

Page 5 of 14

Cash/Money Market

ASSET DETAIL

Fidelity Govt Portfolio Cl I  - 316175108
#57

3,962,622.380 1.0000 3,962,622.38 3,962,622.38 0.00 6.1 207,046.03 5.22

Lloyds Bk Corporate Mkts Plc C P  - 53948BXQ7
10/24/2023

3,100,000.000 98.7170 3,060,227.00 2,988,379.33 71,847.67 4.7 154,324.03 5.04

Mufg Bank Ltd Ny Bra C P  - 62479MYM9
11/21/2023

1,950,000.000 98.2640 1,916,148.00 1,912,588.17 3,559.83 3.0 110,123.53 5.75

National Secs Clearing C P  - 63763QV20
08/02/2023

1,500,000.000 99.9860 1,499,790.00 1,480,488.33 19,301.67 2.3 77,410.43 5.16

National Secs Clearing C P  - 63763QX28
10/02/2023

1,400,000.000 99.0530 1,386,742.00 1,382,925.06 3,816.94 2.1 75,088.59 5.41

Natixis N Y Brh Disc Coml C P  - 63873KZ42
12/04/2023

3,000,000.000 98.0350 2,941,050.00 2,925,940.00 15,110.00 4.5 167,900.00 5.71

Standard Chartered Bk US Disc C P  - 85324UV75
08/07/2023

2,175,000.000 99.9120 2,173,086.00 2,124,152.13 48,933.87 3.4 111,804.05 5.14

3544

00- -M -UC-UU -213-01
0200440-00-04561-01

Security Description

Shares/Face Amt Price Market Value Tax Cost
Unrealized
Gain/Loss

Percent
of Total

Portfolio
Estimated

Annual Income
Estimated

Current Yield

Cash & Equivalents

Page 88 of 181Page 88 of 173



10101010101010101010
10111110010010010011
10100100000110000010
10010011010000000101
10011000011001000110
10001100000000001001
10000001000100111000
10010111110100011001
11001000001100001010
11001010011111100101
10000000100100001000
10101000001100111011
10000011011010011000
10100011101110010011
10001100110011100000
10011111011010111011
10110100100001101000
11000000010000001101
10101011011110011010
11111111111111111111

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DIST 
July 1, 2023 to July 31, 2023

Page 6 of 14

Total Cash/Money Market

US Government Issues

ASSET DETAIL (continued)

Sumitomo Mitsui Tr Bk Ltd Ny C P  - 86563HVA5
08/10/2023

3,000,000.000 99.8670 2,996,010.00 2,955,560.00 40,450.00 4.6 160,600.00 5.36

Federal Home Loan Bks  - 313384ST7
Discount Note
02/06/2024

1,707,000.000 97.3230 1,661,303.61 1,652,938.36 8,365.25 2.6 90,516.05 5.45

Federal Home Loan Bks  - 3130ARHG9
2.125  02/28/2024

5,000,000.000 98.1260 4,906,300.00 4,963,280.00 -56,980.00 7.6 106,250.00 2.17

Federal Farm Credit Bks  - 3133ENWP1
2.625  05/16/2024

5,000,000.000 97.7490 4,887,450.00 4,993,595.00 -106,145.00 7.6 131,250.00 2.68

Federal Home Loan Bks  - 3130A1XJ2
2.875  06/14/2024

4,900,000.000 97.8320 4,793,768.00 4,919,727.40 -125,959.40 7.4 140,875.00 2.94

Federal Home Loan Bks  - 3130AV7L0
5.000  02/28/2025

5,000,000.000 100.1070 5,005,350.00 4,988,100.00 17,250.00 7.7 250,000.00 4.99

F N M A Deb  - 3135G03U5
0.625  04/22/2025

4,512,000.000 92.6980 4,182,533.76 4,188,670.08 -6,136.32 6.5 28,200.00 0.67

$19,935,675.38 $19,732,655.40 $203,019.98 30.8 $1,064,296.66

$19,935,675.38 $19,732,655.40 $203,019.98 30.8 $1,064,296.66

3544

00- -M -UC-UU -213-01
0200440-00-04561-01

Security Description

Shares/Face Amt Price Market Value Tax Cost
Unrealized
Gain/Loss

Percent
of Total

Portfolio
Estimated

Annual Income
Estimated

Current Yield

Total Cash & Equivalents

Taxable Bonds

Page 89 of 181Page 89 of 173



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DIST 
July 1, 2023 to July 31, 2023

Page 7 of 14

Total US Government Issues

Corporate Issues

ASSET DETAIL (continued)

Federal Home Loan Bks  - 3130AWLY4
5.125  06/13/2025

5,000,000.000 100.1450 5,007,250.00 5,010,290.00 -3,040.00 7.7 256,250.00 5.12

Toyota Motor Credit Corp  - 89236THF5
Medium Term Note
0.500  08/14/2023

1,250,000.000 99.8300 1,247,875.00 1,251,250.00 -3,375.00 1.9 6,250.00 0.50

Jpmorgan Chase Co  - 46625HJT8
Medium Term Note
3.875  02/01/2024

1,300,000.000 99.1330 1,288,729.00 1,417,936.00 -129,207.00 2.0 50,375.00 3.91

Pub Svc Elec Gas  - 74456QBD7
Medium Term Note
3.750  03/15/2024

2,000,000.000 98.7630 1,975,260.00 1,975,680.00 -420.00 3.1 75,000.00 3.80

Bank Of America Corp  - 06051GFF1
Medium Term Note
4.000  04/01/2024

1,770,000.000 98.8640 1,749,892.80 1,754,070.00 -4,177.20 2.7 70,800.00 4.05

Massmutual Glbl Fdg II Mtn  - 57629XBR8
Medium Term Note
2.750  06/22/2024

2,000,000.000 97.4040 1,948,080.00 1,954,020.00 -5,940.00 3.0 55,000.00 2.82

Entergy La LLC L P  - 29364WBK3
0.950  10/01/2024

1,155,000.000 94.8840 1,095,910.20 1,091,856.15 4,054.05 1.7 10,972.50 1.00

$30,443,955.37 $30,716,600.84 -$272,645.47 47.1 $1,003,341.05

3544

00- -M -UC-UU -213-01
0200440-00-04561-01

Security Description

Shares/Face Amt Price Market Value Tax Cost
Unrealized
Gain/Loss

Percent
of Total

Portfolio
Estimated

Annual Income
Estimated

Current Yield

Page 90 of 181Page 90 of 173



10101010101010101010
10111110010001010011
10100100000110000010
10010011010000010101
10011000001001000110
10001101110001001001
10000001000100011100
10010111110001111101
11001000001100100010
11001010000110100101
10000000101011010000
10101000000101111011
10000011001100000000
10100100000110111111
10001000000011101100
10011111011100010101
10111010001100100000
11010011110000100101
10101001011110100010
11111111111111111111

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DIST 
July 1, 2023 to July 31, 2023

Page 8 of 14

Total Corporate Issues

ASSET DETAIL (continued)

ASSET DETAIL MESSAGES

Time of trade execution and trading party (if not disclosed) will be provided upon request.

Publicly traded assets are valued in accordance with market quotations or valuation methodologies from financial industry services believed by us to be reliable.  Assets that are not publicly traded may be
reflected at values from other external sources.  Assets for which a current value is not available may be reflected at a previous value or as not valued, at par value, or at a nominal value. Values shown do
not necessarily reflect prices at which assets could be bought or sold.  Values are updated based on internal policy and may be updated less frequently than statement generation.

Estimated Current Yield and Estimated Annual Income are estimates provided for informational purposes only and should not be relied on for making investment, trading, or tax decisions. The estimates
may not represent the actual value earned by your investments and they provide no guarantee of what your investments may earn in the future.

Caterpillar Finl Svcs Mtns  - 14913R2Y2
Medium Term Note
4.900  01/17/2025

2,000,000.000 99.7680 1,995,360.00 2,013,940.00 -18,580.00 3.1 98,000.00 4.91

John Deere Capital Corporation  - 24422EWW5
Medium Term Note
4.950  06/06/2025

2,000,000.000 99.9530 1,999,060.00 1,998,880.00 180.00 3.1 99,000.00 4.95

State Street Corp  - 857477AT0
3.550  08/18/2025

1,050,000.000 97.2580 1,021,209.00 1,016,316.00 4,893.00 1.6 37,275.00 3.65

$14,321,376.00 $14,473,948.15 -$152,572.15 22.1 $502,672.50

$44,765,331.37 $45,190,548.99 -$425,217.62 69.2 $1,506,013.55

$64,701,006.75 $64,923,204.39 -$222,197.64 100.0 $2,570,310.21

3.97

3544

00- -M -UC-UU -213-01
0200440-00-04561-01

Security Description

Shares/Face Amt Price Market Value Tax Cost
Unrealized
Gain/Loss

Percent
of Total

Portfolio
Estimated

Annual Income
Estimated

Current Yield

Total Taxable Bonds

Total Assets

Estimated Current Yield

Page 91 of 181Page 91 of 173



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DIST 
July 1, 2023 to July 31, 2023

Page 9 of 14

TRANSACTION DETAIL

07/03/23 Cash Receipt Cash Receipt
Interest Received

10,758.78

Ub Conversion Liquidation 31617510S

07/03/23 Purchase Purchased 1,707,000 Par Value Of
F H L B Disc Nts 2/06/24

-1,652,938.36 1,652,938.36

Trade Date 6/30/23
Purchased Through Mizuho Securities USA Inc.
Swift External Ref#: 8318102112540619
1,707,000 Par Value At 96.83294435 %

07/03/23 Purchase Purchased 5,000,000 Par Value Of
F H L B Deb 5.000% 2/28/25

-4,988,100.00 4,988,100.00

Trade Date 6/30/23
Purchased Through Toronto Dominion Securities (U
Swift External Ref#: 8318102112540927
5,000,000 Par Value At 99.762 %

07/03/23 Purchase Accrued Interest Paid Accrued Interest On Purchase Of
F H L B Deb 5.000% 2/28/25

-83,333.33

Income Debit 83,333.33- USD

07/03/23 Asset Income Interest Earned On
Fidelity Govt Port Cl I

63,883.73

Interest From 6/1/23   To 6/30/23

07/11/23 Sale Matured 1,600,000 Par Value Of
Cpnational Secs Clea C P 7/11/23

1,588,666.67 -1,588,666.67

Trade Date 7/11/23
1,600,000 Par Value At 100 %

07/11/23 Asset Income Interest Earned On
Cpnational Secs Clea C P 7/11/23

11,333.33

1,600,000 Par Value At 100 %

07/11/23 Purchase Purchased 1,400,000 Par Value Of
National Secs Clearing C P 10/02/23

-1,382,925.06 1,382,925.06

Trade Date 7/11/23
Purchased Through Rbc Capital Markets, LLC
Purchased On The Off-Exchange Transactions - Li
Swift External Ref#: 8319202112576335
1,400,000 Par Value At 98.78036143 %

$0.00 $64,863,006.62

3544

00- -M -UC-UU -213-01
0200440-00-04561-01

Date
Posted Activity Description Cash Tax Cost

Beginning Balance 07/01/2023

Page 92 of 181Page 92 of 173



10101010101010101010
10111110010000010011
10100100000110000010
10010011010000001101
10011000001001001010
10001101100001000101
10000001000100100000
10010111110110001001
11001000001001010110
11001010011010010101
10000000101111000000
10101000111100101011
10000010111011100000
10100110001011001111
10001101010101100000
10011110011010001111
10110111001011111000
11001101010101101101
10101001011110011010
11111111111111111111

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DIST 
July 1, 2023 to July 31, 2023

Page 10 of 14

TRANSACTION DETAIL (continued)

07/17/23 Purchase Purchased 4,512,000 Par Value Of
F N M A Deb 0.625% 4/22/25

-4,188,670.08 4,188,670.08

Trade Date 7/14/23
Purchased Through Rbc Capital Markets, LLC
Swift External Ref#: 8319502112582076
4,512,000 Par Value At 92.834 %

07/17/23 Purchase Accrued Interest Paid Accrued Interest On Purchase Of
F N M A Deb 0.625% 4/22/25

-6,658.33

Income Debit 6,658.33- USD

07/17/23 Asset Income Interest Earned On
Caterpillar Finl Mtn 4.900% 1/17/25

49,000.00

0.0245 USD/$1 Pv On 2,000,000 Par Value Due 7/17/23

07/20/23 Sale Matured 1,600,000 Par Value Of
Mufg Bk Ltd N Y Brh C P 7/20/23

1,574,109.33 -1,574,109.33

Trade Date 7/20/23
1,600,000 Par Value At 100 %

07/20/23 Asset Income Interest Earned On
Mufg Bk Ltd N Y Brh C P 7/20/23

25,890.67

1,600,000 Par Value At 100 %

07/20/23 Purchase Purchased 1,950,000 Par Value Of
Mufg Bank Ltd C P 11/21/23

-1,912,588.17 1,912,588.17

Trade Date 7/20/23
Purchased Through J.P. Morgan Securities LLC
Purchased On The Off-Exchange Transactions - Li
Swift External Ref#: 8320102112587953
1,950,000 Par Value At 98.08144462 %

07/25/23 Purchase Purchased 5,000,000 Par Value Of
F H L B Deb 5.125% 6/13/25

-5,010,290.00 5,010,290.00

Trade Date 7/24/23
Purchased Through Barclays Capital Inc. Fixed In
Swift External Ref#: 8320502112590332
5,000,000 Par Value At 100.2058 %

07/25/23 Purchase Accrued Interest Paid Accrued Interest On Purchase Of
F H L B Deb 5.125% 6/13/25

-10,677.08

Income Debit 10,677.08- USD

Purchase Combined Purchases For The Period  7/ 1/23 -  7/31/23 Of
Fidelity Govt Port Cl I

-3,263,883.73 3,263,883.73

3544

00- -M -UC-UU -213-01
0200440-00-04561-01

Date
Posted Activity Description Cash Tax Cost

Page 93 of 181Page 93 of 173



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DIST 
July 1, 2023 to July 31, 2023

Page 11 of 14

TRANSACTION DETAIL (continued)

Sale Combined Sales For The Period  7/ 1/23 -  7/31/23 Of
Fidelity Govt Port Cl I

19,176,421.63 -19,176,421.63

$0.00 $64,923,204.39

3544

00- -M -UC-UU -213-01
0200440-00-04561-01

Date
Posted Activity Description Cash Tax Cost

Ending Balance 07/31/2023

Page 94 of 181Page 94 of 173



10101010101010101010
10111110010111010011
10100100000110000010
10010011010000011101
10011000001001011110
10001101010001010001
10000001000100000000
10010111110000101101
11001000001101001100
11001010011111111101
10000000101011111000
10101000010011110011
10000011011111110100
10100101000000111011
10001111111001001000
10001000101001111001
10111011011011111000
11001101010101110101
10101010011010111010
11111111111111111111

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DIST 
July 1, 2023 to July 31, 2023

Page 12 of 14

SALE/MATURITY SUMMARY

SALE/MATURITY SUMMARY MESSAGES

Estimated Year-To-Date Short-Term Gain (Loss): ($56,791.50)

Estimated Year-To-Date Long-Term Gain (Loss):  ($589,474.72)

Estimates should not be used for tax purposes

07/11/23 Matured 1,600,000 -1,588,666.67 1,588,666.67
Par Value
Trade Date 7/11/23
1,600,000 Par Value At 100 %

07/20/23 Matured 1,600,000 -1,574,109.33 1,574,109.33
Par Value
Trade Date 7/20/23
1,600,000 Par Value At 100 %

3544

00- -M -UC-UU -213-01
0200440-00-04561-01

Settlement
Date Description Tax Cost Proceeds

Estimated
Gain/Loss

Cash and Equivalents

Cpnational Secs Clea C P
07/11/2023
63763QUB1

Mufg Bk Ltd N Y Brh Disc Coml C P
07/20/2023
62479MUL5

Total Cash and Equivalents -$3,162,776.00 $3,162,776.00 $0.00

Total Sales & Maturities -$3,162,776.00 $3,162,776.00 $0.00

Page 95 of 181Page 95 of 173



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DIST 
July 1, 2023 to July 31, 2023

Page 13 of 14

BOND SUMMARY

2023 1,250,000.00 1,247,875.00 2.79
2024 24,832,000.00 24,306,693.61 54.30
2025 19,562,000.00 19,210,762.76 42.91

Aaa 29,412,000.00 28,782,651.76 64.30
Aa3 2,000,000.00 1,948,080.00 4.35
A1 7,370,000.00 7,282,965.80 16.27
A2 5,155,000.00 5,090,330.20 11.37
N/A 1,707,000.00 1,661,303.61 3.71

3544

00- -M -UC-UU -213-01
0200440-00-04561-01

Par Value Market Value
Percentage of

Category

MATURITY

Total of Category $45,644,000.00 $44,765,331.37 100.00

MOODY'S RATING

Total of Category $45,644,000.00 $44,765,331.37 100.00

Page 96 of 181Page 96 of 173



10101010101010101010
10111110010110010011
10100100000110000010
10010011010000000101
10011000001001010010
10001101000001011101
10000001000100111100
10010111110111011001
11001000001000111000
11001010000011001101
10000000101111101000
10101000101010100011
10000010101000010100
10100111001101001011
10001010101111000100
10001001101111100011
10110110011100100000
11010011110000111101
10101010011010000010
11111111111111111111

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DIST 
July 1, 2023 to July 31, 2023

Page 14 of 14

Data contained within this section excluded Mutual Funds, Exchange Traded Funds, and Closed-Ended Funds.

BOND SUMMARY (continued)

BOND SUMMARY MESSAGES

AA+ 31,412,000.00 30,730,731.76 68.65
A+ 1,250,000.00 1,247,875.00 2.79
A 8,205,000.00 8,086,799.20 18.06
A- 3,070,000.00 3,038,621.80 6.79
N/A 1,707,000.00 1,661,303.61 3.71

3544

00- -M -UC-UU -213-01
0200440-00-04561-01

Par Value Market Value
Percentage of

Category

S&P RATING

Total of Category $45,644,000.00 $44,765,331.37 100.00

Page 97 of 181Page 97 of 173



 

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

MONTHLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

July 31, 2023

FOR INTERNAL REPORTING PURPOSES ONLY

Page 98 of 181Page 98 of 173



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT

PAGE NO.

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 1

REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 2

REVENUE DETAIL 3

OPERATING EXPENSES SUMMARY 4

CAPITAL AND DEBT EXPENDITURES 5

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page 99 of 181Page 99 of 173



Oakdale Irrigation District
Statement of Net Position
July 31, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022 Change
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 5,483,866$               3,544,892$            1,938,974$            
Restricted Cash and cash equivalents 1,609,693                 1,583,035               26,658                    
Investments 64,701,007               63,864,661            836,345                  
Receivables

Accrued Interest -                                 121,906                  (121,906)                 
    Annexation fees 1,308,921                 1,308,921               -                          
    Agricultural water fees -                                 765,031                  (765,031)                 
    Due from other governmental agencies -                                 2,261                      (2,261)                     
    Miscellaneous 22,866                      154,345                  (131,479)                 
    Domestic water fees 17,212                      18,112                    (900)                        
Inventory of materials and supplies 848,935                    828,417                  20,518                    
Prepaid expenses 401,742                    396,916                  4,826                      
Due from Improvement Districts 24,822                      18,252                    6,571                      

Total current assets 74,419,064               72,606,748            1,812,316               
Noncurrent assets:

Accounts receivable - delinquencies 2,615                        1,199                      1,416                      
Due from other governmental agencies -                                 297,277                  (297,277)                 
Annexation fees receivable 10,395,574               11,654,778            (1,259,204)             
Investments in Tri-Dam Project/Authority 59,316,999               58,615,544            701,455                  
Capital assets:
    Not being depreciated 11,320,298               7,799,533               3,520,765               
    Being depreciated, net 104,222,420            104,544,160          (321,740)                 

Total noncurrent assets 185,257,907            182,912,491          2,345,415               
Total assets 259,676,970            255,519,240          4,157,731               

Deferred outflows of resources
Pensions 2,372,153                 760,863                  1,611,290               
Bonds 2,620,565                 2,784,350               (163,785)                 
Total deferred outflows of resources 4,992,718                 3,545,213               1,447,505               

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 264,669,688            259,064,453          5,605,235               
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Payable from nonrestricted assets
    Accounts payable 295,239.07               141,657                  153,582                  
    Accrued salaries, wages and related benefits 921,358                    860,492                  60,866                    
    Unearned revenue 76                              313,636                  (313,560)                 
    Deposits payable 512,897                    22,529                    490,368                  
    Due to Improvement Districts 22,833                      17,174                    5,658                      
    Claims payable 75,000                      50,000                    25,000                    
    Long-term liabilities, due within one-year 24,801                      -                               24,801                    

Total current liabilities 1,852,204                 1,405,488               446,715                  
Noncurrent liabilities:

Long-term liabilities, due in more than one-year, net 22,946,039               24,207,478            (1,261,439)             
Pensions 6,348,945                 2,320,868               4,028,077               

Total noncurrent liabilities 29,294,984               26,528,346            2,766,638               
TOTAL LIABILITIES 31,147,188               27,933,834            3,213,354               
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Pensions -                                 2,025,996               (2,025,996)             
Total deferred inflows of resources -                                 2,025,996               (2,025,996)             

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 93,428,108               89,208,529            4,219,578               
Restricted 1,609,693                 1,583,035               26,658                    
Unrestricted 138,484,700            138,313,058          171,642                  

TOTAL NET POSITION 233,522,500$          229,104,623$        4,417,878$            

FOR INTERNAL REPORTING PURPOSES ONLY Page 1

Page 100 of 181Page 100 of 173



Oakdale Irrigation District
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in net position
For the One Month and Seven Months Ended July 31, 2023

Current Month YTD Actual 2023 Budget Budget Remaining

% of 2023 
Budget 

Remaining
Operating revenues:

Agricultural water deliver charges (base rate) -$                         2,257,195$            2,263,000$               5,805$                      0%
Water sales (46)                           1,071,989.93         3,081,900 2,009,910 65%
Domestic water delivery fee 27,436 118,026 247,000 128,974 52%
Improvement District Fees -                           -                          58,820 58,820                      100%
Other water related revenues 709 73,380 69,000 (4,380) 0%

Total operating revenues 28,099 3,520,591 5,719,720 2,199,129 38%

Operating expenses:
Operation and maintenance 729,686                  4,082,320               6,763,470 2,681,150 40%
Water operations 517,872                  2,256,363               4,195,220 1,938,857 46%
General and administrative 98,840 1,601,148 3,514,455 1,913,307 54%
Depreciation / amortization 290,000                  1,970,000               3,585,000 1,615,000 45%

Total operating expenses 1,636,398 9,909,832 18,058,145 8,148,313 45%
      Operating Income (loss) (1,608,298) (6,389,240) (12,338,425) (5,949,185) 48%

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
County property tax appropriations 8,354                       1,670,409               3,500,000 1,829,591 52%
Net Investment income (loss) 38,808                     1,436,448               725,000 (711,448) 0%
Gain (loss) sale of assets -                           6,171                      -                             (6,171) 0%
Debt service interest (463,152)                 (559,273)                 (995,000) (435,727) 44%
Tri-Dam Project distributions -                           4,380,000               7,000,000 2,620,000                 37%
Tri-Dam Power Authority distributions -                           2,200,000               2,100,000 (100,000)                   0%
Other non-operating revenue 1,000                       7,000                      12,000 5,000 42%

Total non-operating rev. (exp.) (414,990)                 9,140,754               12,342,000 3,201,246 26%
 (2,023,288)              2,751,514               3,575                         (2,747,939)                

Capital contributions -                               3,434                      -                                 

Change in net position (2,023,288)$            2,754,948$            3,575$                       (2,747,939)$             0%

Capital expenditures & debt obligations 244,804$                2,726,490$            24,378,300$             21,651,810$             89%

FOR INTERNAL REPORTING PURPOSES ONLY Page 2

Page 101 of 181Page 101 of 173



Oakdale Irrigation District
Revenue Summary
For the One Month and Seven Months Ended July 31, 2023

Current Month YTD Actual 2023 Budget
Budget 

Remaining

% of 2023 
Budget 

Remaining

Operating revenues
Agricultural water service fees

Tier 1 -$                         1,998,687$               2,005,000$          6,313$                  0%
Tier 2 -                           258,508                     258,000                (508)                      0%

Water sales
Tier 1 (46)                           209,246                     695,000                485,754                70%
Tier 2 -                           321,336                     786,900                465,564                59%
Local out-of-district -                           421,408                     1,600,000             1,178,592             74%
Out-of-district -                           120,000                     -                        (120,000)               0%

Domestic water sales 27,436                     118,026                     247,000                128,974                52%
Improvement District Admin Fees -                           -                             58,820                  58,820                  100%
Miscellaneous revenues

Service Charges & Penalties 709                          73,380                       69,000                  (4,380)                   0%
Total Operating Revenue 28,099                     3,520,591                 5,719,720 2,199,129 38%

Non-operating revenues
County property tax appropriations 8,354                       1,670,409                 3,500,000 1,829,591 52%
District Rental Properties 1,000                       7,000                         12,000 5,000 42%
Domestic Annexation Revenue -                             -                        -                        0%
Investment earnings 0%

Investment earnings (Loss) (190,938)                 1,198,608                 325,000                (873,608)               0%
Other Interest income 229,746                   237,840                     400,000                162,160                41%

Gain (loss) sale of assets -                           6,171                         -                        (6,171)                   0%
 Change in investment Tri-Dam Project -                           4,380,000                 7,000,000             2,620,000             37%

Change in investment Tri-Dam Authority -                           2,200,000                 2,100,000             (100,000)               0%
Total Nonoperating Revenues 48,163                     9,700,027                 13,337,000 3,636,973 27%

Capital Contributions -                               3,434                         -                             (3,434)                   

Total Revenues 76,262.12$             13,224,052.55$       19,056,720$        5,832,667$          31%

FOR INTERNAL REPORTING PURPOSES ONLY Page 3
Page 102 of 181Page 102 of 173



Oakdale Irrigation District
Operating Expenses Summary
For the One Month and Seven Months Ended July 31, 2023

Current Month YTD Actual 2023 Budget
Budget 

Remaining

% of 2023 
Budget 

Remaining
Operating expenses
Maintenance

SSJID Main Supply Diversion Works -$                      13,413$                30,000$               16,587$                55%
83,344                 432,445                459,930               27,485                  6%

South Main Canal Maintenance 108,070               483,162                451,140               (32,022)                0%
Irrigation Water Lateral Maint-North Side 177,420               1,168,175            2,319,650            1,151,475            50%
Irrigation Water Lateral Maint - South Side 141,912               779,539                1,566,650            787,111                50%
Pumping Plant Operations and Maintenance 66,440                 244,808                456,520               211,712                46%
Drainage System Maintenance 63,721                 359,638                435,890               76,252                  17%
Building and Grounds Maintenance 25,221                 214,393                344,210               129,817                38%
Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance 63,557                 386,748                699,480               312,732                45%

Total Maintenance 729,686               4,082,320            6,763,470            2,681,150            40%

Water Operations
Domestic Water System Maintenance 55,243                 240,623                473,800               233,177                49%
Irrigation Water Operations - North Division 227,625               945,200                1,846,460            901,260                49%
Irrigation Water Operations - South Division 231,820               968,389                1,832,220            863,831                47%
Drainage Water Operations 30                         91,622                  18,660                 (72,962)                0%
Water Measurement Management 3,154                    10,529                  24,080                 13,551                  56%

Total Water Operations 517,872               2,256,363            4,195,220            1,938,857            46%

General and Administrative
General and Administrative 98,840                 1,601,148            3,514,455            1,913,307            54%
Depreciation and Amortization 290,000               1,970,000            3,585,000            1,615,000            45%

Total General, Administrative and 
Depreciation

388,840               3,571,148            7,099,455            3,528,307            50%

Total Operating expenses 1,636,398            9,909,832            18,058,145          8,148,313            45%
 
Non-operating expenses

Interest and investment expenses 463,152               559,273                995,000               435,727                44%

Total non-operating expenses 463,152               559,273                995,000               435,727                44%

2,099,550$          10,469,105$        19,053,145$        8,584,040$          45%

Page 4

North Main Canal Maintenance

Total Expenses

Page 103 of 181Page 103 of 173



Oakdale Irrigation District
Capital and Debt Expenditures 
For the Seven Months Ended July 31, 2023

GL ACCOUNT NO. GL DESCRIPTION PROJECT DESCRIPTION 2023
2023 ANNUAL 

BUDGET
00-000-15200-00 Capital Work Capital construction projects (Water Resources Plan)

Canal and Lateral Rehabilitation 68,219$              458,500$                   
Domestic Water Projects -                       655,000                     
Flow Control and Measurement Structures 151,885              422,000                     
Irrigation Service Turnout Replacement 146,249              877,000                     
Main Canals and Tunnels Improvement Projects 148,087              -                              
Groundwater Wells Replacement -                       250,000                     
Outflow Management Projects -                       -                              
Pipeline Replacement 741,543              980,800                     
Reclamation Projects -                       5,000                          

Subtotal for Water Resources Plan Improvements 1,255,983          3,648,300                  
Ag Pump Replacements 87,729                80,000                        
Operating Headquarters Design 157,965              190,000                     
Phase 1 of Greger Facility -                       10,000,000                
North Main Canal Seepage Mitigation Project 138,540              1,500,000                  
North Main Canal Tunnels 3 & 4 Rehabilitation Project -                       5,051,000                  
Canyon Tunnel - Joint with SSJID ($1.786M x 28%) 129,380              500,000                     
North Main Canal Bridge Replacement -                       100,000                     
South Main Canal - Segment 3 Long Term Repair Project 550,477              1,500,000                  

2,320,074          22,569,300                
00-000-15179-00 Irrigation Flow Meters

Portable Ultrasonic Flowmeter 15,000                        

00-000-15181-00 Backhoes & Heavy Equipment
Excavator (16.6-17 ton) 230,778              240,000                     
Skeleton Bucket for Excavator - Large Size -                       20,000                        

230,778              260,000                     
00-000-15183-00 Miscellaneous Construction Equipment

12" Brush Chipper (Trailer Mounted) (CF from 2022) -                       70,000                        
25KW Trailer Mounted Generator -                       38,000                        
Pest Sprayer for RTV -                       2,000                          

-                       110,000                     
00-000-15184-00 Autos/Pickups/Trucks/ Trailers

1/2 Ton Pickup 2WD (DSO) 42,639                45,000                        
3/4 Ton Pickup 4WD (C&M) - 2 112,734              120,000                     
Dump truck, 3-axle (diesel) 275,000                     

155,373              440,000                     
00-000-15186-00 Shop/Whse/Yard

Mini Split AC Unit for C&M Supervisor Office 5,400                  4,000                          
Ice Machine 5,944                  -                              

11,344                4,000                          
00-000-15187-00 Office and Engineering Equipment

Computer upgrades and replacements -                       10,000                        
Engineering GPS Unit (Purchase or Lease) 50,000                        

-                       60,000                        

00-000-15188-00 Communications Equipment
SCADA Radios 8,921                  -                              

8,921                  -                              

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECTS AND PURCHASES EXPENDITURES 2,726,490          23,458,300                
00-000-22320-00 Current portion - COP Debt -                       920,000                     

TOTAL CAPITAL AND DEBT EXPENDITURES 2,726,490$        24,378,300$             
Page 5

FOR INTERNAL REPORTING PURPOSES ONLY

Page 104 of 181Page 104 of 173



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 

        Date:     September 12, 2023 
        Item Number:   9 
        APN:    N/A 

 
 
SUBJECT: APPROVE PURCHASE OF ONE (1) 2024 THREE AXLE CLASS EIGHT DUMP TRUCK 

FROM INTERSTATE TRUCK CENTER 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Purchase to Interstate Truck Center for One (1) 2024 Three 

Axle Class Eight Dump Truck  
                
 
BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 
The District’s purchasing policy allows for participation in cooperative purchasing organizations 
providing that the cooperative agreement is established following a competitive bid process. Sourcewell 
is a cooperative purchasing organization that follows a competitive bidding process that is compliant 
with the District’s policy.  
 
The Sourcewell request for proposal (RFP) process awarded contract #060920 to Peterbilt Motors 
Company and several other vendors. Interstate Truck Center, dba Valley Peterbilt located in Turlock, 
is the local vendor for Peterbilt Motors Company. Through Sourcewell Contract #060920-PMC we will 
receive the lowest bid available from the RFP completed for the Dump Truck. 
 
Staff’s recommendation is to purchase one (1) new 2024 class eight three axle dump truck from 
Interstate Truck Center for $232,871.99. The amount included in the 2023 budget is $275,000. The 
required budget amount ($235,000) will be carried forward into the 2024 Capital Budget because we 
anticipate that the dump truck will not be received and paid for until 2024.  
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: $232,871.99 (Budgeted $275,000.00) 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 Interstate Truck Center Sales Order 
 Sourcewell Request for Proposal #060920  

 
 
Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 
 
VOTE:   
DeBoer (Yes/No)  Doornenbal (Yes/No)  Orvis (Yes/No)  Santos (Yes/No)  Tobias (Yes/No)    
 
Action(s) to be taken: 

Page 105 of 181Page 105 of 173



Page 106 of 181Page 106 of 173



Page 107 of 181Page 107 of 173



Page 108 of 181Page 108 of 173



Page 109 of 181Page 109 of 173



Page 110 of 181Page 110 of 173



Page 111 of 181Page 111 of 173



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 

        Date:    September 12, 2023 
        Item Number: 11 
        APNS:  063-120-27/28 

 
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVE TEMPORARY ENTRY PERMIT WITH BUREAU OF RECLAMATION FOR 

GRAVEL INJECTION 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 
 
 
BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY:  
The U.S. Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) is seeking a new entry permit for their Goodwin Canyon 
Salmonid Spawning Gravel Project (Project).  OID previously issued two consecutive five (5) year entry 
permits (2012-2016 and 2017-2021) to Reclamation for the same Project.  The work includes placement 
of gravel into the Stanislaus River below Goodwin Dam, generally with the use of a gravel hopper 
placed on the OID South Main Canal bank.  Approximately 20 acre-feet of water would be pulled from 
the South Main to facilitate the movement of gravel from the hopper and through a flexible pipe down 
into the river.  The California Department of Fish and Wildlife or other private contractors would perform 
the work for Reclamation.   
 
This new permit is for a five (5) year period (2024-2028) and has been reviewed by Reclamation and 
OID Staff.  Please see the attached documentation for further clarification.  Staff recommends approval 
of the entry permit to Reclamation and will be available to answer any questions that the Board may 
have. 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 Draft Temporary Entry Permit 

 
 
Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 
 
VOTE 
Orvis (Yes/No)  Doornenbal (Yes/No)  Santos (Yes/No)  DeBoer (Yes/No)  Tobias (Yes/No) 
 
Action(s) to be taken: 
 
 
 
 
K:\Engineering\Emily Sheldon\Cost Estimates\USBR Goodwin Bridge\Consent - Bureau of Reclamation Entry Permit_9-12-23.docx 

Page 120 of 181Page 112 of 173



TEMPORARY ENTRY PERMIT 

Contract No. 17-LC-20-2150 

The Oakdale Irrigation District, a Local Agency of the State of California, hereinafter referred to as 
"District", hereby grants permission to the Bureau of Reclamation, hereinafter referred to as 
"Reclamation", and its contractors for ingress and egress upon the District's property at APN: 063-120-
27-00 and APN: 063-120-28-00, Tuolumne County, State of California (Project Site map attached) for the 
purpose of increasing and improving Chinook salmon, steelhead and rainbow trout spawning and 
rearing habitat. 

Spawning gravel will be added to existing restoration sites in the reach of the Stanislaus River at river 
mile 58.  Reclamation anticipates that up to 5,000 cubic yards of gravel will be added in 2024 at these 
existing sites and distributed across the channel to create suitable spawning and rearing habitat 
conditions for steelhead trout and Chinook salmon.  As gravel is distributed downstream by flows, up to 
5,000 cubic yards of additional gravel may be added in each subsequent year of the permit term.  Gravel 
will be placed at intervals of one to a few years apart as the need is determined by ongoing monitoring 
of gravel conditions and fish use of the gravel. 

This permit expires December 31, 2028. 

Reclamation and its contractors will gain access to the gravel road off Tulloch Road via a locked gate 
owned by the United States Army Corps of Engineers, cross over the District's bridge and continue on 
the gravel road to the Stanislaus River.  Reclamation and its contractors will adhere to the following: 

• Only transfer trucks shall be used to deliver gravel materials as there is insufficient space for 
end dumps. 

• The amount of gravel carried across the bridge in any single load shall not exceed 12 tons. 
• An abrupt, several inch-high vertical drop in the road surface exists on the uphill approach 

to the bridge.  Loaded trucks shall approach the uphill abutment very slowly and ease the 
front and rear wheels gently down this drop to avoid causing impact loading on the bridge. 

• Loaded trucks shall cross the bridge at low speed of 5 mph to avoid causing impact loading 
on the bridge. 

• Loaded trucks shall insure that the truck travels down the centerline of the bridge.  This will 
keep the wheels over or near main beams.  The truck shall not begin its turn until it is 
completely off the bridge so as to keep the wheel loads well away from the midspan of the 
planks. 

The portion of restoration to be done at the Float Tube Pool, as indicated on the attached map, will be 
accomplished by placement of either a "habitat builder", which is a gravel pump, or by another 
functionally equivalent method such as helicopter. It is most probable that a gravel pump will be used. 
Access to the District's South Main Canal is needed to position the "habitat builder". Approximately 20 
acre-feet of water will be needed to place approximately 3,000 tons of gravel at the Float Tube Pool. 
Reclamation estimates running the "habitat builder" 8 hours a day for up to 15 days to accomplish 
placement of the 3,000 tons.  Reclamation and its contractors expect to locate the "habitat builder" 
approximately 500' up the canal road, northeast of the District's bridge.  Upon completion of work, the 
"habitat builder" will be completely removed and the site will be returned to pre-project conditions. 

Page 121 of 181Page 113 of 173



 

Reclamation performed an inspection of the District's bridge in 2011, after Reclamation completed 
similar work on the District's property.  Additional bridge inspections will be performed subsequent to 
bridge use, when the canal is dry, during the winter months, to insure no damage has been done to the 
District's property by Reclamation's use of the bridge.  Reclamation shall notify District prior to entering 
said canal for inspection purposes and must comply with District safety protocols. 

Reclamation and its contractors shall comply and be solely responsible for compliance with any and all 
Regulatory compliance related to implementation of this project. 

Reclamation and its contractors shall notify the District's Engineer by calling (209) 840-5525 a minimum 
of 48 hours prior to any planned activities. 

The District will not be held liable for the cost of this work or possible injuries to Reclamation employees 
or contractors while they are on the District's property. Insofar as it may do so, under existing law, 
Reclamation and its contractors shall hold the District harmless from any damage or injury incurred by 
Reclamation or its contractors. Reclamation and its contractors will comply with all applicable 
governmental laws and regulations. 

Every precaution will be taken to prevent damage to persons and property.  Reclamation and its 
contractors will be responsible for any loss or damage sustained by the District or the District's property 
resulting from Reclamation activities as part of this project. If at any time the District finds that the 
District has sustained damage, please write to the Bureau of Reclamation at the address above or call 
Ms. Nina Stevens, Realty Specialist at (916) 978-5287, or e-mail Ms. Stevens at nstevens@usbr.gov. 

The District grants permission for Reclamation and its contractors to enter the District's property for the 
purposes stated above by signing and returning this permit. 

The District should direct any questions regarding this temporary entry permit to Ms. Nina Stevens at 
the number above.  Any questions or concerns related to the project should be directed to Mr. John 
Hannon, Fisheries Biologist, at (916) 414-2413. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 122 of 181Page 114 of 173



This PERMIT shall be a covenant binding upon both the DISTRICT and RECLAMATION. 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, DISTRICT and RECLAMATION have caused their names to be affixed. 

 

Bureau of Reclamation “Reclamation” 

 

 

___________________________________  ___________________________   
Richard J. Woodley     Date 
Regional Resources Manager 
 

 

Oakdale Irrigation District “District” 

 

 

___________________________________  ___________________________  
Thomas D. Orvis, President    Date 
Board of Directors 
 

 

___________________________________  ___________________________   
Scot A. Moody      Date 
General Manager/Secretary 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 123 of 181Page 115 of 173



PROJECT SITE MAP 

Page 124 of 181Page 116 of 173



Page 125 of 181Page 117 of 173



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 

        Date:    September 12, 2023 
        Item Number:   12 
        APN:    N/A 

 
 
SUBJECT: REVIEW AND TAKE POSSIBLE ACTION TO AWARD BID TO NJIRICH & SONS INC. AS THE 

LOWEST RESPONSIVE AND RESPONSIBLE BIDDER FOR THE NORTH MAIN CANAL 
TUNNELS 3 & 4 REHABILITATION PROJECT AND AUTHORIZE GENERAL MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE ASSOCIATED CHANGE ORDERS 

 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Award the Bid to the Lowest Responsive and Responsible Bidder for the North 

Main Canal Tunnels 3 & 4 Rehabilitation Project and Authorize General Manager 
to Execute Associated Change Orders  

 
 
BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 
Staff solicited bids for the North Main Canal Tunnels 3 & 4 Rehabilitation Project which will consist of placing 
new shotcrete and canal liners, placing shotcrete and canal overlays, placing new and mending existing concrete 
liner. The recommended improvements include widening, re-shaping and lining Tunnels 3& 4; lining portal cut 
slopes and swales above cut slopes; and plugging the tops of shafts. The Engineer’s Estimate of Probable 
Construction Costs for the Project was $7,797,148. 
  
Three Project bids were received before the July 31, 2023 bid deadline. Those bids have been reviewed and a 
determination has been made by OID and Provost and Prichard Consulting Group (P&P) staff that Njirich & Sons 
Inc. submitted the lowest responsive and responsible bid.  OID and P&P staff recommend that the Board award 
the bid to Njirich & Sons in the amount of $6,687,595.    
 
This project was budgeted in the 2023 Capital Budget; and staff recommends proceeding with this project over 
the 2023/24 winter outage in an effort to keep up with the ongoing maintenance needs in critical OID 
infrastructure as outlined in the Water Resources Plan. 
      
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  $7,950,000 inclusive of construction management and a 12% contingency to allow for any 
change orders needed 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 Project Bid Opening Total Base Bid Price Table 
 Njirich & Sons Project Bid Section 00530 

 
 
Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________ Second by: ______________________________ 
 
VOTE:     
Orvis (Yes/No)  Doornenbal (Yes/No)  Santos (Yes/No)  DeBoer (Yes/No)  Tobias (Yes/No) 
 
Action(s) to be taken: 

Page 126 of 181Page 118 of 173



Bidder Base Bid Price (Low to High)

Njirich & Sons, Inc. 6,687,595.00$                          

Drill Tech Drilling & Shoring, Inc. 6,999,675.00$                          

Sierra Mountain Construction, Inc. 7,316,640.00$                          

Oakdale Irrigation District

Tunnels 3 & 4

Bid Opening Total Base Bid Price 

July 31, 2023

Page 127 of 181Page 119 of 173



 

 

NOTICE OF AWARD 

 

 

 

To: Njirich & Sons, Inc. 

 19970 Kelly Drive 

 Sonora, CA 95370 

 

Project Description: Oakdale Irrigation District  

  North Main Canal Improvements Tunnels 3 & 4 Rehabilitation Project 

 

The OWNER has considered the BID submitted by you for the above-described WORK in 

response to its Advertisement for Bids dated June 21, 2023, and Instructions for Bidders. 

 

You are hereby notified that your BID, dated July 31, 2023, has been accepted in the amount of 

$6,687,595.00, as attached. 

 

You are required as indicated in the Instructions for Bidders to execute the Contract (Section 

00520), furnish the required Performance Bond (Section 00602) and Payment Bond (Section 

00603), and provide the Insurance Certificates as detailed in Indemnity Agreement (Section 

00502) within ten (10) days after receipt of this Notice. 

 

If you fail to execute the Contract and to furnish said BONDS and proof of insurance within ten 

(10) days from the date you receive this Notice, said OWNER will be entitled to consider all 

your rights arising out of the OWNER’S acceptance of your BID as abandoned and as a 

forfeiture of your BID BOND. The OWNER will be entitled to such rights as may be granted by 

law. 

 

You are required to return an acknowledged copy of the NOTICE OF AWARD to the OWNER. 

 

Dated this  12  day of  September , 20  23 . 
 

 

   

  Owner 

 By:  Scot Moody  

 Title:  General Manager  

 

ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE 

 

Receipt of the above NOTICE OF AWARD is hereby acknowledged. 

By:   

this the   day of  , 20 . 

Signature:   

Title:   

 

 
G:\Oakdale ID-1783\178322006-North Main Canal - Tunnels 3 and 4 Rehab\700 Bid Support\705 Award\20230912 OID Tunnels 3&4 NOA.docx 



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 
NORTH MAIN CANAL IMPROVEMENTS – TUNNELS 3 AND 4 REHABILITATION 

STANISLAUS COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

P&P Project No. 01783-22-006 00530 - 1 BID  

June 21, 2023 

SECTION 00530 

BID 

Bid Opening: 2:30 p.m. 

on Monday, July 31, 2023 

Via Email to: jkosakiewicz@oakdaleirrigation.com 

In response to your call for bids, the undersigned (also referred to as “Bidder”) having examined 

the site of the Work, the Contract Documents, Contract Drawings, and documents attached thereto, 

or other documents that are otherwise implied, hereby proposes to furnish the labor, all equipment, 

all materials, all devices and other costs including federal, state, county and local sales or other 

taxes, to do the work for which prices are quoted below, and to complete all work ready for use 

within the number of working days specified and in accordance with said Contract Documents. 

In the following Bid, amounts shall be shown in figures for the bid items. The total base Bid Price 

shall be shown in both words and figures. In case of discrepancy between the words and figures, 

the words will govern. 

Unit Quantities 

The Owner reserves the right to adjust unit quantities to greater or less than twenty-five percent 

(25%) of the estimated quantities without change to the Contractor’s Bid Unit Price. 

Mobilization/Demobilization Costs 

Mobilization and demobilization shall be paid as a percentage complete of the Contract lump sum 

(LS) price for Bid Items 1A and 1B. The combined mobilization and demobilization bid amount 

shall not exceed fifteen percent (15%) of the total bid amount. The demobilization bid amount 

shall be equal to or greater than twenty-five percent (25%) of the mobilization bid amount.  

6



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 
NORTH MAIN CANAL IMPROVEMENTS – TUNNELS 3 AND 4 REHABILITATION 

STANISLAUS COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

P&P Project No. 01783-22-006 00530 - 2 BID  

June 21, 2023 

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

North Main Canal Improvements 

Tunnels 3 and 4 Rehabilitation 

Schedule of Baseline Bid Prices 

2. Stormwater Management/Access Improvements and Maintenance

2A 

SWPPP, EPS, temporary facilities, 

equipment, materials, operation, 

etc., including water pass through 

(landowner water supply), 

stormwater control and dewatering 

during construction 1 LS $  $ 

2B 

Access Improvements and 

Maintenance 1 LS $  $ 

2C Tunnel Dewatering 1 LS $  $ 

2D 

Fill Borrow and Grading Staging 

Areas 1 LS $  $ 

2 

Subtotal Stormwater Management/Access Improvements and 

Maintenance  $ 

Bid 
Item Bid Item Description 

* Estimated 
Quantity Unit Unit Price Unit Price Extension 

1. Mobilization and Demobilization

1A Site Mobilization 1 LS $  $ 

1B Site Demobilization 1 LS $  $ 

1. Subtotal Mobilization and Demobilization $ 

1C 

Optional Staging Area Rental 

Allowance (Note 1) Mos ($1,500)  $ 

7

700,000.00 700,000.00

175,000.00 175,000.00

875,000.00

5 7,500.00

360,000.00 360,000.00

150,000.00 150,000.00

50,000.00 50,000.00

175,000.00 175,000.00

735,000.00



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 
NORTH MAIN CANAL IMPROVEMENTS – TUNNELS 3 AND 4 REHABILITATION 

STANISLAUS COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

P&P Project No. 01783-22-006 00530 - 3 BID  

June 21, 2023 – Rev July 6, 2023 

3. Tunnel 3

3A 

Upstream and Downstream portal 

cleaning/excavation including 

backfill and grading of 

washout/drainage 1 LS $  $ 

3B 

Portal shotcrete walls (including 

turned down edge, WWF, rebar and 

drain strips) 2,980 SF $  $ 

3C 

Rock Dowels – 18-foot cement 

grouted 12 EA $ $ 

3D 

Rock Dowels – 14-foot cement 

grouted 51 EA $  $ 

3E 

Rock Dowels – 9-foot cement 

grouted 12 EA $ $ 

3F 

Rock Dowels – 8-foot cement 

grouted 13 EA $ $ 

3G Test Nails 5 EA $ $ 

3H Tunnel Excavation/Re-shaping 1 LS $  $ 

3I 

Tunnel invert grading, preparation 

and backfill 1 LS $  $ 

3J 

Tunnel liner 4-inch thick shotcrete 

tunnel liner (FRS) 1,444 LF $ $ 

3K 

Tunnel invert 6-inch thick concrete 

invert slab 1 LS $ $ 

3L Concrete cutoff (per Detail 8/6.0) 2 EA $ $ 

3M Rip Rap (upstream and downstream) 44 TON $  $ 

3N Shaft plugs and backfill 3 EA $  $ 

3 Subtotal – Tunnel 3  $ 

100,000.00 100,000.00

30.00 89,400.00

1,245.00 14,940.00

970.00 49,470.00

625.00 7,500.00

550.00 7,150.00

825.00 4,125.00

850,000.00 850,000.00

120,000.00 120,000.00

915.00 1,321,260.00

400,000.00 400,000.00

3,500.00 7,000.00

195.00 8,580.00

35,000.00 105,000.00

3,084,425.00



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 
NORTH MAIN CANAL IMPROVEMENTS – TUNNELS 3 AND 4 REHABILITATION 

STANISLAUS COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

P&P Project No. 01783-22-006 00530 - 4 BID  

June 21, 2023 

4. Tunnel 4

4A 

Upstream and Downstream portal 

cleaning/excavation 1 LS $  $ 

4B 

Portal shotcrete walls (including 

turned down edge, WWF, rebar and 

drain strips) 1,420 SF $  $ 

4C 

Rock Dowels – 14-foot cement 

grouted 42 EA $  $ 

4D 

Rock Dowels – 9-foot cement 

grouted 2 EA $ $ 

4E 

Rock Dowels – 8-foot cement 

grouted 1 EA $ $ 

4F Test Nails 3 EA $ $ 

4G Tunnel Excavation/Re-shaping 1 LS $  $ 

4H 

Tunnel invert grading, preparation 

and backfill 1 LS $  $ 

4I 

Tunnel liner 4-inch thick shotcrete 

tunnel liner (FRS) 805 LF $ $ 

4J 

Tunnel invert 6-inch thick concrete 

invert slab 1 LS $  $ 

4K Concrete cutoff (per Detail 8/6.0) 2 EA $ $ 

4L Rip Rap (upstream and downstream) 44 TON $  $ 

4 Subtotal – Tunnel 4  $ 

9

15,000.00 15,000.00

30.00 42,600.00

970.00 40,740.00

625.00 1,250.00

550.00 550.00

825.00 2,475.00

390,000.00 390,000.00

70,000.00 70,000.00

915.00 736,575.00

180,000.00 180,000.00

3,500.00 7,000.00

195.00 8,580.00

1,494,770.00



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 
NORTH MAIN CANAL IMPROVEMENTS – TUNNELS 3 AND 4 REHABILITATION 

STANISLAUS COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

P&P Project No. 01783-22-006 00530 - 5 BID  

June 21, 2023 – Rev July 14, 2023 

5. Miscellaneous

5A Disposal of Earth Spoils 7,000 LCY $ $ 

5B 

Backfill Shotcrete (if needed), See 

Note 2 100 CY $550.00 $55,000.00 

5C 

Temporary/Additional Support 

(toolbox items, if needed) 

5C1 Wire Mesh and Friction Anchors 1,000 SF $ $ 

5C2 Rock Dowels – Cement Grouted 20 EA $ $ 

5C3 Rock Bolts – Epoxy Resin 20 EA $ 

5D Lean Concrete Mudmat 20 CY $ 

5 Subtotal Miscellaneous $ 

Notes: 

1. Contractor shall provide duration and extend unit price of Item 1C if the Contractor chooses to

use the Staging Area for the Owner and Engineer’s information purpose; do not include this item

in the Total Base Bid Price as the price is not a Bid Item or reimbursable expense and shall be

included as mobilization as specified in Section 02050 – Mobilization and Demobilization.

2. Set Unit Price provided for allowance, aActual quantity determined based on Technical

Specifications Section 03470, Article 4.01.

3. LS – Lump sum

4. EA – Each

5. LCY – Loose cubic yard

6. CY – Cubic yard

7. LF – Lineal foot

8. SF – Square foot

9. TON – Ton

10. DAY – Calendar work day

50.00 350,000.00

$ 800.00 $ 80,000.00

30.00 30,000.00

570.00 11,400.00

$ 850.00 17,000.00

$ 500.00 10,000.00

498,400.00



OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 
NORTH MAIN CANAL IMPROVEMENTS – TUNNELS 3 AND 4 REHABILITATION 

STANISLAUS COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

P&P Project No. 01783-22-006 00530 - 6 BID  

June 21, 2023 

Subtotal – Items 1 through 5 

1 Mobilization and Demobilization  $ 

2 

Stormwater Management/Access Improvements and 

Maintenance  $ 

3 Tunnel 3  $ 

4 Tunnel 4  $ 

5 Miscellaneous  $ 

Total Base Bid Price (in words) 

________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________ 

Dollars  $ 

11

875,000.00

735,000.00

3,084,425.00

1,494,770.00

498,400.00

6,687,595.00

six million, six hundred eighty-seven thousand, five hundred and 

ninety-five dollars.





BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 

        Date:    September 12, 2023 
        Item Number:   13 
        Staff:    Joe Kosakiewicz  

C&M Manager  
           

 
SUBJECT: REVIEW AND TAKE POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE WORK RELEASE NO. 45 TO 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 2009-PSA-001 WITH PROVOST  & 
PRITCHARD, INC. TO PROVIDE CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT AND QUALITY 
ASSURANCE SERVICES FOR THE OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT NORTH MAIN 
CANAL TUNNELS 3 & 4 REHABILITATION PROJECT 

 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Work Release No. 45 to Professional Services Agreement 2009-
PSA-001 with Provost & Pritchard, Inc. to Provide Construction 
Management and Quality Assurance Services for the Oakdale Irrigation 
District North Main Canal Tunnels 3 & 4 Improvement Project and 
authorize the General Manager to execute the work release upon 
approval 

 
 
BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 
Provost & Pritchard, Inc. (P&P) provided a proposal for Construction Management and Quality 
Assurance services for the construction of the North Main Canal Tunnels 3 & 4 Rehabilitation Project.  
Construction Management and Quality Assurance services will be necessary to assure that the 
Contractor is meeting the contract requirements and that the construction is compliant with the drawings 
and specifications.  
 
The request for approval of this work release is contingent upon the approval of agenda item 12 for the 
award of the Construction Contract for the North Main Canal Tunnels 3 & 4 Project.   
 
Details on the staff providing the services are included in Exhibit A to the work release. Construction 
Management and Quality Assurance Services in Work Release No. 45 consist of three tasks: 
  

Task 1 - Pre-Construction:   Mobilization and Submittal Review 
 Task 2 - Construction:  Management, Engineering Oversight and Quality Assurance 
 Task 3 - Post-Construction:  Demobilization and Project Closeout 
 
The estimated fee for Work Release No. 45 is $435,550, which includes a 5% contingency of $21,777.  
Based on the institutional knowledge P&P staff have pertaining to the Tunnels 3 & 4 Project, Staff 
recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute the Work Release No. 45 for P&P 
to perform the Construction Management and Quality Assurance services for the Tunnels 3 & 4 Project.  
` 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not to Exceed $435,550 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
 Work Release No. 45 

 
Page 134 of 181Page 126 of 173



 
 
Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 
 
VOTE:     
Orvis (Yes/No)  Doornenbal (Yes/No)  Santos (Yes/No)  DeBoer (Yes/No)  Tobias (Yes/No)   
 
Action(s) to be taken: 

Page 135 of 181Page 127 of 173



Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group                  September 12, 2023 
Professional Services Agreement                                    
2009-PSA-001 
 
 

2 

 
 

Work Release No. 45 
Construction Management & Quality Assurance Services  

North Main Canal Tunnels 3 & 4 Rehabilitation Project 
 

 
Background 
 
Provost & Pritchard (P&P) has previously performed several phases of work on the North 
Main Canal Tunnels 3 & 4 Rehabilitation Project (Project) including initial assessment, initial 
design, preliminary plans, engineers estimate, construction documents and contractor bidding 
support. 
 
Description 
 
Provide Construction Management & Quality Assurance Services during construction 
activities associated with the North Main Canal Tunnels 3 & 4 Rehabilitation Project.  

Scope of Work 

The Scope of Work is divided into three primary tasks of work based on various stages of the 
Contractor’s work.  These tasks are defined as follows: 

• Task 1 – Pre-Construction: Mobilization and Submittal Review  

• Task 2 – Construction: Management, Engineering Oversight and Quality Assurance 

• Task 3 – Post-Construction: Demobilization and Project Close Out 

See the attached Exhibit A for P&P’s detailed Scope of Work and Proposal.    

Schedule 

The Contract Notice of Award is anticipated to be issued on Tuesday, September 12, 2023, 
with the Notice to Proceed scheduled to be issued thereafter. The Contractor is scheduled to 
start the project work on November 1, 2023 and will be substantially completed by February 
17, 2024. 

Pricing 

P&P will perform the services on a Time and Material basis in accordance with the Schedule 
of Fees approved by 2009-PSA-001, Amendment No. 4, dated March 31, 2023. The estimated 
costs for the three tasks outlined above and detailed in the attached Exhibit A are summarized 
below by Task: 

• Task 1 – Pre-Construction: Mobilization and Submittal Reviews $    48,900 

Page 136 of 181Page 128 of 173



Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group                  September 12, 2023 
Professional Services Agreement                                    
2009-PSA-001 
 
 

2 

 
 

• Task 2 – Construction: Management, Engineering Oversight  

and Quality Assurance      $ 356,800 

• Task 3 – Post-Construction: Demobilization  

and Project Close Out       $   29,850 

 

Not to Exceed Amount       $ 435,550 

This Not to Exceed amount cannot be exceed without prior authorization from OID. 

 

Terms and Conditions 

Payment for Services will be according to the 2023 Schedule of Fees. 

All Terms and Conditions identified in Professional Services Agreement 2009-PSA-003, 
Amendment No. 4 will remain in effect for Work Release No. 045.   

When submitting the invoice, include the Contract and Work Release Number on the invoice.  
All invoices are to be sent to the attention of Oakdale Irrigation District’s Accounts Payable 
department. 

 

 

Oakdale Irrigation District  Provost & Pritchard Consulting Group 

By:   By:  

Name: Scot A. Moody  Name: Alex Collins 

Title: General Manager  Title: Director of Operations 

Date:   Date:  

Page 137 of 181Page 129 of 173



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 

        Date:    September 12, 2023 
        Item Number:   14 
        APN:    N/A 

 
 
SUBJECT: REVIEW AND TAKE POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING OID POTENTIALLY JOINING 

THE VALLEY AG WATER COALITION 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   Approval to join Valley AG Water Coalition 
 
 
BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 
 
There has been some mention during the past few months of OID not having a united AG centric voice 
in the Sacramento Legislature other than ACWA. Valley AG Water Coalition gave a brief presentation 
to the Board of Directors in June 2023.  
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Currently seven cents per acre and not to exceed $7,000/year 
  
ATTACHMENTS: Communications written by Valley AG Water Coalition  
 
 
 
 
Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 
 
VOTE 
Orvis (Yes/No)  Tobias (Yes/No)  Doornenbal (Yes/No)  Santos (Yes/No)  DeBoer (Yes/No) 
 
Action(s) to be taken: 

Page 138 of 181Page 130 of 173



SACRAMENTO SACRAMENTO 
REPORTREPORT
Volume 18, Issue 4

Inside Sacramento ReportValley Ag Water Coalition
Contact Information:
Cristel Tufenkjian, Secretary-Treasurer
4886 East Jensen Avenue
Fresno, California 93725
(559) 237-5567 Phone 
(559) 237-5560 FAX

NEWS BRIEFS

April 2023

Page 1

See Water Rights, page 2

 continued on next page See DWR, page 4

Administration Distributes Funding for CA Water Infrastructure ........... 6

DWR Determinations Possible State Water Board Intervention 
The California Department of Water Resources (DWR) recently announced that 
groundwater sustainability plans for six critically overdrafted groundwater basins 
in the San Joaquin Valley were determined to be inadequate, triggering the pro-
cess for possible state intervention. 

Adopted in 2014, the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) 
requires groundwater sustainability agencies to develop and implement ground-
water sustainability plans that would address conditions that negatively impact 
groundwater—such as overdraft, degraded water quality, land subsidence, and 
drinking water impacts—within 20 years. Groundwater sustainability agencies 
(GSAs) in critically over-drafted basins first submitted their plans to DWR in 
January 2020. Last year, DWR determined that plans from 12 of these subbasins 
were incomplete, which necessitated GSAs to correct identified deficiencies and 
revise and resubmit plans to DWR for re-evaluation. 

California Water Plan Update 
2023 Workshops
The California Water Plan de-
scribes and updates a broad set of 
resource management strategies 
(RMSs) that help local agencies 
and governments manage their 
water and related resources. 
Every RMS can be a technique, 
program, or policy that can be 
used to meet water-related man-
agement needs of a region and 
the state as a whole.
The Department of Water Re-
sources will be conducting the 
following upcoming RMS Strat-
egy Workshops:

Legislation Threatens Well Established Water Rights System
Several bills have been introduced this year seeking to upend over 100 years of 
well established water rights system. 

One of these bills is Assembly Bill 460, by Assemblymember Rebecca Bauer 
Kahan (D-San Ramon). The bill, introduced in response to a direct diversion in 
the summer of 2022 made in violation of a curtailment order issued by the State 
Water Board, is written very broadly to provide the Board with greater authority 
to enjoin the diversion of water. AB 460 would grant the State Water Board with 
authority to issue an interim relief order to enforce the reasonable use doctrine, 
public trust doctrine, water rights, and other provisions of water law; as well as, 
establishes a civil penalty of up to $10,000 for each day in which a violation to an 
interim relief order issued by the Board occurs and $5,000 for each acre-foot of 
water diverted in violation of the interim relief order. Unless the State Board con-
cludes that consideration of the matter is urgent, the board is required to provide 
notice at least 20 days before the hearing date of the issuance of an interim relief 

Page 139 of 181Page 131 of 173

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB460


NEWS BRIEFS continued

Page 2

 continued on next page

Water Rights, continued from page 1

See Water Rights, page 3

Watershed Management  
Resource Management  
Strategy Workshop
When: Thursday 27, 2023; from 
1:00pm to 3:00 p.m. 

During this workshop, the 
Water Plan Team will provide an 
overview of the draft Watershed 
Management RMS for Update 
2023 and gather comments on 
the draft Watershed Manage-
ment RMS. Registration for this 
online only workshop is avail-
able HERE. An agenda will be 
available soon. 

Reservoir Reoperation  
Resource Management  
Strategy Workshop
When: May 3, 2023; from 10:00 
a.m. to 12:00 p.m.

During this workshop, the 
Water Plan Team will gather 
comments on the draft Reservoir 
Reoperation RMS. Registration 
for this online only workshop is 
available HERE. An agenda will 
be available soon.

Water Use Efficiency Resource 
Management Strategy
When: May 9, 2023; from 10:00 
a.m. to 12:00 p.m.

During this workshop, the Wa-
ter Plan Team will gather com-
ments on the draft Water Use 
Efficiency RMS. Registration for 
this online only workshop is 
available HERE. An agenda will 
be available soon.

CA Water Plan - Water  
Balances Data Webinar
When: May 3 | 10:00 a.m. - 
12:00 p.m.

Join the Department of Water 
Resources (DWR’s) California 
Water Plan Team for a webinar 
that will share and discuss water 
balance data - data founda-

order. Interim relief orders issued without this notice can remain in effect for a 
period of up to 180 days. However, the State Water Board is allowed to reissue 
or extend this order for an indefinite period.

Valley Ag Water Coalition joined other water interest in strongly opposing the 
bill, unless it is limited to the concern regarding direct diversions in violation 
of a curtailment order, due process is guaranteed for the water right permit or 
license holder, and the period of relief is tailored to address the violation. The 
significant expansion in the Board’s existing enforcement authority currently 
proposed by the bill threatens water supply reliability and weakens due process 
protections normally afforded to interested parties that may be harmed by en-
forcement actions. An order could include halting or limiting diversions of water, 
a requirement to pay for environmental and engineering analyses, the reimburse-
ment of Board expenses, or anything else the Board determines, regardless of the 
merits of the interim relief order. A loss of water supply before planting season 
will halt farm production for the year; a loss of water supply during the growing 
season will devastate farmers, farm workers, and the rural communities and local 
economies that rely on farming year-in and year-out.

The bill was heard in the Assembly Water, Parks and Wildlife Committee, which 
Assemblymember Bauer-Kahan chairs, on April 19. After a couple of hours of 
discussion on this measure, committee members made it abundantly clear that 
they had a lot of concerns with the bill and encouraged the water community to 
offer an alternative to the language currently in the bill that (1) enhances penal-
ties for those who disregard State Water Board’s orders, and (2) addresses what 
additional enforcement authority, if any, could reasonably be granted to the state 
water board to ensure compliance with its orders. The bill passed the Assembly 
water committee on a 9-4 vote, and is now scheduled to be heard in the Assem-
bly Judiciary Committee on April 25. 

Assembly Bill 1337, by Assemblymember Buffy Wicks (D-Oakland), was also 
discussed in the Water, Parks and Wildlife Committee’s April 18 hearing. As 
introduced, this legislation would authorize the board to adopt regulations for 
various water conservation purposes, including, but not limited to, to prevent 
the waste, unreasonable use, unreasonable method of use, or unreasonable 
method of diversion of water, and to implement these regulations through orders 
curtailing the diversion or use of water under any claim of right. The bill would 
require the board to provide notice and an opportunity to be heard before issu-
ing an order, except where an opportunity to be heard before the issuance of an 
order would be impractical given the likelihood of harm to the purposes of the 
various water conservation regulations. The bill would provide that a person or 
entity may be civilly liable for a violation of any regulation or order issued by the 
board pursuant to these provisions in an amount not to exceed $1,000 for each 
day in which the violation has occurred and $2,500 for each acre-foot of water 
diverted or used in violation of the applicable requirement. The bill would pro-
vide that a regulation or order issued by the board pursuant to these provisions, 
or by emergency regulation, is exempt from CEQA. 

Based on recommendations by the Assembly Water Committee, AB 1337 was 
amended on April 17, to delete the CEQA exemption and establishment of civil 
penalties, and instead (1) clarify the bill’s intent that the pre-1914 appropria-
tive water rights be subject to the full authority of the State Water Board; (2) 
authorize the board to issue a curtailment order for any diversion, regardless of 

Page 140 of 181Page 132 of 173

https://water.ca.gov/News/Events/2023/Apr-23/California-Water-Plan-Update-2023---Watershed-Resource-Management-Strategy-Workshop
https://forms.office.com/pages/responsepage.aspx?id=UlYdt4NLV0KvzX_Rd4hFZIsM79bAr09Hnkch35w4ysVUREdGNktWQU1PTEJYRjBLTVpXR0o5NkkxOS4u
https://forms.office.com/pages/responsepage.aspx?id=UlYdt4NLV0KvzX_Rd4hFZIsM79bAr09Hnkch35w4ysVUMDdPUE9NNlJISUFUNklSSlpMNTQ1S1FETC4u
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB1337


Page 3

NEWS BRIEFS continued

 continued on next page

Water Rights, continued from page 2

tional to building the state’s water 
resilience. Creating and enhanc-
ing water resilience requires an 
understanding of how and where 
water is used in the state, as well 
as the source of the supplies. The 
webinar will cover:
• Background on the water bal-

ances 
• Important observations from 

recent water years 
Registration is available HERE.

Water Efficiency Technical  
Assistance (WETA) 
On April 11, 2023, the California 
Department of Food and Agricul-
ture (CDFA) announced a com-
petitive grant application process 
for the Water Efficiency Techni-
cal Assistance (WETA) program. 
Assembly Bill 180 (Budget Act 
of 2021) appropriated $15 mil-
lion from the California Emer-
gency Relief Fund to CDFA for 
the WETA program which funds 
irrigation water efficiency and nu-
trient management technical as-
sistance grants. The WETA grant 
program is designed to facilitate 
technical assistance to agricultural 
operations for on-farm water and 
energy use efficiency and nutrient 
management

Through this solicitation CDFA 
will award up to $14.25 million to 
eligible organizations. The grant 
term will be 3 years, with a maxi-
mum grant amount of $500,000. 
Applications are due by June 6, 
2023. Grant awards will be an-
nounced in August 2023.

Organizations that receive funding 
will work on any or all of three 
program objectives:

1. Provide on-farm, one-on-one 
technical assistance to farmers 
to evaluate irrigation system 
efficiency (e.g., mobile irriga-
tion lab) and provide diagnos-

basis of right, when water is not available under the diverter’s priority of right; 
(3) authorize the board to adopt regulations to implement the curtailment order; 
and (3) authorize the board to issue a cease and desist order when a water right 
holder fails to curtail diversions when water is unavailable under the water right 
holder’s priority of right.

The bill passed the Assembly Water, Parks and Wildlife Committee on a 9 to 4 
vote, and is now headed to the Assembly Judiciary Committee for a hearing and 
a vote. 

Other water rights legislations opposed by the Coalition include:

AB 560 (Bennett, D-Oxnard): The bill would require a court to refer the pro-
posed judgment in certain adjudication actions to the State Water Board for a 
nonbinding advisory determination as to whether the proposed judgment will 
substantially impair the ability of a groundwater sustainability agency, the State 
Water Board, or the Department of Water Resources to achieve sustainable 
groundwater management. The bill would require the State Water Board to con-
sult with DWR before making its determination. 

The bill passed the Assembly Water, Parks and Wildlife Committee on March 28, 
2023, with a 9-0 vote; and the Assembly Judiciary on April 11, with a 7-2 vote. 
The bill is scheduled to be heard in the Assembly Appropriations Committee on 
May 3, 2023. 

AB 676 (Bennett, D-Oxnard): This bill seeks to amend Water Code Section 
106, regarding priority for use of water, by listing non-exhaustive examples of 
“domestic” water uses. This change would substantially narrow the highest use, 
which is more broadly defined under domestic use to include water in homes, 
resorts, motels, organization camps, camp grounds, and incidental watering of 
domestic stock, lawns, ornamental shrubbery, and gardens. (23 CCR § 660) The 
bill focuses on the “waste and unreasonable use” portion of Article X, section 
2, leaving out the beneficial use portion:  “the general welfare requires that the 
water resources of the State be put to beneficial use to the fullest extent of which 
they are capable, and that the waste or unreasonable use or unreasonable method 
of use of water be prevented.”

The bill is scheduled to be heard in the Assembly Water, Parks and Wildlife Com-
mittee on May 2, 2023.

AB 779 (Wilson, D-Suisun City): This bill seeks to adopt new procedural re-
quirements for groundwater adjudications. The bill presents several concerns 
relating to the adjudication of groundwater. More specifically, this bill would 
require the plaintiff and defendant involved in an adjudication to forward all 
relevant pleading and briefing materials to the Department of Water Resources 
(DWR) after a decision has been rendered by the court; and for DWR to post the 
documents on its internet website. The bill would require the court to invite a 
representative from DWR or the State Water Board to provide technical assistance 
or expert testimony on the amount of water in the basin subject to adjudication, 
equitable and sustainable pumping allocations for the basin, and sustainable 
groundwater management best practices and recommendations; and require the 
court to take into account the needs of small farmers and disadvantaged com-
munities when entering a judgment. The bill would also require a groundwater 
sustainability agency (GSA) with jurisdiction over a basin subject to an adjudica-

See Water Rights, page 4
Page 141 of 181Page 133 of 173

https://ca-water-gov.zoom.us/meeting/register/tZIsdu-qpz0uGNfvFIq3vQHk9iCRfidKLGCn
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB560
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB676
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB779


Page 4

 continued on next page

NEWS BRIEFS continued
tics, reports and recommen-
dations to growers.

2. Coordinate or provide pump 
efficiency testing for farm-
ers.

3. Provide training regarding 
water use efficiency and nu-
trient management practices 
and technology.

4. Additional information can 
be found HERE. 

CDFA’s Request for Applications 
document is available HERE. 

CA’s Snowpack is Now One 
of the Largest Ever, Bring-
ing Drought Relief, Flood-
ing Concerns
On April 3, 2023, the Depart-
ment of Water Resources 
(DWR) conducted the fourth 
snow survey of the season at 
Phillips Station. The manual 
survey recorded 126.5 inches of 
snow depth and a snow water 
equivalent of 54 inches, which 
is 221 percent of average for 
this location. The snow water 
equivalent measures the amount 
of water contained in the snow-
pack and is a key component 
of DWR’s water supply fore-
cast. DWR’s electronic readings 
from 130 snow sensors placed 
throughout the state indicate 
the statewide snowpack’s snow 
water equivalent is 61.1 inches, 
or 237 percent of average for 
this date.

On April 3, DWR conducted a 
media briefing which expanded 
on the results from the snow 
survey, and what they mean for 
the state’s water supply. Provid-
ed below you will find links to 
resources including a recording 
of DWR’s briefing, along with 
b-roll and photos from the snow 
survey.

tion proceeding to submit a comprehensive monitoring plan to the court, and to 
report monitoring data to the court and DWR. The bill would prescribe pumping 
restrictions on groundwater users during an adjudication proceeding; require a 
GSA to hold a public meeting to explain the adjudication process to water users 
within its basin and the public upon receiving notice that an adjudication has 
commenced in its basin; and authorize a GSA to invite the state board or DWR 
to send a representative to the meeting in order to help explain the adjudication 
process.

The bill passed the Assembly Water, Parks and Wildlife Committee on March 28, 
2023, with a 11-3 vote; and the Assembly Judiciary on April 11, with a 8-3 vote. 
The bill is scheduled to be heard in the Assembly Appropriations Committee on 
May 3, 2023.

SB 389 (Allen, D- ): This bill would authorize the State Water Board to selec-
tively investigate and determine whether a water right claimant, diverter, or user 
is diverting or using water under a defensible claim of right. Specifically, the bill 
would (1) allow the State Board to investigate individual water right claimants to 
verify their basis of right, (2) to require information from the claimants relevant 
to the investigation, (3) to rule upon the water right claim after notice and op-
portunity for hearing, (4) to impose the burden upon the water right claimant to 
prove the elements of the claimant’s right, and (5) to clarify that any determina-
tion of forfeiture of an appropriative right held in these proceedings would not 
require a showing of a competing claim or a clash of rights from other water 
rights holders as has been required by recent court decisions.

The State Water Project relies on post-1914 water rights permits for which much 
of the historical information that the State Board may request under this bill may 
not exist or may have been lost over the years. The bill would also make the State 
Water Board staff the determinators of whether this burden of proof has been 
met. 

SB 389 is set for its first hearing in the Senate Natural Resources and Water Com-
mittee on April 25.

DWR, continued from page 1

In March of this year, DWR approved plans for the Cuyama, Paso Robles, East-
ern San Joaquin, Merced, Westside, and Kings subbasins with recommended 
corrective actions for the basins to remain in an approved status. The remaining 
groundwater sustainability plans from the Chowchilla, Delta-Mendota, Kaweah, 
Tule, Tulare Lake, and Kern subbasins were determined to be inadequate. Ac-
cording to DWR, the basins deemed inadequate did not appropriately address 
deficiencies in how GSAs structured their sustainable management criteria. 

“The GSAs did not analyze and justify continued groundwater level declines and 
land subsidence,” DWR noted in their press release. “Further, the GSPs lacked a 
clear understanding of how the management criteria may cause undesired effects 
on groundwater users in the basins or critical infrastructure.” 

With the inadequate determination, primary jurisdiction over the basins shifts 
from DWR to the State Water Board, which will begin evaluating plans and de-
cide whether or not the state needs to intervene.  

Water Rights, continued from page 3

See DWR, page 5
Page 142 of 181Page 134 of 173

https://www.cdfa.ca.gov/oefi/technical/weta.html
https://www.cdfa.ca.gov/oefi/technical/pdf/WETA_RGA_draft_2022_forcomment.pdf
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240SB389


NEWS BRIEFS continued

During the State Water Board’s April 4, 2023 meeting, Natalie Stork, a super-
vising engineer with the State Water Board, provided an overview of the state 
intervention process. 

After a triggering event, like an inadequate determination, the Board may des-
ignate a basin probationary after providing notice and holding a public hearing; 
during this hearing, interested parties will have the opportunity to address the 
Board. If the Board designates a groundwater basin as probationary, the Board 
will identify deficiencies in the basin’s plan and provide actions necessary to 
remedy them. The Board also has the discretion to add or remove deficiencies 
as needed. Stork noted that even while addressing such deficiencies, it is critical 
that GSAs continue implementing adequate parts of their plans. 

“Our goal is to get basins back on track, and for local management to be success-
ful,” Stork said. “For that to work, [local agencies] need to keep implementing 
the good parts of their plans while working on the other parts.” 

The GSAs will be given a minimum of one year to address plan deficiencies and 
possibly end state intervention before the Board can implement an interim plan. 
An interim plan for a probationary basin will be adopted through a hearing 
process should the Board determine that a local agency has not fixed the deficien-
cies that resulted in the probationary designation. This interim plan will include 
corrective actions, a schedule for those actions, monitoring, and enforcement. To 
end State Water Board intervention, GSAs will have to demonstrate to the Board, 
which will consult with DWR, their ability and willingness to manage groundwa-
ter sustainably and address the issues that caused state intervention.

Throughout the April 4, 2023 meeting, both Stork and State Water Board mem-
bers reiterated that state intervention is designed to be temporary, and the goal is 
to return to local management with a clear path on how to achieve sustainability. 

“We’re proceeding as if these basins will be going into local control because that 
is what we want,” said State Water Board Chair E. Joaquin Esquivel. 

At this point, however, it is unclear as to how long the State Water Board’s inter-
vention process will take. Under SGMA, the Board has the discretion to under-
take this intervention process. Should the Board move forward with the process, 
the probationary hearings alone could take between three months to three years 
to complete, depending on the timeline the Board decides to adopt. 

Meanwhile, basins with plans recommended for approval will continue to work 
with DWR and report on their progress in implementing their plans and com-
pleting corrective actions.

“Since the onset of SGMA, local agencies have stepped up with dedication and 
progress in meeting critical milestones,” said DWR Director Karla Nemeth. 
“Protecting domestic wells, minimizing land subsidence, and protecting ground-
water resources are all State priorities. Implementation of these plans, which will 
require difficult adjustments as we go, will ultimately provide a safe and reliable 
groundwater supply for communities for generations to come.” 

Additional information on the State Water Board’s State Intervention Process can 
be found on the State Water Board’s SGMA State Intervention webpage or the 
SGMA Probationary Designation fact sheet. A recording of the State Water Board’s 
April 4, 2023 meeting is available HERE. 

DWR, continued from page 4

Page 5

 continued on next page

• Press Release

• Video of today’s Phillips survey

• Recording of Today’s Media 
Briefing

• Digital photos of today’s Phil-
lips survey

• B-roll of today’s Phillips survey

• Snowpack readings (View read-
ings for current regional snow-
pack and historical snowpack 
comparison)

• Precipitation data (View cur-
rent California Data Exchange 
Center charts for the Northern 
Sierra 8-station index for up-
dated rainfall readings in the 
critical northern portion of the 
state, as well as the San Joa-
quin 5-station index and Tu-
lare Basin 6-station index) 

State Water Project to Further 
Increase Water Supply Alloca-
tion
On April 20, 2023, the Depart-
ment of Water Resources (DWR) 
announced another increase in 
the forecasted State Water Project 
(SWP) deliveries this year. With 
reservoirs nearing capacity and 
snowmelt runoff starting to oc-
cur, DWR now expects to deliver 
100 percent of requested water 
supplies, up from 75 percent an-
nounced in March.

The news release can be found 
HERE. 

DWR Hold Media Briefing  
on Tulare Basin Flood  
Preparations 
Media Briefing Will Be Held  
Monday at 2 p.m.

In anticipation of potential flood 
impacts in the Tulare Lake Basin 
and San Joaquin Region due to a 
historic snowpack, the California 

Page 143 of 181Page 135 of 173

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/sgma/intervention.html
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/water_issues/programs/sgma/docs/sgma/sgma-prb.pdf?utm_medium=email&utm_source=govdelivery
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=bxDzf2M0ItQ
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDEsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzA0MDMuNzQ1NDQ0OTEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL3dhdGVyLmNhLmdvdi9OZXdzL05ld3MtUmVsZWFzZXMvMjAyMy9BcHJpbC0yMy9Tbm93LVN1cnZleS1BcHJpbC0yMDIzP3V0bV9tZWRpdW09ZW1haWwmdXRtX3NvdXJjZT1nb3ZkZWxpdmVyeSJ9.wXy_vx2m6WswtaXDFzjbvB7So89-QRzA6sYeKUdSrOw/s/2981162956/br/157351162228-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDIsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzA0MDMuNzQ1NDQ0OTEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL3d3dy55b3V0dWJlLmNvbS93YXRjaD91dG1fbWVkaXVtPWVtYWlsJnV0bV9zb3VyY2U9Z292ZGVsaXZlcnkmdj05NUwzaTlsUVpKWSJ9._3mg0tdl8Ts1hXwPLYdatEfTZZ8krbldiFT1xVBQMik/s/2981162956/br/157351162228-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDMsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzA0MDMuNzQ1NDQ0OTEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL2NhZHdyLmFwcC5ib3guY29tL3MveTMyc3EycHh0MDhjOWs5cTJ0ODF4OGN0bjM2NXY1OXI_dXRtX21lZGl1bT1lbWFpbCZ1dG1fc291cmNlPWdvdmRlbGl2ZXJ5In0.xjWl20lPG_crnv4ni3iePxJxbT2R94NaV_XCWrKZUqw/s/2981162956/br/157351162228-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDQsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzA0MDMuNzQ1NDQ0OTEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL3BpeGVsLWNhLWR3ci5waG90b3NoZWx0ZXIuY29tL2dhbGxlcmllcy9DMDAwMHYuUXlWN2hMbC5FL0cwMDAwRFRpVjJFRnhxRVkvU25vdy1TdXJ2ZXktQXByaWwtMjAyMz91dG1fbWVkaXVtPWVtYWlsJnV0bV9zb3VyY2U9Z292ZGVsaXZlcnkifQ.ejwyFuZl94er7MLa-pcX3eZJ-YApiPh5YGR66rTbuqo/s/2981162956/br/157351162228-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDUsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzA0MDMuNzQ1NDQ0OTEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL2NhZHdyLmFwcC5ib3guY29tL3MvYzFzdzJ2eWtvbnowODNjM2pvdWJ6YTJrMHdsbG9xZXg_dXRtX21lZGl1bT1lbWFpbCZ1dG1fc291cmNlPWdvdmRlbGl2ZXJ5In0.4Fc7V57aQn9vRBZ-W3r3O_OWAcvzDg_CmAwQCDdeAMs/s/2981162956/br/157351162228-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDYsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzA0MDMuNzQ1NDQ0OTEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL2NkZWMud2F0ZXIuY2EuZ292L3Nub3cvY3VycmVudC9zbm93L2luZGV4Lmh0bWw_dXRtX21lZGl1bT1lbWFpbCZ1dG1fc291cmNlPWdvdmRlbGl2ZXJ5In0.xOxNDTx5JmLmS4zqJ_gMYRfndL9IPB7vQEPdG9mFyJI/s/2981162956/br/157351162228-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDcsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzA0MDMuNzQ1NDQ0OTEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL2NkZWMud2F0ZXIuY2EuZ292L3JlcG9ydGFwcC9qYXZhcmVwb3J0cz9uYW1lPXN3Y2NvbmQucGRmJnV0bV9tZWRpdW09ZW1haWwmdXRtX3NvdXJjZT1nb3ZkZWxpdmVyeSJ9.3o432nFCaL5TqcNTSikLN08qCwJquaH20-6oup8UQMI/s/2981162956/br/157351162228-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDcsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzA0MDMuNzQ1NDQ0OTEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL2NkZWMud2F0ZXIuY2EuZ292L3JlcG9ydGFwcC9qYXZhcmVwb3J0cz9uYW1lPXN3Y2NvbmQucGRmJnV0bV9tZWRpdW09ZW1haWwmdXRtX3NvdXJjZT1nb3ZkZWxpdmVyeSJ9.3o432nFCaL5TqcNTSikLN08qCwJquaH20-6oup8UQMI/s/2981162956/br/157351162228-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDgsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzA0MDMuNzQ1NDQ0OTEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL2NkZWMud2F0ZXIuY2EuZ292L3JlcG9ydGFwcC9qYXZhcmVwb3J0cz9uYW1lPVBMT1RfU1dDLnBkZiZ1dG1fbWVkaXVtPWVtYWlsJnV0bV9zb3VyY2U9Z292ZGVsaXZlcnkifQ.cTp4AtJsWRNyS2l1I5AVIB0t_GtBtHxHoN1VS9N4uvI/s/2981162956/br/157351162228-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDgsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzA0MDMuNzQ1NDQ0OTEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL2NkZWMud2F0ZXIuY2EuZ292L3JlcG9ydGFwcC9qYXZhcmVwb3J0cz9uYW1lPVBMT1RfU1dDLnBkZiZ1dG1fbWVkaXVtPWVtYWlsJnV0bV9zb3VyY2U9Z292ZGVsaXZlcnkifQ.cTp4AtJsWRNyS2l1I5AVIB0t_GtBtHxHoN1VS9N4uvI/s/2981162956/br/157351162228-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMDksInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzA0MDMuNzQ1NDQ0OTEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL2NkZWMud2F0ZXIuY2EuZ292L3Nub3dfcmFpbi5odG1sP3V0bV9tZWRpdW09ZW1haWwmdXRtX3NvdXJjZT1nb3ZkZWxpdmVyeSJ9.KUnhOq3jS1fCazAeNsNfc4L3JkcG-HBTqEnSzE1mQFU/s/2981162956/br/157351162228-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMTAsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzA0MDMuNzQ1NDQ0OTEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL2NkZWMud2F0ZXIuY2EuZ292L3JlcG9ydGFwcC9qYXZhcmVwb3J0cz9uYW1lPVRBQl9FU0kucGRmJnV0bV9tZWRpdW09ZW1haWwmdXRtX3NvdXJjZT1nb3ZkZWxpdmVyeSJ9.n86AAr_9BOPe77m--6iZEnTE-YnszMpcB-soyaAh_sE/s/2981162956/br/157351162228-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMTAsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzA0MDMuNzQ1NDQ0OTEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL2NkZWMud2F0ZXIuY2EuZ292L3JlcG9ydGFwcC9qYXZhcmVwb3J0cz9uYW1lPVRBQl9FU0kucGRmJnV0bV9tZWRpdW09ZW1haWwmdXRtX3NvdXJjZT1nb3ZkZWxpdmVyeSJ9.n86AAr_9BOPe77m--6iZEnTE-YnszMpcB-soyaAh_sE/s/2981162956/br/157351162228-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMTIsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzA0MDMuNzQ1NDQ0OTEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL2NkZWMud2F0ZXIuY2EuZ292L3JlcG9ydGFwcC9qYXZhcmVwb3J0cz9uYW1lPVRBQl9UU0kucGRmJnV0bV9tZWRpdW09ZW1haWwmdXRtX3NvdXJjZT1nb3ZkZWxpdmVyeSJ9.Obeqx_HK3y-mWjWnzENrjRZcWMumPTO4wgYcqyEhevk/s/2981162956/br/157351162228-l
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9.eyJidWxsZXRpbl9saW5rX2lkIjoxMTIsInVyaSI6ImJwMjpjbGljayIsImJ1bGxldGluX2lkIjoiMjAyMzA0MDMuNzQ1NDQ0OTEiLCJ1cmwiOiJodHRwczovL2NkZWMud2F0ZXIuY2EuZ292L3JlcG9ydGFwcC9qYXZhcmVwb3J0cz9uYW1lPVRBQl9UU0kucGRmJnV0bV9tZWRpdW09ZW1haWwmdXRtX3NvdXJjZT1nb3ZkZWxpdmVyeSJ9.Obeqx_HK3y-mWjWnzENrjRZcWMumPTO4wgYcqyEhevk/s/2981162956/br/157351162228-l
https://water.ca.gov/News/News-Releases/2023/April-23/State-Water-Project-to-Further-Increase-Water-Supply-Allocation?utm_medium=email&utm_source=govdelivery


Administration Distributes Funding for CA Water Infrastructure
On April 5, 2023, the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation announced the distribution of 
$585 million for water infrastructure projects nationwide. This amount includes 
more than $300 million for 24 projects in California to improve water convey-
ance and storage, as well as improving hydro power capabilities.

The funded projects in California include:

• $25 million for planning, design, and subsequent implementation of Delta 
Mendota Canal Jones Pumping Plant Excitation Cabinet and Control Panel 
Refurbishment.

• $927.612 million to complete required feasibility study, as well as for sub-
sequent permitting and design costs of the Delta Mendota Canal Subsidence 
Correction Project

• $3 million for Folsom Dam Fiber Upgrade and Installation

• $7.5 million for Folsom Pumping Plant Pumps and Pump Motors Replace-
ment

• $745.7 million foo fund required feasibility study, and subsequent permitting 
and design costs of the Friant Kern Canal Capacity Correction

• $24.7 million for refurbishment of Shasta Dam (refurbishing tube valves and 
upgrading a temperature control device)

A full list of funded projects can be found Here.

This funding announcement was followed by the Department of the Interior’s 
$20 million funding announcement for four small surface and groundwater stor-
age projects in California and Utah. The projects funded in California include:  

• $4.7 Million for Groundwater Banking Joint Powers Authority’s Phase 
1 of the Kern Fan Groundwater Storage Project. Phase one of the Kern 
Fan Project includes the acquisition of 350 acres in Kern County for the con-
struction and operation of recharge basins, recovery wells, and conveyance 
infrastructure. The storage capacity is approximately 28,000 acre-feet with a 
projected average annual yield of 2,482 acre-feet.    

• $1 Million for Del Puerto Water District’s Orestimba Creek Recharge 
and Recovery Project. The project is a small groundwater storage project 
in which water will be stored in a local aquifer in wet years and then used in 
dry years to provide agricultural water supply. Recharge water will include 
available unstorable Central Valley Project supplies and flood water flows 
from Orestimba Creek. The projected average annual yield is 1,485 acre-feet. 

• $9.5 Million for Imperial Irrigation District’s Upstream Reservoir 
Storage Project. The primary purpose of the Upstream Operational Res-
ervoir Storage Project is to maximize Imperial Irrigation District’s water 
management efficiency within the Imperial Valley. The project has a storage 
capacity of 2,100 acre-feet with a projected water in-valley conservation yield 
of 15,000 acre-feet per year for in-valley use. 

These projects, funded through the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law, are essential 
tools to help conserve water and increase the efficiency of water use in the Colo-
rado River Basin. 

Page 6

UPCOMING MEETINGS

Delta Stewardship Council
April 27, 2023; 10:00am
California Natural Resources 
Building
715 P Street, Room 221 
Sacramento, CA 95814
Agenda, Webcast, Zoom
Phone: 1-669-444-9171 
webinar ID: 883 3206 8588

Central Valley Regional  
Quality Control Board
April 27-28, 2023; 9:00am
Kern County Board of  
Supervisors Chambers
1115 Truxtun Avenue
Bakersfield, CA 933301
Agenda, Webcast (4/27),  
Webcast (4/28),  
Participation Guide 

California Central Valley 
Flood Protection Board
April 28, 2023; 10:00am
Joe Serna Jr.—CalEPA Building
1001 I Street, Sierra Hearing 
Room
Sacramento, CA 95814
Agenda (Not Yet Posted) 

See CA Water Infrastructure, page 7

Department of Water Resourc-
es (DWR) will hold a media 
briefing on Monday, April 24 
via Zoom at 2 PM with experts 
from DWR’s State-Federal 
Flood Operations Center to 
discuss the short-term climate 
outlook and ongoing coordina-
tion efforts with state and local 
emergency response agencies. 
If you wish to attend the Zoom 
briefing, please register here. 
Spanish interpretation will be 
provided. A recording of the 
briefing will be made available 
later on Monday.

NEWS BRIEFS continued

Page 144 of 181Page 136 of 173

https://www.feinstein.senate.gov/public/_cache/files/8/6/869289a1-2098-471c-bbf2-30dbacb93d55/B1629492F9F585E6B73D80333BE2E310.fy-2023-extraordinary-maintenance-report-table.pdf
https://deltacouncil.ca.gov/pdf/council-meeting/meeting-notice/2023-04-27-council-meeting-notice.pdf
https://cal-span.org/meetings/DSC/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88332068588
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/board_info/meetings/2023/2304ag.pdf
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=d_rrFdFbDmg
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=JfAhk3yw6-E
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/centralvalley/board_info/meetings/
http://cvfpb.ca.gov/event/april-28-2023-board-meeting/


Valley Ag Water Coalition
The mission of the Valley Ag Water Coalition is to represent the collective interests of its San Joaquin Valley member 
agricultural water companies and agencies in California legislative and regulatory matters by providing leadership 
and advocacy on issues relating to the development and delivery of a reliable farm water supply.

Sacramento Report is published monthly by Reeb Government Relations, LLC
1415 L Street, Suite 870, Sacramento, CA 95814, e-mail: bobr@water-warrior.com

UPCOMING MEETINGS 
continued

State Water Resources  
Control Board
May 2-3, 2023; 9:30am
Joe Serna Jr.—CalEPA Building
1001 I St., Coastal Hearing Room
Sacramento, CA 95814
Notice, Webcast, Participation 
Guide 

California Central Valley 
Flood Protection Board
May 12, 2023; 10:00am
Sacramento Area Council  
of Governments
1415 L Street, Suite 300
Sacramento, CA 95814
Agenda (Not Yet Posted) 

State Water Resources  
Control Board
May 16-18, 2023; 9:30am
Joe Serna Jr.—CalEPA Building
1001 I St., Coastal Hearing Room
Sacramento, CA 95814
Agenda (Not Yet Posted),  
Webcast, Participation Guide 

California Water Commission
May 17, 2023; 9:30am
California Resources Building
715 P St., 1st Floor Auditorium
Sacramento, CA 95814
Agenda (Not Yet Posted),  
Participation Guide,  
Call-in: (408) 638-0968 or  
(669) 900-6833
Meeting ID: 874 8202 3626 
Passcode: 874029

Page 5

These announcements come as Biden-Harris administration officials are traveling 
across the Colorado River Basin as part of the Investing in America tour to high-
light investments from the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law and Inflation Reduction 
Act. Combined, these laws represent the largest investments in climate resilience 
in the nation’s history and provide unprecedented resources to support the 
Administration’s comprehensive, government-wide approach to make Western 
communities more resilient to drought and climate change. 

The Bipartisan Infrastructure Law provides $8.3 billion for Reclamation water 
infrastructure projects over five years to advance drought resilience and expand 
access to clean water for families, farmers and wildlife. The investment will repair 
aging water delivery systems, secure dams, complete rural water projects, and 
protect aquatic ecosystems. The Inflation Reduction Act is investing another $4.6 
billion to address Western drought. 

“The Bipartisan Infrastructure Law is making a historic investment to provide 
clean, reliable water to families, farmers and Tribes, and increase resilience to 
drought,” said Bureau of Reclamation Commissioner Camille Calimlim Touton. 
“The funding announced today will boost water storage opportunities and create 
a more reliable water supply for future generations, by increasing resiliency and 
providing more flexibility for water managers.” 

When asked about the possibility of securing additional funding for Sites Reser-
voir, Bureau of Reclamation Commissioner Camille Calimlim Touton said they 
plan to look into additional resources this year for reservoirs which she said 
might include Sites.

The Sites Reservoir aims to store up to 1.5 million acre-feet of Sacramento 
River water, potentially enhancing water supplies for over 24 million people 
and 500,000 acres of Central Valley farmland. The project’s cost is estimated at 
$4.4 billion, with Prop. 1 covering up to $875 million and the remaining funds 
coming from federal loans to water suppliers. The reservoir could have captured 
120,000 acre-feet of water during January’s storms, enough to serve about 1.3 
million Californians for a year.

CA Water Infrastructure, continued from page 6

Page 145 of 181Page 137 of 173

https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_info/calendar/docs/2023/notice-prop1gwgp-032323.pdf
https://video.calepa.ca.gov/#/
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_info/remote_meeting/
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_info/remote_meeting/
http://cvfpb.ca.gov/event/may-12-2023-board-workshop/
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_info/calendar/#04-2023
https://video.calepa.ca.gov/#/ 
https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/board_info/remote_meeting/
https://cwc.ca.gov/Meetings/All-Meetings/2023/Meeting-of-the-California-Water-Commission-May-17-2023 Zoom: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87482023626?pwd=aDU3dlhMdWhQd2JhaGphSUIyMzdRdz09#success
https://cwc.ca.gov/-/media/CWC-Website/Files/Documents/2023/04_April/April2023_PublicParticipation_Final.pdf


 

 

 
 
March 3, 2021 
 
 
The Honorable Bill Quirk 
Chair, Assembly Environmental & Toxic Materials Committee 
State Capitol, Room 2163 
Sacramento, California 95814 
 
RE: Assembly Bill No. 377—Oppose 
 
Dear Assembly Member Quirk: 
 
I am writing on behalf of Valley Ag Water Coalition (VAWC) to express opposition to AB 377 
(Robert Rivas), relating to water quality. Our coalition consists of 43 local agency, mutual water 
companies and ditch companies that deliver farm water supply throughout the San Joaquin Valley—
the top agricultural region in the nation.  
 
AB 377 would require all waters of the state to be fishable, swimmable, and drinkable by 2050. 
VAWC believes the requirement proposed by your legislation is contrary to federal and state law 
regarding the designation of water bodies for beneficial uses.  
 
AB 377 provides that a basin water quality control plan can only include a schedule for 
implementation of a water quality standard that is adopted after January 1, 2021, if certain conditions 
are met. This provision would, in effect, end the recent CV-Salts program that is the product of a 
collaborative stakeholder driven and managed program to develop sustainable salinity and nitrate 
management planning for the Central Valley.  The Central Valley Salinity Alternatives for Long-Term 
Sustainability initiative (CV-SALTS) began in 2006 as a coalition of representatives from agriculture, 
municipalities, industry, water supply, environmental justice, state and federal regulatory agencies 
and the public to develop an environmentally and economically sustainable plan for the management 
of salt and nitrate in the Central Valley. 
 
The Salt and Nutrient Management Plan is addressing legacy and ongoing loadings of salt and nitrate 
in the Central Valley and presents a comprehensive regulatory and programmatic approach for the 
sustainable management of salt and nitrate in groundwater and surface water. The Plan’s 
Antidegradation Analysis notes: "U.S. EPA regulations also require state water quality standard 
submittals to include an antidegradation policy to protect beneficial uses and prevent further 
degradation of high-quality waters (33 U.S.C. § 1313(d)(4)(B); 40 C.F.R. § 131.12). In general, the 
Federal Antidegradation Policy emphasizes the maintenance of existing ambient conditions. The 
Federal Antidegradation Policy considers lowering of water quality to be allowable in some cases, 
including those where the costs of control would cause widespread and substantial economic and 
social impacts." The State’s Antidegradation Policy is embodied in SWRCB Resolution No. 68-16  
  

Page 146 of 181Page 138 of 173



The Honorable Bill Quirk 
March 3, 2021 
Page 2 
 
 
(Statement of Policy with Respect to Maintaining High Quality Waters in California). In general, the 
policy emphasizes the protection of high-quality waters, which include groundwater.   
 
According to the Central Valley Salinity Coalition: "Many activities are underway to achieve 
compliance with the new Nitrate Control Program in the Central Valley’s six Priority 1 subbasins, 
where safe drinking water must be provided in areas with high nitrate levels and nitrate management 
plans must be adopted beginning in 2021. These subbasins include Modesto, Turlock, Chowchilla, 
Kings, Kaweah, and Tule. Early steps on the path toward compliance have included outreach to 
permittees and disadvantaged community leaders, data collection, cost assessments, provision of 
drinking water, and progress toward the complex task of Management Zone formation." 
 
Similarly, AB 377 would negatively affect the Irrigated Lands Regulatory Program, which was initiated 
in 2003 to prevent agricultural runoff from impairing surface waters. Groundwater regulations were 
added to the program in 2012.  Waste discharge requirements designed to protect both surface water 
and groundwater address irrigated agricultural discharges throughout the Central Valley. 
 
VAWC believes the above-described programs that its members have worked with the State Water 
Resources Control Board and the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board to implement 
will result in improved water quality in both the surface waters and in the groundwater basins in the 
San Joaquin Valley. AB 377 ignores the proper balance between providing a secure, affordable food 
supply and protecting the beneficial uses of the waters of the state. AB 377 would establish a 
requirement that is neither feasible nor necessary. 
 
Thank you for your time and consideration. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Robert J. Reeb 
Executive Director 
 
RJR: 
cc: The Honorable Robert Rivas 

The Honorable Robert Hertzberg 
Members, Assembly Environmental & Toxic Materials Committee 
Consultant, Assembly Environmental & Toxic Materials Committee 
Assembly Republican Caucus 

Page 147 of 181Page 139 of 173



MAY 2023

Farm Water Update
AT THE CROSSROADS OF WATER & GROWING FOOD

Water Rights Protect All Californians - 
Farms, Communities, Businesses, and the Environment

Water Rights Protect the Interests of All 
Californians 
A reliable supply of water is the foundation of 
California’s economy, essential to our quality of life, 
and integral to the future of jobs, manufacturing, 
farms, and housing. 

The right to use water is determined by state laws and 
regulations. California operates under a dual system 
that recognizes both riparian rights (property owners 
adjacent to rivers and streams) and appropriative 
rights (first in time, first in use). Allocations are 
determined according to those rights,  which means 
some users get access to water sooner because they 
have older rights (also known as pre-1914 water 
rights) or were awarded more senior rights  under 
area of origin laws. 

Water rights holders rely on the predictability of water 
for planning, infrastructure investment, and serving 
farms, cities, and the environment. 

Public agencies hold about 80% of the surface water 
rights in California and are responsible for delivering 
that water to Californians as well as generating clean 
renewable electricity and protecting water quality, 
fisheries, and other beneficial uses of water.  

In wet years, like 2023, most water users can use 
the water they need and there is plenty of water 
remaining in the natural environment to protect 
water quality and fisheries. It is in dry years that all 
water users rely on our water rights system to help 
them plan and make investment decisions. 

Importance of California Agriculture to Our 
State and Nation
According to the Water Education Foundation, 
California has been the nation’s leading agricultural 
and dairy state for the past 50 years and the state’s 
farms generated a record $51.1 billion in sales value 
in 2021, accounting for 12.5 percent of the US total. 
Breaking down the state’s agricultural role in the 
country, California produces about 19 percent of the 
nation’s milk supply, 23 percent of its cheese and 99 
percent of all grapes. The state also produces half of 
all domestically grown fruits, nuts, and vegetables.

Processing tomato harvest near Helm, in the San Joaquin 
Valley. California grows 90 percent of the U.S.-produced 
processing tomatoes, supplying manufacturers of pizza 
and spaghetti sauce, salsa, soups, and many other 
processed foods.

Page 148 of 181Page 140 of 173



A 2020 report by two UC Berkeley professors 
describes the results of an economic analysis of 
water supply restrictions affecting growers in the San 
Joaquin Valley. It indicates that over the next 30 years, 
water supply cuts will lead to the permanent loss of 
1 million acres of productive farmland. Fewer healthy 
foods will be available from California farms. The 
report estimates that California will permanently lose: 

	 86,000 acres of vegetables 

	 130,000 acres of fruit-producing trees 

	 129,000 acres of wine and table grapes 

	 327,000 acres of nuts 

These reductions translate into the permanent loss 
of 85,000 jobs, half of which are off the farm, such 
as food processing, transportation, wholesale, retail, 
and ports. They also mean the permanent loss of 
over $535 million in tax revenue which, again, is used 
to provide the services local communities value, like 
police, firefighters, and teachers. 

Population Growth and Current Allocation of 
Water Supply
From 1900 to 1950, California’s population rose from 
under 2 million to 10 million and reached 34 million 
by 2000. Although the rate of population growth has 
slowed recently, California experienced increasing 
demand for water during a time when very little 
additional supply of water was added, in large part 
because development of major water resources 
infrastructure ceased almost entirely in the 1960s. 

Today, roughly 40% of all California water flows 
through the Sacramento-San Joaquin River Delta, 
where it remains or flows to the ocean. About 17% 
is allocated to Central Valley farmers and residents 
of the Bay Area and Southern California. California’s 
total developed water supply is divided, with about 
50% going to environmental projects and programs, 
40% to agriculture, and 10% to cities statewide. (PPIC)

Can the Existing Water Rights System Balance 
Competing Uses? 
In California, a water right holder does not own the 
water. Under Section 102 of the California Water 
Code, those who hold water rights have the right to 
beneficially use water, but the state is said to “own” 
the water.  

When there is not enough water to satisfy all water 
rights holders, riparian rights are senior, and in times 
of shortage are satisfied before any water can be 
taken by the oldest appropriative right. 

The State Water Board has existing authority to 
ensure water users are complying with the various 
water rights laws. 

First, the State Water Board has broad administrative 
enforcement mechanisms under Water Code 
Sections 1052 and 1831 to address unauthorized 
diversion. The State Water Board can refer an action 
for injunctive relief to the Attorney General for 
unauthorized diversions. The Board has authority 
under Water Code Sections 1052 and 1825 to 
investigate the legality of water use, to determine 
whether a diversion is authorized, and to issue cease 
and desist orders and fines when warranted. 

Second, Water Code Section 1058.5 grants the 
State Water Board authority to adopt emergency 
regulations in drought years to implement the water 
rights priority system and to prevent unauthorized 
diversion of water. 

Third, all water rights holders who divert water, 
under any basis of right, are required to measure the 
water they divert and report that information to the 
State Water Board, and the State Water Board may 
issue fines for diverters who fail to timely file such 
reports.  

Fourth, Water Code Section 1051 authorizes the State 
Water Board to investigate stream systems, and other 
code sections authorize the State Water Board to 
determine all rights to water of a stream system. 

Environmental, environmental justice, and fishery 
organizations believe the water rights system should 
be reformed to adapt to the effects of climate 
change—that more water should remain in rivers 
and streams for environmental purposes, including 
to benefit threatened and endangered fisheries. They 
support granting the State Water Board broad new 
powers to reduce diversions in all water years rather 
than only in times of drought.  

The Tuolumne River provides habitat for spawning 
salmon and reliable water supplies for senior water 
rights holders in agricultural and urban areas across 
Central California.

Page 149 of 181Page 141 of 173



Valley Ag Water Coalition | Bob Reeb bobr@water-warrior.com  
The mission of the Valley Ag Water Coalition is to represent the collective interests of its San Joaquin Valley member 
agricultural water companies and agencies in California legislative and regulatory matters by providing leadership and 
advocacy on issues relating to the development and delivery of a reliable farm water supply.

California Farm Water Coalition | Mike Wade mwade@farmwater.org  
CFWC is a non-profit, educational organization that provides fact-based information on farm water issues to the public.

Water rights holders believe broad new authority for 
the State Water Board would dramatically reduce 
the value of a water right, including its volumetric 
reliability, and would make it impossible for water 
rights holders to serve Californians. 

Infrastructure Investment Supplies Water for 
all Beneficial Uses 
To function, our water system relies on an intricate 
system of canals, pipes, levees, water treatment 
plants, and more. That critical infrastructure is 
built and maintained by water agencies and their 
customers. If we take away water supply reliability 
through unexpected curtailments, regardless of the 
water year type, we also make it more challenging 
to repair existing infrastructure and build more to 
meet growing demand. This uncertainty erodes the 
ability to predict future water sales, which is the 
revenue stream needed to pay for the projects. And 
because our water delivery system is more than 50 
years old, and the demands of climate change require 
additional infrastructure, investment is critical right 
now. 

Lack of infrastructure impacts the environment as 
well. The partnerships between water agencies and 
local farmers that have been responsible for science-
based fish habitat restoration, building fish ladders 
and weirs, providing spawning habitat for salmon 
and other improvements that protect and enhance 
the ecosystem provides just one example. Without 
a reliable water supply, these investments are less 
likely.  

California Has a Critical Shortage of 
Affordable Housing
Every eight years, the state sets a target for the 
number of homes needed for each income level to 
meet the housing needs of all Californians. California 
must plan for more than 2.5 million homes over the 
next eight-year cycle, and no less than one million of 
those homes must meet the needs of lower-income 
households. This represents more than double the 
housing planned for in the last eight-year cycle. 

Building all types of housing requires being able to 
identify a water supply not just for today, but 20 years 
into the future.  Section 66473.7 of the Government 
Code requires a proposed residential development of 
more than 500 dwelling units to have a demonstrated 

“sufficient water supply” before approval by a city 
or county. A sufficient water supply means the total 
water supplies available during normal, single-dry, 
and multiple-dry years within a 20-year projection 
must meet the projected demand. Stripping away the 
reliability of water supply threatens the state’s ability 
to meet the essential housing need it has identified. 

Protecting Water Supply Reliability is 
Essential for All Californians 
Whether it is communities providing water to their 
residents, farmers who make planting decisions to 
stock our grocery stores, water for the environment, 
business, and industrial uses, and even meeting 
our clean energy goals – all water users need to 
know how much water they can rely on. And it is 
important to remember that no matter who holds 
the water rights, both the California Constitution 
and the California Water Code protect all uses 
deemed beneficial by the state, require those uses be 
balanced, and protect against water being wasted. 

Our existing water supplies cannot satisfy all 
demands during drought. The Legislature can amend 
existing law to provide for swifter and more effective 
action by the State Water Board in such times. 
Incremental changes in the authority granted to the 
State Water Board can achieve meaningful changes 
in behavior without fundamentally altering the water 
rights system. The illegal use of water can be met with 
more significant financial penalties that will serve as a 
deterrent to bad behavior.  

California’s critical housing shortage could be further 
complicated by increasingly uncertain access to water 
supplies 

Page 150 of 181Page 142 of 173



 

  

 
 
 
 
 
June 2, 2023 
 
 
The Honorable Dave Min 
Chair, Senate Natural Resources & Water Committee 
1021 O Street, Suite 6710 
Sacramento, California 95814 
 
RE: Assembly Bill No. 1205—Oppose 
 
Dear Senator Min: 
 
I am writing on behalf of Valley Ag Water Coalition (VAWC) to express opposition to  
AB 1205 (Bauer-Kahan), relating to water rights. VAWC members are ditch companies, 
mutual water companies, and local agencies that deliver farm water supplies in the San 
Joaquin Valley. 
 
AB 1205 would add a finding and declaration to the Water Code that speculation or 
profiteering by an investment fund in the sale, transfer, or lease of an interest in 
any surface water or groundwater water right previously put to beneficial use 
on agricultural lands is a waste or an unreasonable use of water. 
 
According to the Assembly Water, Parks & Wildlife Committee analysis of AB 1205: 
 

“The author points to increasing news reports and anecdotes of large 
institutional investors and foreign corporations that are buying up agricultural land 
in California to acquire both surface water and groundwater rights in order to 
monetize and profit off of those rights as the reason for authoring this bill.” 

 
The Committee analysis also notes by way of background: 
 

“News reports over the past decade have highlighted different examples of 
hedge funds and other large institutional investors buying up agricultural land in 
California to market associated water resources, farm permanent crops with 
groundwater resources at an unsustainable rate, or grow livestock silage for 
export. Recent reporting in Bloomberg (“Groundwater Gold Rush,” April 11, 
2023), for example, focuses on how many of these large institutional investors 
have bought up farmland and used diminishing groundwater supplies to irrigate 
nut and other permanent crops at a significant profit while drawing down 
groundwater levels so that nearby domestic wells can no longer produce water 
for households. 

Page 151 of 181Page 143 of 173



2 | P a g e  
 

First, there is little, if any, empirical evidence to support the contention that investment 
funds are acquiring agricultural land for purposes of engaging in the sale, transfer, or 
lease of an interest in surface water or groundwater. Second, AB 1205 would not have 
any effect on the extraction of groundwater to irrigate crops as reported in the media 
account referenced in the Assembly policy analysis. Citing the latter misleads or 
distracts from the stated reason for the legislation. 
 
AB 1205 is Contrary to the State’s Interest in a Functioning Water Market 
 
Water transfers are an important component of California water resources management. 
The temporary transfer of surface water on a local and regional scale is routine and is a 
particularly important way of meeting statewide water demands in dry and critically dry 
water years. There also has been an increasing number of long-term transfer 
agreements like that supporting the Quantification Settlement Agreement between 
Imperial Irrigation District and San Diego County Water Authority (and several other 
federal, local, and state water agencies), as well as entitlement transactions between 
agricultural and urban State Water Project contractors that represent a significant share 
of overall water transfers by volume. Water is transferred in California for municipal and 
industrial, irrigation, and instream use for water quality and fisheries protection, and to 
facilitate groundwater banking programs. 
 
According to the State Water Resources Control Board (Board), the majority of water 
transfers are short-term water transfers that are in effect for less than one year. If the 
Board finds a proposed transfer will not injure any other legal user of water and will not 
unreasonably affect fish, wildlife, or other instream users, then the transfer is approved. 
The Board does not have authority to review the financial terms of a transfer. 
 
Over the past several decades, the Legislature has enacted statutes that encourage 
and facilitate surface water transfers. These statutes authorize and regulate short-term 
and long-term transfers, transfers of conserved and surplus water, transfers of water 
made available through recycling and participation in conjunctive use programs, and 
access to third-party agency facilities to transport water (See Water Code Sections 
1010-1018, 1020-1031, 1700-1745.11, and 1810-1815). 
 
Temporary transfers and long-term transfers of water by any water rights holder are 
generally subject to review and approval by the Board. The Board can only approve a 
temporary change if it determines that a preponderance of the evidence shows both of 
the following: (a) The proposed temporary change would not injure any legal user of the 
water, during any potential hydrologic condition that the board determines is likely to 
occur during the proposed change, through significant changes in water quantity, water 
quality, timing of diversion or use, consumptive use of the water, or reduction in return 
flows; and (b) The proposed temporary change would not unreasonably affect fish, 
wildlife, or other instream beneficial uses (see Sections 1728 and 1736, Water Code). 
 
The vast majority of water transfers in California are transfers of water between State 
Water Project (SWP) contractors, and transfers of water between federal Central Valley 

Page 152 of 181Page 144 of 173



3 | P a g e  
 

Project (CVP) contractors. In contrast, inter-basin transfers of groundwater are rare, 
with about half of California’s counties having enacted ordinances that restrict the 
transfer of groundwater beyond county boundaries. Those ordinances apply both to the 
direct transfer of groundwater and to a transfer in which the transferor sells or leases 
surface water and then increases its pumping of groundwater to replace the transferred 
surface water. 
 
The Legislature has generally deferred to local policies on groundwater transfers. For 
example, Section 1220 of the Water Code prohibits groundwater exports from the 
combined Sacramento and Delta-Central Sierra basins without the approval of the 
boards of supervisors and the voters of the counties that overlie the groundwater basin. 
Section 1745.10 of the Water Code bans groundwater substitution transfers unless the 
transfer is either consistent with the local groundwater management plan or “approved 
by the water supplier from whose service area the water is to be transferred.” Finally, 
the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) authorizes groundwater 
sustainability agencies to include in their groundwater sustainability plans rules 
authorizing water transfers within their respective boundaries. Section 10726.4 of the 
Water Code authorizes a groundwater sustainability agency to authorize temporary and 
permanent transfers of groundwater extraction allocations within the agency’s 
boundaries, if the total quantity of groundwater extracted in any water year is consistent 
with the provisions of the groundwater sustainability plan. The transfer is subject to 
applicable city and county ordinances. 
 
Finally, the transfer, sale, or lease of water avoids the need to develop additional water 
supply projects that mitigate water shortages in times of drought for urban and 
agricultural water suppliers. In this example, farmers, cities, and environmental water 
users all benefit from the flexibility a water market provides. 
 
The Mechanism for Enforcement of the Prohibition is Unclear 
 
AB 1205 may enact an unenforceable law—a law which is formally in effect (de jure), 
but is usually (de facto) not penalized. Such laws are usually ignored by enforcement 
entities, and therefore there are few if any practical consequences for breaking them. 
The Board lacks the capability to monitor real property transactions throughout the state 
or identify whether a real property owner is covered under the definition of “investment 
fund.” Further, AB 1205 does not address the manner in which the Board—or a court--
would determine whether the sale, transfer, or lease of an interest in water resulted in 
speculation or profiteering (the latter being undefined in the legislation). A pre-1914 
water right holder, for example, can change the point of diversion, purpose of use, or 
place of use as long as another legal user of water is not injured and is not required to 
petition the Board to change the place of use pursuant to their right to transfer water.  
AB 1205, therefore, could have the unintended effect of providing authority to the Board 
where it does not have authority under current law. 
 
AB 1205 could be susceptible to attack for being unconstitutionally vague. The ‘void for 
vagueness’ doctrine derives from the Due Process Clauses of the Fifth and Fourteenth 

Page 153 of 181Page 145 of 173



4 | P a g e  
 

Amendments to the United States Constitution. That is, vague laws unconstitutionally 
deprive people of their rights without due process. In the instant case, AB 1205—which 
would enact a finding and declaration under the Water Code—does not specify the 
manner in which the prohibition against waste and unreasonable use would be 
regulated or adjudicated. Although the legislation attempts to define “investment fund” it 
likely extends coverage to pension funds, insurance funds, foundations, and 
endowments. Also, several publicly traded real estate investment trusts (REITs) hold 
farmland. 
 
The Definition of “Agricultural Lands” is Unnecessarily Expansive 
 
AB 1205 defines “agricultural lands” for purposes of the legislation. The definition comes 
from the Public Resources Code and more specifically from the Farmland Mapping and 
Monitoring Program (FMMP). The definition includes prime farmland, farmland of 
statewide importance, unique farmland, farmland of local importance, and grazing land. 
It is a minor point, but the purpose of FMMP is not to consider the economic viability of 
agricultural lands but rather to prepare an inventory of agricultural lands. Why is this 
important? Well, while prime farmland has the soil quality, growing season, and 
moisture supply needed to produce sustained high yields, farmland of statewide 
importance has minor shortcomings, like greater slopes or less ability to store soil 
moisture. As you go down the list above, the designations cover lesser quality soils and 
greater soil moisture challenges.  
 
Reliance on FMMP for the definition of “agricultural lands” is inherently antithetical to 
Section 2 of Article X of the California Constitution in that AB 1205 would prohibit, based 
on property ownership, putting the use of the water resources of the State to the fullest 
extent of which they are capable. As an example, the transfer, sale, or lease of water 
from fallowed farmland, farmland that is not prime farmland, or for the irrigation of a 
higher value crop, would be prohibited under AB 1205 if ownership is by an “investment 
fund.” 
 
AB 1205 Turns the Board’s Designation of Beneficial Use on its Head 
 
AB 1205, in effect, declares a beneficial use designated by the Board to be a waste and 
unreasonable use of water. AB 1205 would prohibit the transfer, sale, or lease of surface 
water or groundwater from one farm to another, from a farm to a city (municipal and 
industrial use), or from a farm to an environmental purpose if the transferor is an 
investment fund and if speculation or profiteering occurred. All of these end uses are 
categorized as beneficial uses by the Board. This would be a particular concern in 
critically dry years when urban areas are short of water supply and rely on farm to urban 
transfers to meet customer demand—even for essential health and safety purposes. 
 
In addition, California has a clear and detailed statutory regime for changes in the 
purpose of use of water rights to environmental uses that provides a great degree of 
flexibility for water rights holders. Section 1707 of the Water Code allows appropriative 
and riparian water rights holders to petition the Board to change the beneficial use or 

Page 154 of 181Page 146 of 173



5 | P a g e  
 

any other aspect of their right “for purposes of preserving or enhancing wetlands 
habitat, fish and wildlife resources, or recreation in, or on, the water.” Section 1707 
provides that such transfers are to be processed under the statutory scheme for all 
water transfers. Water rights holders can simply change all or a portion of their right to 
environmental purposes with the option of petitioning to change the right back again in 
the future. They can also transfer their rights to a conservation group or state agency. 
Section 1707 and related statutes also allow for permanent, long-term, temporary, and 
emergency changes to water rights. 

 
AB 1205 would not only apply to the actual sale, transfer, or lease of water, but to any 
interest in any surface water or groundwater right previously put to beneficial use on 
agricultural lands within the state. This not only calls into question agricultural to 
agricultural transactions as noted above, but also agricultural to environmental 
transactions, e.g., environmental water account purchases, and agricultural to urban 
transactions. AB 1205 also could apply to commodity futures market participants in the 
Chicago Mercantile Exchange. Futures markets exist primarily for hedging, which 
manages price risk for a commodity. Hedgers in the market are California water users, 
including municipalities, water districts, and businesses such as farmers and 
manufacturers. These futures contracts are traded through Nasdaq Veles California 
Water Index Futures. It is unclear whether AB 1205 has the potential to impair contracts 
related to futures trading or contracts covering existing long-term water transfers. 
 
Is AB 1205 Concerned with Speculation or Profiteering? 
 
AB 1205 defines “speculation” to mean “the sale, transfer, or lease of an interest in a 
water right by an investment fund to profit from an increase in the water’s value in a 
subsequent transaction or without a plan to put the water to beneficial use”. This 
provision of the bill would prohibit an investment fund from gaining a profit defined as an 
increase in the water’s value in a subsequent transaction. As stated above, AB 1205 
does not provide direction as to the manner in which the value of water would be 
calculated at the time property is acquired, whether the property was acquired on a 
speculative basis, or whether profiteering has occurred. What, for example, would be 
the value of groundwater at the time of a property purchase? 
 
AB 1205 declares that speculation and profiteering by an investment fund is a waste 
and unreasonable use. The legislation is silent on what would constitute “profiteering.” It 
is common not only in a water market but in other markets that a commodity produced 
or held may be sold for profit. The transfer, sale, or lease of water in a transaction that 
generates a profit is not inherently a bad outcome. In fact, long term transfers like the 
Imperial Irrigation District transfer to the San Diego County Water Authority generate 
revenues for the agricultural water supplier that can be used for investment in facilities, 
the reduction of debt, and the installation of efficient water management measures—
making the use of water more efficient over time. The Agricultural Water Management 
Planning Act requires agricultural water suppliers to implement efficient management 
practices, if the measures are locally cost effective and technically feasible, including 
practices that facilitate (a) alternative land use for lands with exceptionally high-water 

Page 155 of 181Page 147 of 173



6 | P a g e  
 

duties or whose irrigation contributes to significant problems, including drainage, and (b) 
the financing of capital improvements for on-farm irrigation systems. Implementation of 
such practices is often not locally cost-effective. Revenues generated from the transfer, 
sale, or lease of water can fund projects that are not otherwise locally cost-effective. 
 
AB 1205 May Conflict with Other Provisions of Law 
 
 Section 109 of the Water Code includes a legislative finding and declaration that 

“the growing water needs of the state require the use of water in an efficient 
manner and that the efficient use of water requires certainty in the definition of 
property rights to the use of water and transferability of such rights.” Section 109 
declares that it is the policy of this state to facilitate the voluntary transfer of water 
and water rights when consistent with the public welfare of the place of export 
and the place of import. The Legislature has directed the Department of Water 
Resources, the Board, and all other appropriate state agencies to encourage 
voluntary transfers of water and water rights, including, but not limited to, 
providing technical assistance to persons to identify and implement water 
conservation measures which will make additional water available for transfer. 

 Section 113 of the Water Code provides that it is the policy of the state that 
groundwater resources be managed sustainably for long-term reliability and 
multiple economic, social, and environmental benefits (emphasis added) for 
current and future beneficial uses. Section 113 states: “Sustainable groundwater 
management is best achieved locally through the development, implementation, 
and updating of plans and programs based on the best available science.” 

 Section 380 of the Water Code finds and declares that regions of the state differ 
widely in the availability of water supplies and in the need for water to meet 
beneficial uses and that many water management decisions can best be made at 
a local or regional level, to the end that local and regional operational flexibility 
will maximize efficient statewide use of water supplies. Authority granted to local 
and regional public agencies is in furtherance of the policy declared in Section 2 
of Article X of the California Constitution and in Section 109. 

 Section 475 Water Code provides a legislative finding and declaration that 
voluntary water transfers between water users can result in a more efficient use 
of water, benefiting both the buyer and the seller. The Legislature further finds 
and declares that transfers of surplus water on an intermittent basis can help 
alleviate water shortages, save capital outlay development costs, and conserve 
water and energy. The Legislature further finds and declares that it is in the 
public interest to conserve all available water resources, and that this interest 
requires the coordinated assistance of state agencies for voluntary water 
transfers to allow more intensive use of developed water resources in a manner 
that fully protects the interests of other entities which have rights to, or rely on, 
the water covered by a proposed transfer. 

 Section 10826.2 of the Water Code requires each agricultural water supplier, as 
part of an agricultural water management plan, to develop a drought plan for 
periods of limited water supply describing the actions of the agricultural water 
supplier for drought preparedness and management of water supplies and 

Page 156 of 181Page 148 of 173



7 | P a g e  
 

allocations during drought conditions, including the ability of the agricultural water 
supplier to obtain or use additional water supplies during drought conditions. 

 
Determination of Waste and Unreasonable Use 
 
The Legislature established the Board to provide for the orderly and efficient 
administration of the water resources of the state, finding that it was necessary for the 
proper exercise of the adjudicatory and regulatory functions of the state in the field of 
water resources (See Section 174 of the Water Code). Section 275 of the Water Code 
directs the Department of Water Resources and the Board to take all appropriate 
proceedings or actions before executive, legislative, or judicial agencies to prevent 
waste, unreasonable use, unreasonable method of use, or unreasonable method of 
diversion of water in this state. 
 
According to the Board, the application of the Reasonable Use Doctrine tends to be a 
cumbersome, multistep process and has largely been reactive, where someone claims 
another person’s use of water is unreasonable and uses a judicial or administrative 
forum to resolve the complaint. What constitutes reasonable water use is dependent 
upon not only the entire circumstances presented but varies as the current situation 
changes (Environmental Defense Fund, Inc. v. East Bay Municipal Utility District (1980) 
26 Cal.3d 183). The Reasonable Use Doctrine applies broadly to issues concerning 
diversion, delivery, and use of water and while the Legislature can make rules 
concerning what uses of water are reasonable, those rules cannot themselves be 
unreasonable (California Trout v. State Water Resources Control Board (1989) 207 Cal. 
App. 3d 592). VAWC asserts that, through enactment of AB 1205, the Legislature would 
enact an unreasonable rule in that a designated beneficial use of water, whether 
municipal and industrial, agricultural, or environmental—would be rendered a waste and 
unreasonable use due to the nature of the entity exercising a water right. 
 
For these reasons, VAWC respectfully requests a “NO” vote on AB 1205. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Robert J. Reeb 
 
RJR: 
 
Cc: The Honorable Rebecca Bauer-Kahan 
 Members, Natural Resources & Water Committee 
 Consultant, Natural Resources & Water Committee 
 Republican Caucus Consultant 
 Office of the Governor 

Page 157 of 181Page 149 of 173



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 

        Date:   September 12, 2023 
        Item Number:   15 
        APN:    063-014-030 

 
 
SUBJECT: REVIEW AND TAKE POSSIBLE ACTION TO ADOPT A RESOLUTION 

AUTHORIZING THE DISPOSAL OF PROPERTY NO LONGER NECESSARY FOR 
DISTRICT PURPOSES AND AUTHORIZING STAFF TO PROCEED WITH SALE OF 
APN 063-014-030 ID 41 WELL SITE #3 

 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve adoption of resolution authorizing disposal of property no 

longer necessary for District purposes and authorizing Staff to proceed 
with sale of APN 063-014-030,  well site #3 property located within 
Improvement District 41 

 
BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY:  
Under the provisions of Section 22500, et seq. of the Water Code, the Oakdale Irrigation District 
(District) may dispose of property of the District which it finds no longer necessary for its purposes.  In 
so doing, the District must comply with the provisions of the Surplus Land Act. 
 
The well on Tioga Avenue (APN 063-014-030) known internally as Well Site #3 of Improvement District 
(ID 41), was drilled in 1991 at the time when well site #1 was abandoned. ID 41 has connected with the 
City for water and District staff has determined that the property meets the criteria for disposal and 
landowners of contiguous land have expressed interest in purchasing the property.  
 
Staff has determined that it is in the best interests of the District to sell the property, and is requesting 
authorization to proceed with negotiations with contiguous land owners to sell the properties for $1.00 
plus costs and subject to requirements of the Surplus Land Act.  In this case, the Surplus Land 
Agreement requires that the District pass a resolution that includes findings that the property is exempt 
from the Surplus Land Act and provide a copy of the adopted resolution to the California Department 
of Housing and Community Development at least 30 days before disposition of the property. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  unknown 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 Resolution 2023-31 
 ID41 Well Site Map 

 
 
Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 
 
VOTE:   
Orvis (Yes/No)  Tobias (Yes/No)  Doornenbal (Yes/No)  Santos (Yes/No)  DeBoer (Yes/No) 
 
Action(s) to be taken: 

Page 158 of 181Page 150 of 173



 

1 
 

OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION NO. 2023-NIL 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE DISPOSAL 

OF PROPERTY NO LONGER 
NECESSARY FOR DISTRICT PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, the Oakdale Irrigation District (“District”) may, under the provisions of Section 
22500 of the Water Code, dispose of property of the District that it finds no longer necessary 
for District purposes; 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the District (the “Board”) finds that the well site property 
located on Tioga Avenue (APN 063-014-030) in Oakdale, California (the “Property”) is no longer 
necessary for District purposes, and that it is in the best interest of the District to dispose of 
such surplus property; 
 
WHEREAS, California’s AB 1486, which was signed into law in 2019 and became effective 
January 1, 2020, imposes requirements on government entities that want to dispose of 
surplus property, generally requiring that such property be made available for low- and 
moderate-income housing, parks/recreation and open space, and/or clustering of housing 
and commercial development around transit stations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the property is approximately 209 sq. ft and offered for sale to the owner of 
contiguous land; and 
  
WHEREAS, the property is not contiguous to land owned by a state or local agency that 
uses it for open-space or low-income and moderate-income housing purposes; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Gov. Code § 54221(f)(1)(B) and section 103(b)(1)(A) of the 
California Department of Housing and Community Development’s Surplus Land 
Guidelines published in April 2021 (“HCD Guidelines”), the property is therefore exempt 
from the requirements of AB 1486; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board that:  
 
1. It is in the best interest of the District to dispose of the Property in the most economical 
manner. 
 
2. The Board directs the District’s General Manager to execute a sales agreement to 
dispose of the Property in accordance with the District Surplus Property Policy and the 
Surplus Land Act. 

 
3. The Board directs the General Manager to ensure compliance with section 400(e) 
of the HCD Guidelines by providing a copy of this resolution to the California Department 
of Housing and Community Development at least 30 days prior to disposition of the 
Property. 

 

Page 159 of 181Page 151 of 173



 

2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Upon Motion of Director _____________, seconded by Director _____________, and duly 
submitted to the Board for its consideration, the above-titled Resolution is adopted this 
12th day of September, 2023. 

 
OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 

 
 
 
 
Thomas D. Orvis, President 
Board of Directors 

 
 
 
 
Scot A. Moody 
General Manager/Secretary 

Page 160 of 181Page 152 of 173



Site #3

Page 161 of 181Page 153 of 173



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 

        Date:    September 12, 2023 
        Item Number: 16 
        APN:   N/A 

 
 
SUBJECT:  REVIEW AND TAKE POSSIBLE ACTION TO APPROVE REVISIONS TO THE OID RULES 

AND REGULATIONS 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Review and take possible action to approve revisions to the OID Rules 
and Regulations 
 
 
BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY:  
Clover and alfalfa valves (valves) on top of OID pipelines are private facilities according to OID’s 
Rules and Regulations (R&Rs).  Therefore, leaks from a private riser or valve on an OID pipeline, for 
example, are required to be repaired by the property owner or by OID at the landowner’s expense.  
These valves on OID’s pipelines are also unmeasurable delivery points and thus non-compliant with 
state mandated agricultural water measurement requirements (California Code of Regulations 
Title 23 Division 2 Chapter 5.1 Article 2 Section 597).  
 
OID has continued to progress each year with taking corrective action at unmeasurable 
turnouts in accordance with the Agricultural Water Measurement Corrective Action Plan 
originally drafted and adopted as part of the OID 2012 Agricultural Water Management Plan.  
Unmeasurable turnouts that required the least amount of modification and those that served 
the most acreage were the first to be addressed.  However, a majority of those unmeasurable 
turnouts now remaining are more difficult and costly to correct including, but not limited to, 
private valves on top of OID’s pipelines.  In that situation the landowner is typically provided 
the following options: 
 

1. Remove and replace the existing OID pipeline in its current alignment (or plug/remove 
all valves) and install one new point of delivery (tee) with an inline valve and flow 
meter.  The landowner, at their expense, would then need to install their own private 
irrigation system outside OID’s ROW. 

2. Leave the existing pipeline and valves in-place and quitclaim/abandon it to the 
landowner, acquire a new OID easement and replace the existing pipeline in an alternate 
alignment of equal or less length.  As part of the project, OID ties into the existing 
pipeline for the landowner’s continued irrigation with one new point of delivery (tee) 
with an inline valve and flow meter. 

 
Option number 1 can be a financial burden for the landowner, but often times there just isn’t a 
reasonable alternative alignment so option number 2 isn’t viable.  OID staff has already started 
to receive more pushback from some landowners who believe OID should be responsible for 
modifying the valves to be measureable delivery points or replacing their valves/irrigation 
system since they’ve historically used the OID pipeline and valves for irrigation.  
 

Page 162 of 181Page 154 of 173



In an effort to provide more clarity throughout the R&Rs that these valves on OID’s pipelines are 
private facilities constructed and maintained by the owner in accordance with applicable laws and 
must approved by OID at OID’s discretion, legal counsel has proposed the minor revisions shown in 
the attached pages of the redlined R&Rs.  Staff recommends the Board approve the revised OID 
R&Rs as drafted, and will be available to answer any questions the Board may have. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: None 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 Redlined pages of the OID Rules and Regulations  

 
 
Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 
 
VOTE 
Orvis (Yes/No)  Doornenbal (Yes/No)  Santos (Yes/No)  DeBoer (Yes/No)  Tobias (Yes/No) 
 
Action(s) to be taken: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 163 of 181Page 155 of 173



 
 
K:\Ag Water Department\Eric Thorburn\Rules and Regs\Water Distribution R&Rs Revision_9-12-23\Action-OID Rules and Regs Revisions_9-12-23.docx 

Page 164 of 181Page 156 of 173



  

 
Adopted by the OID Board of Directors (Board) on February September 12, 20231. These rules 

and regulations may be changed at any time by order of the Board with or without notice. 
 

 

Rules & Regulations 

Governing the Operation and Distribution of Water  

Within the Oakdale Irrigation District Service Area 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 165 of 181Page 157 of 173



 2 

1.15 “Private Facilities” includes drains, dams, bridges, structures, wells, conduits, 
pumps, reservoirs, valves, including but not limited to clover, alfalfa or similar 
valves, gates, weirs, and any other facilities not owned by the District belonging to, 
restricted to, or intended for an individual or group of individuals benefit. 

1.16 “Shall” is mandatory and “may” is permissive. 
1.17 “Tenant” means a person or entity that leases, rents, or sharecrops land from a 

Landowner. 
1.18 “Vehicle” means any motor vehicle, self-propelled vehicle, motorcycle, motorized 

bicycle, or all-terrain vehicle. 
1.19 “Water Allotment” means the maximum quantity of water which is set annually 

whenever necessary by the Board for each acre of land within the District which 
can receive District water from District Facilities directly or through Improvement 
District or Private Facilities. 

1.20  “Water Operations Manager” means the District employee serving under the 
general direction of the General Manager in regard to the management and 
supervision of the Water Operations Department.  Used interchangeably with 
“Watermaster”. 

1.21 “Water User” means the person responsible for the distribution and control of 
water applied to the irrigated parcel. 

 

Page 166 of 181Page 158 of 173



 7 

to public or Private Facilities or where significant problems 
could result from the presence of the water. 

3.2.7.2 The District shall be notified prior to Private drainage pump 
operation and discharge into District Facilities.  Non-emergency 
operation notification shall be at least 24 hours prior to pumping 
event.  Emergency operation notification shall be given as early 
as possible before the pump is put into operation. 

3.2.8 District Deep Wells 
3.2.8.1 Deep wells may be used as a permanent or supplemental source 

of water.  Operation of deep wells to deliver water shall not 
constitute or set precedence for future deliveries.   

3.2.9 District Booster Pumps 
3.2.9.1 The DSO shall determine the most efficient and appropriate use 

of the District’s booster pumps in order to deliver scheduled 
water to maximize the benefit of booster pump operation. 

3.2.9.2 District booster pumps shall only be used when it is impractical 
or not possible to deliver gravity water.  

3.2.10 District Turnouts 
3.2.10.1 The operation of turnouts from District Facilities shall be at the 

discretion of the responsible DSO. 
3.2.10.2 All turnouts from District Facilities shall have a positive shut-

off mechanism easily accessible to the DSO within the District 
rights-of-way. 

3.2.10.3 The Water Operations Manager has the authority to lock or 
secure any and all turnouts from District Facilities at any time. 

3.2.10.4 DSOs have the authority to allow for the operation of turnouts 
by Landowners, Water Users, and Tenants.  Upon granting 
permission, the DSO will strive to ensure that the turnout was 
operated appropriately and as directed, as soon as time permits.  
Permission to operate turnouts from District Facilities shall not 
establish any precedence for future events. 

3.2.10.5 Any turnouts constructed in a District Facility at the 
Landowners' expense shall thereafter, at the option of the 
District, become the property of the District.  Private turnout 
ownership on District Facilities shall be specified in writing. 

3.2.11 Private Facilities 
3.2.11.1 All Private Facilities shall be constructed and maintained by the 

owner in accordance with acceptable industry standards, 
applicable laws and approved by the District at the District’s 
discretion.   

Page 167 of 181Page 159 of 173



 16 

3.4.2 The District shall be granted access to any lands within its sphere of 
influence when responding to an emergency upon notification from law 
enforcement or other person.   

3.4.3 If the District holds a right-of-way or easement across Private land for the 
operation and maintenance of a District Facility, the law provides that the 
District shall have certain secondary rights, such as the right to enter upon 
the property on which the right-of-way or easement is located; to make 
repairs; and do such things reasonably necessary for the efficient and 
economical operation and maintenance of the system. 

3.5 Encroachments 

3.5.1 No trees, vines, shrubs, corrals, fences, buildings, bridges, or any other type 
of encroachment shall be planted or placed in, on, over, or across any 
District Facility; or the right-of-way therefor except pursuant to specific 
written authority from the District.  

3.5.2 Any encroachment, authorized or otherwise; in, on, over, under, along, or 
across any District Facility or right-of-way that interferes with the 
operation or maintenance of said facility may be removed by the District, at 
the sole expense of the encroacher. Authorization for an encroachment will 
end if and when said encroachment is determined by the District to be in 
interference with District operations. 

3.6 Construction of Private Irrigation Facilities 

3.6.1 No Private stop gates, stand pipes, turn out pipes, valves, pumps or other 
Privately owned fFacilities shall be connected to or placed through or on 
District Facilities unless and until all the following have occurred: 
a. A written application setting forth the type and specification of the 

installation to be made is filed with the District. 
b. The application and specifications are approved in writing by the 

District prior to start of construction. 
c. If any of the work is to be performed by District personnel or under 

District contract, the full estimated cost inclusive of any 
contingencies is to be paid to the District by the applicant in advance; 
however, the applicant shall be responsible for the actual costs of 
construction irrespective of the amount of the estimate.  Upon 
completion, the applicant shall pay the difference between the 
estimated amount and the actual costs if the estimate is exceeded.  If 
the actual cost is less than the estimate, the applicant will receive a 
refund from the District in the amount of the overpayment. 

d. In order that all involved be protected, in instances and to the extent 
the Board deems appropriate, a written contract is entered into 
specifying the conditions of performing the work and conditions 
applicable to the use of the District’s Facilities. 

Page 168 of 181Page 160 of 173



 17 

e. If the work can affect the flow of water in District Facilities, the work 
shall only be performed during times approved in advance by the 
District.  Ordinarily, in the absence of an emergency, such work will 
not be permitted during the water season which can start as early as 
March 1st and end as late as October 31st. 
 

3.6.2 No Private irrigation system improvements, including without limitation 
Private Facilities, diverting gates, weirs, pump intakes, mechanical screens 
or structures of similar nature, shall be installed, constructed or placed in, 
on, over, under, along, or across any District Facility or right-of-way unless 
prior written permission, in the form of an encroachment permit, has been 
granted therefor by the District.  No permitted person or agency, public or 
private, shall acquire any rights in the District’s Facilities or rights-of-way 
other than those set forth in a written agreement with the District.  
Permittees shall, at their sole expense, upon receipt of notice from the 
District, promptly relocate or remove any improvement.  In the event that 
the permittee fails to do so, the District reserves the right to perform such 
relocation or removal at the permittee’s sole expense.   

3.6.3 No Private improvements, including without limitation Private Facilities, 
buildings, bridges, culverts, gates, corrals, landscaping, recreational pools, 
cross-canal conduits, or structures of similar nature, shall be planted, 
installed, constructed, or placed in, on, over, under, along, or across any 
District Facility or right-of-way unless prior written permission has been 
granted therefor by the District.  No permitted person or agency, public or 
private, shall acquire any rights in the District’s Facilities or rights-of-way 
other than those set forth in a written agreement with the District.  
Permittees shall, at their sole expense, promptly upon receipt of notice from 
the District, relocate or remove any improvement.  In the event that the 
permittee fails to do so, the District reserves the right to perform such 
relocation or removal at the permittee’s sole expense. 

3.6.4 Except where otherwise specified by a written agreement with the District, 
all permitted Private improvements, irrigation or otherwise, shall be 
installed, constructed or placed in, on, over, under, along, or across any 
District Facility or right-of-way at the sole expense of the permittee and 
constructed in accordance with the most current District Standards. 

3.7 Design of Irrigation Facilities 

3.7.1 All new Private or Improvement District Facilities are to be approved, in 
writing, by the District Engineer prior to the start of construction.  Plans 
and construction details shall be submitted to the District along with 
payment of any charges and a written request. 

3.7.2 The District Engineer shall have the authority to approve any new Private 
or Improvement District Facilities.  The design of said facilities shall be 
required to meet the flow requirements of the land being served without 

Page 169 of 181Page 161 of 173



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 

        Date:   September 12, 2023 
        Item Number:   17 
        APN:    N/A 

 
 
SUBJECT: REVIEW AND TAKE POSSIBLE ACTION TO CONTINUE TO PROVIDE IRRIGATION 

WATER AFTER THE END OF THE WATER YEAR ON SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 TO IN-
DISTRICT LANDS ONLY 

 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Review and take possible action to continue to provide irrigation water 

after the end of the water year on September 30, 2023 to in-district 
lands only.  

 
 
BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 

Any water used in October will count against OID’s annual water use for WY 2023/24.  The source of 
OID’s water availability in October comes from the 1988 Agreement with Reclamation (Agreement).  
Under that agreement OID and SSJID receive the first 600,000 AF of runoff from the basin.  If less than 
600,000 AF OID and SSJID receive inflow plus 1/3 of the difference between 600 TAF and actual inflow 
(Formula Water). Based on the Formula Water benefit under the Agreement, on October 1 OID and 
SSJID have 200,000 AF available. 
 
Per the NOAA Climate Prediction Center El Nino Southern Oscillation (ENSO) Update (attached), El Nino 
is expected to continue with greater than a 95% chance through December 2023 - February 2024.  
However, according to NOAA’s seasonal outlook (attached) we an equal chance of above/below normal 
precipitation through November 2023. 
 
OID’s investments in modernization and infrastructure have created significant drought resiliency in OID. 
OID has now provided water up until the last week of October consecutively for the last 7 years with 
average October diversions being approximately 17,000 AF.  Many OID constituents have expressed their 
appreciation and support of continuing to do so.  With harvest trending a few weeks late this season and 
farmers otherwise needing to pump groundwater to meet ET if OID does not make surface water 
available, Staff is recommending water deliveries continue into the last week of October (+/- October 30th) 
pending weather/demand. 
 
Obviously, the other options available to the Board are to offer no rotations/water in October or only a 
single rotation (+/-15 days) in October.  
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 NOAA Seasonal Drought & Precipitation Outlook 
 NOAA ENSO Update (August 28, 2023) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Unknown at this time 
 
 
Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 

Page 170 of 181Page 162 of 173



 
VOTE:   
Orvis (Yes/No)  Tobias (Yes/No)  Doornenbal (Yes/No)  Santos (Yes/No)  DeBoer (Yes/No) 
 
Action(s) to be taken: 

Page 171 of 181Page 163 of 173



Page 172 of 181Page 164 of 173



S
u
m

m
a
ry

* 
N

o
te

: 
T

h
e
se

 s
ta

te
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 u
p
d
a
te

d
 o

n
c
e
 a

 m
o
n
th

 (
2

n
d

T
h
u
rs

d
a
y
 o

f 
e
a
c
h
 m

o
n
th

) 
in

 a
ss

o
c
ia

ti
o
n
 

w
it

h
 t

h
e
 E

N
S
O

 D
ia

g
n
o
st

ic
s 

D
is

c
u
ss

io
n
, 
w

h
ic

h
 c

a
n
 b

e
 f

o
u
n
d
 b

y
 c

li
c
k
in

g
 h

e
re

.

E
N

S
O

 A
le

rt
 S

y
st

e
m

 S
ta

tu
s:

  
E
l 
N

iñ
o
 A

d
v
is

o
ry

E
l 
N

iñ
o
 c

o
n
d
it

io
n
s 

a
re

 o
b
se

rv
e
d
.*

E
q
u
a
to

ri
a
l 
se

a
 s

u
rf

a
c
e
 t

e
m

p
e
ra

tu
re

s 
(S

S
T
s)

 a
re

 a
b
o
v
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 a

c
ro

ss
 t

h
e
 

c
e
n
tr

a
l 
a
n
d
 e

a
st

e
rn

 P
a
c
if

ic
 O

c
e
a
n
.

T
h
e
 t

ro
p
ic

a
l 
P
a
c
if

ic
 a

tm
o
sp

h
e
ri

c
 a

n
o
m

a
li
e
s 

a
re

 c
o
n
si

st
e
n
t 

w
it

h
 E

l 
N

iñ
o
.

E
l 
N

iñ
o
 i
s 

a
n
ti

c
ip

a
te

d
 t

o
 c

o
n
ti

n
u
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 N

o
rt

h
e
rn

 H
e
m

is
p
h
e
re

 w
in

te
r 

(w
it

h
 g

re
a
te

r 
th

a
n
 a

 9
5
%

 c
h
a
n
c
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
2
3
-F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
2
4
).

*

Page 173 of 181Page 165 of 173

http://www.cpc.ncep.noaa.gov/products/analysis_monitoring/enso_advisory


BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 

        Date:    September 12, 2023 
        Item Number:   18 
        APN:    N/A 

 
 
SUBJECT: REVIEW AND TAKE POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING OID POTENTIALLY 

GRANTING THE ME-WUK TRIBE AN EXTENSION OF TIME TO COMPLETE CEQA 
IN OUR WATER TRANSFER AGREEMENT 

 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   Approval of Extension of time. 
 
 
BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 
 
As the Board may be aware, the Me-Wuk Tribe has had some unfortunate setbacks in the construction 
of their new casino. These issues must be rectified before the Tribe can complete CEQA on our joint 
water transfer agreement. The Tribe is asking for a two-year extension of time to execute this 
agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Minimal revenue that would have been generated by water sales 
  
ATTACHMENTS: Communications from Jeanne Zolezzi   
 
 
 
 
Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 
 
VOTE 
Orvis (Yes/No)  Tobias (Yes/No)  Doornenbal (Yes/No)  Santos (Yes/No)  DeBoer (Yes/No) 
 
Action(s) to be taken: 

Page 174 of 181Page 166 of 173



 

 
 

 

 
 

Jeanne M. Zolezzi 
jzolezzi@herumcrabtree.com 

VIA ELECTRONIC TRANSMISSION 
 
August 15, 2023 
 
Mr. Scot Moody 
General Manager 
Oakdale Irrigation District 
1205 East F Street 
Oakdale, CA  95361 
 

Mr. Peter Rietkerk 
General Manager 
South San Joaquin Irrigation District 
Post Office Box 747 
Ripon, CA  95366 
 

Re:  Water Transfer Agreement 
 
Gentlemen: 
  
I am writing in regards to the Water Transfer Agreement by and Between the Oakdale Irrigation District, 
South San Joaquin Irrigation District, and the Chicken Ranch Rancheria of Me-Wuk Indians of California 
dated September 8, 2022 (“Agreement”). We are so appreciative that the districts have executed the 
agreement, and the tribe is doing everything within its power to bring it to fruition.  
 
Section 15 of the Agreement makes compliance with CEQA a condition precedent to delivery under the 
Agreement. Section 16.A of the Agreement provides that if regulatory approval and final CEQA action are 
not satisfied by December 31, 2024, either party may terminate this Agreement by written notice to the 
other Party.  We want to ensure that Agreement is implemented, and wanted to bring to your attention 
that we have not been able to meet our anticipated CEQA schedule due to other pressing issues facing 
the tribe.  
 
We would respectfully request that we execute an amendment to the Agreement to allow the tribe a two 
year extension of its obligation to obtain regulatory approval and final CEQA actions under the 
Agreement. I have enclosed such an amendment for your consideration. I look forward to hearing from 
you.  
 
Very truly yours, 
 
HERUM CRABTREE SUNTAG 
 

 
JEANNE M. ZOLEZZI 
Attorney-at-Law 

Page 175 of 181Page 167 of 173



Page 1 of 3 
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO WATER TRANSFER AGREEMENT 
 
This FIRST AMENDMENT TO WATER TRANSFER AGREEMENT (“Amendment”) is 
entered into this ____ day of September, 2023 as an amendment to that Water Transfer 
Agreement by and Between the Oakdale Irrigation District, South San Joaquin Irrigation District, 
and the Chicken Ranch Rancheria of Me-Wuk Indians of California dated September, 8, 2022 
(“Agreement”). Capitalized terms not defined in this Amendment shall have the meanings 
assigned to them in the Agreement.  
 

1. RECITALS.  
 

A. Section 15 of the Agreement makes compliance with CEQA a condition 
precedent to delivery under the Agreement.  

 
B. Section 16.A of the Agreement provides that if regulatory approval and final 

CEQA action are not satisfied by December 31, 2024, either party may terminate this Agreement 
by written notice to the other Party.   

 
C. Chicken Ranch has been unable to meet its anticipated CEQA schedule due to 

other pressing issues facing the tribe.  
 
D. Chicken Ranch has requested an amendment to the Agreement to allow it a two 

year extension of its obligation to obtain regulatory approval and final CEQA actions under the 
Agreement.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 
 

2. SECTION 5. The following Build-Up Schedule is hereby substituted for the original 
Build-Up Table included in Section 5 of the Agreement: 
 

YEAR M&I AG TOTAL 
1       75                 0              75  
2     190                 0           190  
3     200             300            500  
4     210             300            510  
5     220             300            520  
6     230             300            530  
7     240             300            540  
8     250             600            850  
9     260             600            860  
10     270             600            870  
11     280             600            880  
12     290             600            890  
13     300             900         1,200  
14     300             900         1,200  

Page 176 of 181Page 168 of 173



Page 2 of 3 
 

15 300            900         1,200  
16 300            900         1,200  
17 300            900         1,200  
18 300        1,200         1,500  
19 300        1,200         1,500  
20 300        1,200         1,500  
21 300        1,200         1,500  
22 300        1,200         1,500  
23 300        1,200         1,500  
24 300        1,200         1,500  
25 300        1,200         1,500  

 
3. SECTION 16.A. Section 16.A of the Agreement is hereby withdrawn and replaced in its 

entirety with the following language: 
 

A. Prior to water delivery under this Agreement, if regulatory approvals and final 
CEQA action are not satisfied by December 31, 2026, either Party may terminate 
this Agreement by written notice to the other Party; 

 
4. CONTINUING VALIDITY. VALIDITY. Except as otherwise provided in this 

Amendment, the Agreement shall continue in full force and affect and govern this transaction.  

5. COUNTERPARTS AND ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES. This Amendment may be 
executed simultaneously or in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 
original, equally admissible in evidence, but all of which together shall constitute one and the 
same agreement, notwithstanding that the signatures of each Party or their respective 
representatives do not appear on the same page of this Amendment. The Parties hereby 
acknowledge and agree that electronic signatures, facsimile signatures, electronic signatures that 
comply with the eSign Act (15 U.S.C. Ch. 96) (such as DocuSign signatures), or signatures 
transmitted by electronic mail in so-called "pdf" format shall be legal and binding and shall have 
the same full force and effect as if an original of this Amendment had been delivered. The Parties 
hereto (a) intend to be bound by the signatures on any document sent by electronic means 
including by facsimile or electronic mail, (b) are aware that the other Party will rely on such 
signatures, and (c) hereby waive any defenses to the enforcement of the terms of this 
Amendment based on the foregoing forms of signature. 

Page 177 of 181Page 169 of 173



Page 3 of 3 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Amendment to be executed as of the 
Effective Date. 

 
OAKDALE IRRIGATION DISTRICT 
 
 
 
By: ___________________________           
         Scot A. Moody, General Manager 
      
 
     Attest: ___________________________________ 
      Secretary 
 
 
SOUTH SAN JOAQUIN IRRIGATION DISTRICT 
 
 
 
By: ___________________________ 
       Peter Rietkerk, General Manager  
      
 
     Attest: ___________________________________ 
      Secretary 
 
 
CHICKEN RANCH RANCHERIA OF ME-WUK  
INDIANS OF CALIFORNIA 
 
 
By: _____________________________ 
         Lloyd Mathiesen, Chairman 

Page 178 of 181Page 170 of 173



BOARD AGENDA REPORT 
 

        Date:    September 12, 2023 
        Item Number:   19 
        APN:    N/A 

 
 
SUBJECT: REVIEW AND TAKE POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING OID POTENTIALLY 

SPONSORING THE MAGNOLIA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL 4TH GRADE CLASS TO 
VIEW THE SALMON RUN AT KNIGHTS FERRY 

 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:   Approval to sponsor two busses for four hours 
 
 
BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY: 
 
The District has received a request from Magnolia Elementary School for the District to sponsor two 
busses for four hours to view the salmon run at Knights Ferry. The District has sponsored this trip in 
the past as an educational opportunity for all local elementary schools. 
 
 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: $690 
  
ATTACHMENTS: None.  
 
 
 
 
Board Motion: 
 
Motion by: ___________________________  Second by: ______________________________ 
 
VOTE 
Orvis (Yes/No)  Tobias (Yes/No)  Doornenbal (Yes/No)  Santos (Yes/No)  DeBoer (Yes/No) 
 
Action(s) to be taken: 

Page 179 of 181Page 171 of 173



Page 180 of 181Page 172 of 173



Page 181 of 181Page 173 of 173


	8.1.23 Minutes - Board Meeting (DRAFT).pdf
	MINUTES
	Directors:  Tom Orvis, President
	Brad DeBoer, Vice President
	Linda Santos
	Ed Tobias
	ACTION TO TAKE VARIOUS ITEMS OUT OF SEQUENCE
	Scot A. Moody
	General Manager/Secretary

	Consent Item #5 Rejection of Claim Bousack Sengphachanh.pdf
	Consent - Claim - Sengphachanh - 7.31.23.pdf
	8.2.23 Claim Bounsack Sengphachanh.pdf

	Consent Item #7 (prev. #6 )- CFO's  Treasurer and Financial Report Agenda July 2023 - Board Report only.pdf
	Consent Item #6 - CFO's  Treasurer and Financial Report Agenda July 2023.pdf
	TREASURER'S REPORT_7.31.23.pdf
	Cover Page
	STATEMENT_OF_FUNDS
	TREASRPT

	7.31.23 US Bank.pdf
	Page Identifiers
	00000005
	00000006
	00000007
	00000008
	00000009
	00000010
	00000011
	00000012
	00000013
	00000014
	00000015
	00000016
	00000017
	00000018


	Financial Statements 7.31.23.pdf
	Cover Page
	Table of Contents
	Net Assets
	Stmt Rev, Exp
	Revenues Detailed
	Operating Summary
	Capital


	Consent Item #7 (prev. #6 )- CFO's  Treasurer and Financial Report Agenda July 2023.pdf
	Consent Item #6 - CFO's  Treasurer and Financial Report Agenda July 2023.pdf
	TREASURER'S REPORT_7.31.23.pdf
	Cover Page
	STATEMENT_OF_FUNDS
	TREASRPT

	7.31.23 US Bank.pdf
	Page Identifiers
	00000005
	00000006
	00000007
	00000008
	00000009
	00000010
	00000011
	00000012
	00000013
	00000014
	00000015
	00000016
	00000017
	00000018


	Financial Statements 7.31.23.pdf
	Cover Page
	Table of Contents
	Net Assets
	Stmt Rev, Exp
	Revenues Detailed
	Operating Summary
	Capital


	Consent Item #8 (prev. #7) - Award if Bid- Dump Truck.pdf
	Consent Iet #7- Award of Bid - Dump Truck.pdf
	Interstate Truck Center Sales Order.pdf
	RFP Sourcewell Vendors 060920.pdf

	Consent Item #8 (prev. #7) - Award if Bid- Dump Truck.pdf
	Consent Iet #7- Award of Bid - Dump Truck.pdf
	Interstate Truck Center Sales Order.pdf
	RFP Sourcewell Vendors 060920.pdf

	Action Item #12 (prev. #10) - Surplus Property ID41 Wells Site #3.pdf
	Board Agenda Report - ID41 Surplus Property Well Site #3.pdf
	Action - Resolution - Surplus Property ID 41 Well Site #3 (APN 063-014-030).pdf
	ID41 Well Site Map.pdf

	Consent Item #3-  Oakdale Irrigation District's Statement of Obligations.pdf
	Consent Item #3-  OID Statement of Obligations 091223.pdf
	SOB Cover Sheet.pdf
	Check Register 09122023.pdf
	Obligation List 09122023.pdf

	Consent Item #4 - OID Improvement Districts' Statement of Obligations.pdf
	WARRANT 2023 O&M.pdf
	SIGNATURE PAGE 2023.pdf
	Consent Item #4 - Stmt of Obs ID_09122023.pdf

	Consent Item #6 - Rejection of Claim filed by B&D Law Group, APLC on behalf of Keira Hernandez.pdf
	Consent Item #6 - Rejection of Claim filed by B&D Law Group, APLC on behalf of Keira Hernandez.pdf
	SUBJECT: APPROVE REJECTION OF CLAIM SUBMITTED BY B&D LAW GROUP, APLC ON BEHALF OF KEIRA HERNANDEZ
	BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY:
	ATTACHMENTS:
	Board Motion:

	Claim received 8.24.23.pdf

	(Item #16) Amendment to Water Transfer Agreement.pdf
	4. CONTINUING VALIDITY. VALIDITY. Except as otherwise provided in this Amendment, the Agreement shall continue in full force and affect and govern this transaction.
	5. COUNTERPARTS AND ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES. This Amendment may be executed simultaneously or in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, equally admissible in evidence, but all of which together shall constitute one and th...

	Consent Item #7 Rejection of Claim Submitted by Aiman-Smith & Marcy on behalf of Cari McCormick (packet with Board Report).pdf
	Consent Item # 7 - Claim -McCormick 8.14.23.pdf
	SUBJECT: APPROVE REJECTION OF CLAIM SUBMITTED BY AIMAN-SMITH & MARCY ON BEHALF OF CARI MCCORMICK
	BACKGROUND AND/OR HISTORY:
	ATTACHMENTS:
	Board Motion:

	McCormick Claim 8.14.23.pdf

	20230912 OID Tunnels 34 NOA.pdf
	Njirich Bid - OID Tunnels 3&4
	Blank Page
	20230706 OID Tunnels 3 & 4 Addendum No. 1.pdf
	TOC-2 20230621 - Rev 20230706 Add 1
	00200-1 Notice Inviting Bids 20230621 - Rev 20230706 Add 1
	00300-2 Instructions for Bidders 20230621 - Rev 20230706 Add 1
	00530-3 Bid 20230621 - Rev 20230706 Add 1
	02210-9  Site Preservation and Materials Disposal 20230621 - Rev 20230706 Add 1
	Tunnels 3 4_Environmental Memo

	1783 OID Addendum A1 20230630 reduced
	Text

	20230714 OID Tunnels 3  4 Addendum No. 2.pdf
	00530-5 Bid 20230621 - Rev 20230714 Add 2
	02050-9 Mob and Demob 20230621 - Rev 20230714 Add 2
	02330-8 Site Grading 20230621 - Rev 20230714 Add 2
	02415-1_5_11 Tunnel Repair Using Mobile Equipment 20230621 - Rev 20230714 Add 2
	02330-8 Site Grading 20230621 - Rev 20230714 Add 2
	02415-1_5_11 Tunnel Repair Using Mobile Equipment 20230621 - Rev 20230714 Add 2
	02050-9 Mob and Demob 20230621 - Rev 20230714 Add 2
	1783 OID Tunnel 3 and 4 Addendum A2 20230712_Optimized
	Sheets and Views
	SHEET

	Sheets and Views
	SHEET

	Sheets and Views
	SITE PLAN - TUNNEL 3

	Sheets and Views
	TUNNEL 3 DOWNSTREAM

	Sheets and Views
	DETAILS
	Rock Dowel Centralizer
	Shaft Demo Backfill
	Tunnel 3 Section A1
	Tunnel 3 Section A2
	Tunnel 4 Sectrion B
	EPOXY-RESIN ROCK DOWEL
	Rock Dowel Cement Grout
	CULVERT
	CULVERT SECTION
	CULVERT SECTION 2



	1783 Site Plan SK1 20230714
	Sheets and Views
	SHEET



	Signature_Notary





